# IN THIS ISSUE

Nutrition Transition in the Philippines

MA. REGINA A. PEDRO CORAZON VC. BARBA RHEA BENAVIDES-DE LEON

Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth NANETTE LEE LINDA S. ADAIR

Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications CHRISTIAN JOY P. CRUZ

RUZZEL BRIAN C. MALLARI

The Emergence of Multigenerational Households: The Role of Early Union CLARINDA LUSTERIO-BERJA

Active Life Expectancy of Filipino Older People GRACE T. CRUZ

A History of the University of the Philippines Population Institute MERCEDES B. CONCEPCION

Selected Abstracts of Master's Theses for M.A. in Demography, University of the Philippines Population Institute A Publication of the



PHILIPPINE POPULATION ASSOCIATION

# Philippine Population Review

UP Population Institute

Volume 6 Number 1 January - December 2007



The **Philippine Population Association (PPA**) is a non-stock, non-profit, non-patisan, and non-secturian organization of professionals engaged in population and related activities. It seeks to promote a scientific base for addressing population and related issues through research and dissemination, training and extension and keeps population issues at the forefront of public coarciousness. Membership in the PPA is open to professional and address.

The **Philippine Population Review (PPR)** is the official journal of the Philippine Population Association and is published annually. The PPR is a peer-reviewed journal.

Copyright 2007 by the PHILIPPINE POPULATION ASSOCIATION.

ISSN 1655-8049

EDITOR Ephraim E. Despabiladeras

EDITORIAL ASSISTANTS Christian Joy P. Cruz Ruzzel Brian C. Mallari

BOOK AND COVER DESIGN Ariel G. Manuel EDITORIAL BOARD Clarinda L. Beria University of the Philippines, Philippines Marilou Palabrica-Costelo, Ph.D. Independent Consultant, Philippines Grace T. Cruz. Ph.D. University of the Philippines, Philippines Alan Feranil Ph D University of San Carlos Office of Population Studies, Inc., Philippines Socorro A. Gultiano, Ph.D. University of San Carlos Office of Population Studies, Inc., Philippines Wassama Im-em, Ph.D UNFPA, Thailand Romeo B. Lee, Ph.D. De La Salle University, Philippines Virginia A. Miralao, Ph.D. Philippine Social Science Council, Philippines Trinidad Osteria, D.Sc De La Salle University, Philippines Peter Xenos, Ph.D. East-West Center USA Zelda C. Zablan, DTC Demographic Research and Development Foundation, Philippines



PHILIPPINE POPULATION ASSOCIATION Board of Trustees

PRESIDENT: Socorro A. Gultiano, Ph.D. VICE PRESIDENT: Josefina V. Cabigon, Ph.D. SECRETARY: Caroline Laarni S. Rubio TREASURER: Grace T. Cruz, Ph.D.

BOT MEMBERS Magdalena C. Cabaraban, Ph.D. Nimfa B. Ogena, Ph.D. Nolito Quilang, LLB. Josefina N. Natividad, D.Sc.

CHAPTER REPRESENTATIVES GREATER LUZON: Aurora C. Quiray VISAYAS Socorro A. Gultiano, Ph.D. MINDANAO: Magdalena C. Cabaraban, Ph.D.

Opinions expressed in the articles are those of the author/ authors. These do not necessarily reflect the rieus of the Philippine Population Association.

Printing of PPR 2007 usas made possible by a grant from the Philippine Center for Population and Development.

## PHILIPPINE POPULATION REVIEW

PHILIPPINE POPULATION ASSOCIATION 2007

# CONTENTS

#### Editor's Notes

Nutrition Transition in the Philippines
MA. REGINA A. PEDRO
CORAZON VC. BARBA
RHEA BENAVIDES-DE LEON
Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth
NANETTE LEE
LINDA S. ADAIR
Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications
CHRISTIAN JOY P. CRUZ
RUZZEL BRIAN C. MALLARI 45
The Emergence of Multigenerational Households: The Role of Early Union
CLARINDA LUSTERIO-BERJA
Active Life Expectancy of Filipino Older People
GRACE T. CRUZ
A History of the University of the Philippines Population Institute
MERCEDES B. CONCEPCION 103
Selected Abstracts of Master's Theses for M.A. in Demography, University of the Philippines Population Institute

# EDITOR'S NOTES

IN 2005, the mid-decade population census was not carried out, much to the disappointment of demographers, population students, economic planners and just about anybody concerned with the issue of population growth and its impact on national and local development. The Arroyo administration, fresh from the mandate of the previous year's election, failed to provide sufficient inding for stud as vial exercise.

This year, however, funding was available. And so, the Philippines had a census in 2007, not a mid-decade census, and not even a mid-year census, as the population count started on August 1, unlike the July 1 start of previous censuses. Let the demographers and population students worry about the relative lack of symmetry and comparability of Philippine Census 2007 with previous censuses, but let us rejiciot that a census was caried out at least, even it two years later than anticipated. We should all look forward to the results sometime in 2008 and clebue over their implications.

The Philippine Population Association, in its small way, had its own historical first. Upon the initiative of its president, Dr. Connie Gultiano, the PPA held its first scientific conference outside of Manila. On July 28, 2007, the PPA held the National Conference on Life Course Perspective on Population, Nutrition and Health in Cebu Cire.

One of the presentations in that conference has been transformed into the paper, "Nuttition Transition in the Philippines," by De. Ma Regina, A. Parlo, Dz. Corazon VC. Barba and Ma. Rhen Benreides-de Leon, which is the lead paper in this year's issue of *Philippine Population Review*. The authors present evidence of distary changes within the last 25 years, and their findings are alarming: The increased choisterol and suturated fast in the dists of Filippine have contributed to the increased prevalence of chronic lifestyle-related discases, even as the country has not solved the problems of underweight, sumning and micronomistin efficiencies among children, which continue to persist in public health proportions. Thus, the Philippines faces the "double burche" of underweight are unstrained in the solution of the presence of the problem environs.

Nanette Lee and Dr. Linda S. Adair look at the occupational gender gap among young Fülpinos in the labot force. Using data from the 2005 Ceba Longitudinal Health and Nutrition Survey on employed youth in their early 20b, the authors report that occupational gender segregation exists among Fülpinos youth. This gender segregation is significantly associated with human capital (education and previous work experience), place or residence (whether urban or rural) and job requirements (whether requiring a certain level of education or previous work experience, physical or mental skills, or full-time or unit, as with wage rate inequality, with women on the negative end of the scale, cere after corrorrating for education

The social acceptance of homosexuality among Filipino youth is the subject of Christian Joy Cruz and Ruzzel Brian Mallari. The authors make use of qualitative and quantitative data to argue that the level of acceptance by young Filipinos of a homosexual person, along with his/her homosexual activities, is low, probably as a result of the social stigma that continues to be attached to being a homosexual.

Young adults are again the subject of the fourth paper in this issue. Claire Berja writes of the role of early union in the emergence of multigenerational bouseholds. The author makes a distinction among three types of multigenerational households: the first type has a head with children and grandchildren; the second type has a head with children and parents; and type three has a head with children, grandchildren and parents. These multigenerational households appear to be a coping strategy to face poverty resulting from early unions. According to the author, more than one-fifth of young people in her study were living in multigenerational households and more one-tind were in early unions.

The paper of Dr. Grace Cruz, on the other hand, focuses on older Filipinos and provides a baseline estimate of their active fife expectancy. The study shows that while older Filipino females live longer lives, the quality of their lives leave a lot to be desired as they are more like to be inactive and suffer from increased disability.

Dr. Mercedes B. Concepcion, who served as the first (nal only) dean of the University of the Philippines Population Institute (UPPI), has the institutional memory to write its history. PPR intends this history to be the first in a series of profiles presenting the history and achievement of institutions in the Philippines which are making a significant contribution to the advancement of Philippine population studies.

The last paper consists of selected abstracts of masters theses by graduate students engaged in the study of population and development. We hope that it also becomes the first in a series that would highlight the range of population studies being parsued by our graduate students from various parts of the country.

Lastly, the Philippine Population Association and the PPR would like to acknowledge the generosity of the Philippine Center for Population and Development for providing the funding for the publication of this year's PPR. We are truly grateful.

Happy reading!



## Nutrition Transition in the Philippines

Ma. Regina A. Pedro', Corazon VC. Barba'', and Rhea Benavides-de Leon'''

#### Abstract

he report examines evidence of dietary changes and the implications to nutritional and health status of various population groups in the country, and whether or not the Philippines is facing a "double burden" of undernutrition and overnutrition. Using data from the National Nutrition Surveys, the study finds that dietary changes occurring in Philippine households in the last 25 years are influenced by the food available to households and the increasing urbanization of the Philippine population. The dietary pattern in Philippine households particularly in the last 10 years is one of increasing energy density. While the increased intake of animal foods and fats and oils may have been a progress towards improving protein quality and bioavailability of important micronutrients, trade-offs in terms of increased cholesterol and saturated fats in the diets, coupled with sedentary lifestyles, have contributed to the significant evidence of dyslipidemia in adults and increasing overweight among adults as well as among adolescents. Nevertheless, underweight, stunting and micronutrient deficiencies especially among children persist in public health proportions. There is evidence that the country faces a "double burden" of undernutrition and overnutrition: persisting undernutrition especially among children, along with a rise in overweight, obesity and diet-related diseases among adults. Given the current economic and social trends, the dietary changes are likely to continue and, with changing lifestyle and physical inactivity, may exacerbate the emerging problems of overnutrition and diet-related chronic degenerative diseases.

\*\*\* Science Research Specialist I with the Food and Nutrition Research Institute.

<sup>\*</sup> Nutrition Science Manager of Bristol-Myers Squibb-Mead Johnson Nutritionals Asia.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Resident Advisor of A2Z, the Micronutrient Project, a project being implemented by the Academy for Educational Development for the United States Agency for International Development.

#### Introduction

Social, economic and demographic developments in the Philippines have led to the phenomenon called the "double burdes" of undemutrition and overnutrition. This report presents the evidence of the country's dietary changes and an emerging double burden of malautinion and related health problems. The data presented here were from the Food and Nutrition Research Institute's National Nutrition Surveys, which is described in www.fnrt.dost.govph.

Demographic changes represent one of crucial contributors to the country's changing dietary patterns. The population has grown at an annual rate of 2.11 percent, and is expected to reach 10.28 million in 2015 from 85.5 million in 2005. Two important demographic trends in the last 30 years have been increased urban growth and migration. The population libring in utuban areas reached 59 percent in 2001, from 32 percent in 1700 and 54 percent in 1900. In general, the rural population has been moving to industrial zones in regions like the National Capital Region NCRR, Region NUX and SL. Womens are also more likely to move out than men, and this has implications on food production and care giving. The relations between migrant communities in the urban centers and home communities in the trust areas have nonetheless here mostively improved access to communities and mass media, which has favorably influenced preferences for processed foods and western foods even among rend Avelles in remote villages.

In terms of the economy, the Philippines has grown in the last years with a Gross National Product (GNP) and Gross Domestic Product that expanded at an average of 5.05 percent and 4.52 percent respectively from 2001 to 2004 (NED) 2000). It has however been a boom-bust pattern of growth in the last 30 years (Fig1). Underemployment and poverty have remained challenging issues. Estimates indicate that 24.7 percent of Filipino families were considered poor in 2003.

There has been progress in terms of health and social indicators. Life expectancy has increased to 67 years among males and 72 years in females (from an average of 58 years in the early 1970) and the infinit mortality rate has decreased from 60 to 20 over toughly the same period (UNDP, 2004). Access to safe water, and levels of literacy and primary school enrolment have increased as well.

Indicator	Value	Year
Estimated Total Population	85.5 million	2005
Population Growth Rate	2.11%	2000-2005
Human Development Index (HDI), HDI rank	0.753, 83"	2002
Gender Development Index (GDI), GDI rank	0.751, 66*	2002
GDP per capita (US8)1,0262004		
Social Sector Expenditures (as % of total expenditure)	42.81%	2003
Share of poorest quintile in income or consumption	4.7%	2003
Share of richest quintile in income or consumption	53.3%	2003
Life Expectancy Male (at birth in years)	67.2	2003
Life Expectancy Female (at birth in years)	72.5	2003
Unemployment rate	10.9%	2004
Underemployment rate	16.9%	2004
Poverty headcount ratio (% of families below		
national poverty line) (Preliminary)	24.7%	2003
Population with access to safe water supply	80%	2002
Simple Literacy Rate	94%	2003
Elementary Participation Rate	90%	2002
Under-5 Mortality Rate (per 1,000 children)	40	2003
Maternal Mortality Rate (per 100,000 live births)	172	1998

#### TABLE 1. Key Development Indicators

Sources: Medium-Term Philippine Development Plan 2004 – 2010 2004 UNDP Human Development Report Family Income and Expenditure Survey 2003

There have been significant changes as well with regard to food available to households, as an effect of increasing food imports such as flour, mult, frozen postatoes, cheese, butter, milk, and sugar confectionaries, among others [Figs 1a-1b). These changes, which are related to globalization, have influenced the distary and mutrition transition experienced in the country in the last quarter.







FIGURE. 1B. Food commodity imports (Ref: FAOSATAT 2005)



#### Dietary Changes 1978-2003

Food consumption, represented as raw As Purchased (AP) weight, has not changed significantly over the last 25 years. However, in terms of dietary energy, the mean one day per capita energy intake increased from 1,804 kiloacines (Radh) in 1078 to 1,905 keals in 2003 (Figure 2). Thus, while the Filipino food intake has not increased in terms of weight, the energy distribution of diets has been increasing.



FIGURE 2. Trends in mean per capita food intake (g/day and kcal/day) in Filipino households, 1978 – 2003.

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1978, 1982, 1987, 1983, 2003 Survey population: Nationally representative Samole size: 2, 800 (1976), 2, 280 (1982), 3, 200 (1987), 4, 050 (1993), 5, 514 (2003

As shown in Table 2, the overall dietary pattern generally remains to be rice-vegetable-fish in Philippine households, contributing to 34 percent, 13 percent and 12 percent of food weight in 2003. The contribution of rice and fish has remained similarly proportioned over the past 25 years, while proportion of vegetables in the diet has declined slightly.

Food Group/Sub-group	Consu	mption, in g	rams/day, raw,	As Pur	chased
	1978	1982	1987	1993	2003
Cereals and Cereal Products	367	356	345	340	364
Rice and Products	308	304	303	282	303
Corn and Products	38	34	24	36	31
Other Cereals and Products	21	18	18	22	30
Starchy Roots and Tubers	37	42	22	17	19
Sugars and Syrups *	19	22	24	19	24
Fats and Oils**	13	14	14	12	18
Fish, Meat and Poultry	133	154	157	147	185
Fish and products	102	113	111	99	104
Meat and products	23	32	37	34	61
Poultry	7	10	9	14	20
Eggs	8	9	10	12	13
Milk and Milk Products	42	44	43	44	49
Whole Milk				35	35
Milk Products				9	14
Dried beans, Nuts and Seeds***	8	10	10	10	10
Vegetables	145	13	11	10	111
		0	1	6	
Green Leafy, Yellow Vegetables	34	37	29	30	31
Other Vegetables	111	93	82	76	80
Fruits	104	102	107	77	54
Vitamin-C Rich foods	30	18	24	21	12
Other Fruits	74	84	83	56	42
MISCELLANEOUS	21	32	26	19	39
Beverages ****					26
Condiments					13
TOTAL FOOD (g/day)	897	915	869	803	886

TABLE 2. Trends in mean per capita food consumption per day, Philippines, 1978-2003 (total and for selected food groups and sub-groups)

\*also includes softdrinks (sugar content), sherbet and similar preparations

\*\* includes grated coconut and coconut milk (fat)

\*\*\* includes mungbeans, soybeans, peanuts & other dried beans, nuts

\*\*\*\* includes coffee, tuba (local wine), slooholic beverages, others

NOTE: Numbers may not add up to totals due to rounding off.

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1978, 1982, 1987, 1983, 2003 Survey population: Nationally representative Sample size: 2, 800 (1978), 2, 220 (1982), 3, 200 (1987), 4, 050 (1983), 5, 514 (2003) Among certails, the amount of imake of rice and products has generally not changed; the mean per capita intake fluctuated from 262 g in 1993, which was the lowest recorded intake in the 25-year period, to between 303 - 308 g during the other survey years including 2003. The comsumption of corn, which is more common as a staple in combination with rice in Cantral and Southern Philippines periodally in the matt areas, was generally deching, except in 1993. The intake of starchy roots and tubers was twice less in 2003 (19 g/day) compared with 1976 (37 g/day), effecting the diminishing consumption of traditional and ethnic foods, such as mairs stands made from localler available was not tubers.

The consumption of "other cereals and cereal products," which include, among others, breads and bakery products, nocalles, and snack foods from whera flour, peaked at 30 g in 2003 and increased by 36 percent over the per capita intake of 22 g in 1993. The intake of sugars and syrups, including softdirinks, increased. The consumption of softdirinks in particular increased by 150 percent over the per capita intake of two g in 1993 as compared with five g in 2003.

The consumption and contribution of vegetables and fruits to total food intake has decidend. The intuke of funits, both summa C rich and other fruits, it is 1000 word 54 gamms in 2003, a decrease of 50 gamm per capits since 1978 and a steady 30 percent reduction during the periods 1987 – 1993 and 1995 – 2003. Armong the vegetables, the intake of green learly and yellow vegetables has been the same from 1987 to the 2000 while that of other vegetables increased by only four g in the past decade. The pattern of decreasing fruit and vegetable cosmumption is reflected in the declining proportion of households that consumed 3 400 gg fruits and vegetables per capita per day particularly in the last 10 years, from 11.5 percent in 1933 to 8.2 percent in 2003.

The inuke of first and oils, fish, meats and poultry, and milk and milk products increased, consistent with the Natritional Geidelines for Filipinos that has called for improving diet quality by including more animal food, faits and oils, and milk and milk products. Overall, there was an increase in the contribution of animal food sources to total food intuke (g), from 20 percent to 25 percent between 1978 and 1939, up to 28 percent in 2003 (Fig. 3). These increases, on the



based on Philippine HDA and RENI's, 1978 - 2003					
Nutrients	1978	1982	1987	1993 <sup>2</sup>	20033
Energy	1		1	1	i .
Intake (kcal)	1804	1808	1753	1684	1905
% Adequacy	88.6	89.0	87.1	87.8	98.3
Protein		1			
Intake (g)	53.0	50.6	49.7	49.9	56.2
% Adequacy	102.9	99.6	98.2	106.2	99.2
ron <sup>4</sup>		1			
Intake (mg)	11.0	10.8	10.7	10.1	10.1
% Adequacy	91.7	91.5	91.5	64.7	60.1
litamin A					
Intake (ug RE )	-		389.7	391.9	455.2
% Adequacy			75.9	88.1	91.4
alcium					
Intake (mo)	0.44	0.45	0.42	0.39	0.44
% Adequacy	0.11	80.4	75.0	67.0	57.1
hiamin	1			1	
Intake (mg)	0.73	0.74	0.68	0.67	0.88
% Adequacy	0.75	71.8	66.7	68.4	86.3
	1		1		
iboflavin Intake (mg)	0.53	0.58	0.56	0.56	0.73
% Adequacy	0.03	56.3	54.4	57.1	68.0
		50.5	34.4	37.1	00.0
liacin	15.0	16.4		16.1	20.6
Intake (mg) % Adequacy	15.3	16.4	16.3	68.0	20.6
76 Adequacy		113.7	119.9	68.0	150.4
scorbic Acid	1		§	1	1
Intake (mg)	66.8	61.6	53.6	46.7	46.5
% Adequacy		91.1	80.0	73.2	75.0
ats	}			1	
Intake (g)			29	29	38
arbohydrates					1
Intake (gl			324	310	333

TABLE 3. Trends in per capita energy and nutrient intake and percent adequacy based on Philippine RDA and RENI's, 1978 - 2003

1976 RDA for Filipinos

<sup>2</sup>1989 RDA for Filipinos

<sup>2</sup>2002 RENI for Filipinos

Iron requirement in the 1993 RDA and 2002 RENI were higher compared to earlier RDAs. Niacin requirement in 1993 RDA was higher than 2002 RENI; calcium requirement was higher in 2002. These were due to methods of estimation.

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1978, 1982, 1987, 1993, 2003

Survey population: Nationally representative

Sample size: 2, 800 (1978), 2, 280 (1982), 3, 200 (1987), 4, 050 (1983), 5, 514 (2003)

Nutrition Transition in the Philippines

other hand, may also be attributed to the increasing trend in the consumption of fast foods and could also signal a detrimental increase in saturated fat and cholesterol.

The changing die patterns reflected on bousehold nutient innakes are shown in Table 3. The mean per capita intake of energy, protein, vitamin A, calcium, thiamin, riboflavin and niachi increased in 2003 from the levels in 1993 and earlier years. Intakes however remained inadequate for most other nutients. The mean innake particularly for iron, calcium, riboflavin, and vitamin C were less than 80 percent of the recommendel levels.

The declining intake of vitamin C over the years may be explained by the declining intake of vitamin C-rich fruits. There was no corresponding increase in iron intake in 2003, in spite of the reported increase in the intake of meat, because the increase in meat intake was mostly in the form of pork, which in general has lower iron content (0.8 mg/100g) than beef (2.8mg/100g).

The 1987 and 1993 NNS showed urban and rural differences in food, and energy and muterimitinakes, Generally, the inhake of cercuits and excell products (specifically rice and com products), starchy roots and tubers, fish, and vegetables, including green leafy and yellow, and other vegetables were higher in rural than in urban areas. Urban households, on the other hand, consumed more "other cereatis and cereal products", which include, among others, breads and bakery products, noodles and snack foods from wheat flour, sugars and syrups, fice and oils, mer and poultry, eggs, milk and milk products; which include, among others, as well as vitamin-C rich fruits. Milk consumption increased in urban areas between 1987 and 1993, but decreased in the runal areas. Norseholess, dist trends in the runal areas have: followed that of urban areas. Like in the urban areas, decreased from 1987 – 1993, while that of "other cereals and aceedar products; "increased. This is a reflection of the introduction of urban tustes among runal dwellers, particularly by family members who have migrated or transienty moved to urban areas to continue to see flood and money (Table 4).

These urban-rund differences are reflected in regional diet patterns revealed from the 2003 NNS. The consumption of "other cereats and cereal products," fits and only, meast and meat products, and milk and milk products was higher while that of vegentables was lower, in urban areas, such as the NCR, compared to the other regions, which had varying extent of urbanization. The regions with the higher proportion of urban population other than Merro Manila, specifically, Central Laron and Calabaroon which are at least 60 percent urban, had higher consumption of "other cereals and cereal products," ments and meat products, eggs, and milk and milk products than the regions that were less urbanized such as Gagayan Valley and Eastern Visyas. Central Laron and Calabaroon had lower intake of starchy roots and tubers and vegetables than most of the rest of the regions that were less urbanized.

Food Group/Sub-group		lural	Ur	ban
	1987	1993	1987	1993
Cereals and Cereal Products	361	350	318	318
Rice and Products	317	289	281	273
Corn and Products	31	55	11	17
Other Cereals and Products	13	16	26	28
Starchy Roots and Tubers	25	21	17	13
Sugars and Syrups*	22	17	26	20
Fats and Oils**	12	11	15	14
Fish, Meat and Poultry	145	133	174	161
Fish and products	109	99	112	97
Meat and products	28	23	52	44
Poultry	8	9	11	19
Eggs	8	9	13	15
Milk and Milk Products	34	24	56	64
Whole Milk	30	22	45	48
Milk Products	4	2	11	16
Dried beans, Nuts and Seeds***	9	8	11	11
Vegetables	104	102	91	86
Green Leafy, Yellow Vegetables	32	34	25	25
Other Vegetables	72	68	66	61
Fruits	115	84	123	93
Vitamin-C Rich fruits	31	26	44	39
Other Fruits	84	58	79	54
MISCELLANEOUS	27	16	24	23
Beverages****	13	6	10	11
Condiments	11	9	11	9
Others	3	1	3	2
TOTAL FOOD	863	786	869	819

Table 4. Trends in per capita food consumption (g) by urban and rural residence

\* also includes softdrinks (sugar content), sherbet and similar preparations

\*\* includes coconut grated and coconut milk (fat)

\*\*\* includes mungbeens, soybeans, peanuts & other dried beans, nuts

\*\*\*\* includes coffee, tuba, alcoholic beverages, others

NOTE: Numbers may not add up to totals due to rounding off.

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1987, 1993 Survey population: Nationally representative Samole size: 3, 200 (1987), 4, 050 (1993)

#### Changes in Nutritional Status

Data on the nutritional status of the Filipino population also come from the NNS rounds in 1993, 1998 and 2003 and the Regional Updating of the Nutritional Status of Children in 1989/90, 1992, 1996 and 2001.



FIGURE 4. Trends in the Prevalence of malnutrition among 0 – 5.9 v old children, 1989/90 – 2003.

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1993, 1998, 2003; Regional Updating of the Nutritional Status of Children 1989-90, 1992, 1996, 2001

Survey population: Nationally representative

Sample size: 8, 008 (1989-90), 7, 243 (1992), 24, 000 Household members (1993), 10, 335 (1996) 28, 698 (1998), 10, 634 (2001), 4, 110 (2003) Reference: International Reference Standard/NCHS Growth Reference.

teterencii: International Heterence Standard/NCHS Growth Heterence. Underweight = weight-for-age < -2SD; Wasting = weight-for-height < -2SD;

Stunting = height-for-age < -2SD; Overweight-for-age = weight-for-age > 2SD)

Underweight and stuming still affected three out of every 10 children 0 – 5.9 years of age (Fig. 4) and 6 – 10.9 (Fig. 5) years old. Using 2005 opulation projections based on 2000 census data from the National Statistics Office, there are 3.2 million underweight 0 – 5.9 year-old children and 2.4 million underweight 6 – 10.9 year-old children; and 3.4 and 3.3 million stunted 0 – 5.9 and 6 – 10.9 year-old children; specification of the state of the stat

There has been however a declining prevalence of undernutrition, specifically underweight and stunting, in both groups of children from 1989/90 to 2003. Within this period, the proportion of underweight 0 – 5 year-old children declined 7.6 percentage points, from 345 percent to 26.9 percent (0.58 percentage point reduction a year); among the 6 – 10 yearold children, the prevalence of underweight was reduced by 8.6 percentage points, from 34.2 percent to 25.6 percent (or 0.66 percentage point reduction a year). Stunting among 0 – 5 and 6 – 10 year-old children also declined 10.0 (0.77 percentage point a year) and 9.0 (0.69 percentage point a year) percentage points, respectively. Meanwhile, the picture of acute malnutrion (wasing) among 0 – 5 year-old children has not improved. The prevalence increased from 5.0 percent in 1980/190 to 5.3 percent in 2003.





Source:National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1893, 1998, 2003 Regional Updating of the Nutritional Status of Children 1989-90, 1992, 1996, 2001 Survey population: Stationally representative Sample Saize: 4, 300 (1989-90), 5, 636 (1992), 24, 000 Household members (1993), 15, 530 (1996), 3, 040 (1988), 1, 791 (2001), 3, 456 (2002)

Overweight, although affecting a smaller proportion among the children (1.4 percent and 1.3 percent of the 0-59 and 6-109 year-old children, respectively), has increased significantly between 1998 and 2003. The prevalence of overweight among both groups of children in 1989/90 and 1998 was unchanged. It increased in 2003 by nearly three-fold among the 0-59 year-old children and more than 10-fold among 6-10.9 year-old children from the 1998 levels.

Among adults, undernutrition or Chronic Energy Deficiency (BMI < 18.5) affected 12.3 percent in 2003. Based on the WHO cut-off of 3-5 percent BMI below 18.5 for a healthy

Reference: International Reference Standard/NCHS Growth Reference. Underweight = weight-for-age <2SD; Sturting = height-for-age <-2SD; Overweight-for-age = weight-for-age > 2SD)

adult population (WHO, 1995), adult undernutrition in the Philippines is also a nutrition problem that needs to be addressed. On the other hand, 24 percent of adults are overweight (8ML 25 < 30) or obsce (8ML 3 > 30), with more females (7.7 a percent) than males (20) percent) who are affected. While progress in reducing adult undernutrition has been show (about 10 percent reduction over 10 years), adult overweight and obesity has been increasing steadily v2 00 percent between each fire-year interval from 1995 - 2003.

Gender/Age		Underweigt	nt <sup>'</sup>	Over	weight/Obese	
	1993	1998	2003	1993	1998	2003
			% Preval	ence		
Male	11.5	11.1	10.6	14.4	17.0	20.9
Female	16.1	15.4	14.2	18.6	23.3	27.3
M&F						
20-39	11.0	11.2	10.6	14.4	18.5	20.6
40-59	14.5	12.0	10.4	23.2	25.3	30.8
60 & over	29.1	25.4	23.4	11.4	14.6	19.1
All	13.9	13.2	12.3	16.6	20.2	24.0

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1993, 1998, 2003

Survey population: Nationally representative

Sample size: 24, 000 Household members (1993), 9, 299 (1998), 11, 696 (2003)

Reference: Underweight/Chronic Energy Deficiency (CED) - BMI < 18.5, Overweight/Obese - BMI \* 25

Using the BMI cut-off points recommended by the WHO Expert Consultation to determine public health and clinical action in relation to cardiovascular disease (i.e., BMI 23 – 27.4 – Modente Kis; BMI 3-27.5 – High to Very High Risk), the proportion of Flüjnon adults with moderate to very high risk to co-morbidities related to cardiovascular disease reaches even more significant proportions (Table 6) than looking simply at figures of overweight or obseivs (Table 5).

Meanwhile, micronutrient deficiencies are a public health problem in the Philippines. Based on the 2003 Marino Nutrition Survey, vitamin A deficiency affected 40 Percent of 6-59 months old children, 18 percent of prognant women and 20 percent of latenting mothers. Anemia, which is a measure of iron deficiency, affects 66 percent of infants from to to less than one year of age; this tast is higher than in 1998 (57 percent). Although the anemia prevalence among pregnant (44 percent), and lacating women (42 percent) was lower in 2003 than in 1998 (51 percent and 46 percent, respectively), the levels all indicate a serious public health problem. A major reason for the continued high prevalence of vitamin A deficiency and anemia is the inadequate intake of dietary vitamin A and iron. This situation exists despite an one-going fortification program of commercially available and highly processed foods, and the fortification of staples (oil, four, sugar and rice) as a population approach to manage microourient deficiencies.

TABLE 6. Distribution of adults by cut-off points for determining public health and clinical action related to co-morbidities of CVD based on BMI					
	CED	Low Risk	Moderate Risk	High Risk	
Age Group (in Years)	(<18.5)	(18.5 to <23.0)	(23.0 to ≤27.4)	(>=27.5)	
20-39	10.6	53.0	27.4	9.0	
40-59	10.4	40.6	34.B	14.1	
60 and Over	23.6	43.7	24.2	8.5	
All	12.4	47.4	29.5	10.7	

Reference: WHO Expert Consultation, 2004: CED (BMI < 18.5), Low Risk (BMI - 18.5 to < 23.0), Moderate Risk (BMI - 23.0 to ≤27.4) High Risk (BMI ≥ = 27.5)

#### Trends in Prevalence of Diet-Related CVD Risk Factors 1998-2003

While the dietary changes have been slow in contributing to significant impacts on the microautrient situation, particularly VAD and anemia, the same has began to pose a growing threat to the health of the population in terms of chronic fifestyle-related diseases, including cardiovascular diseases (CVD). Data in the has five years indicate increasing prevalence of nutrition-tealted risk factors to CVD among Filipino adults 20) years of age and over, including overweight and obsity which were discussed eartier, hypertension, chylipinenia and diabeter.

#### Hypertension

The proportion of Filipino adults who were diagnosed as hypertensive based on blood pressure (Systolc BP > 140 nm Hg or Diasotic BP > 90 nm Hg) in the 2003 NNS was 22.5 percent. The prevalence of hypertension among Filipino adults in that year had significantly increased from 21 percent in 1998, and remained high among the middleaged adults and delety – from 26.4 percent among the 61-49 years, 40.2 percent among the 50-59 years, 45.8 percent among the 60-69 years and 56 percent among the 70 years old and over arg groups.

Gender	Age group	1998	2003
		Prevalence in %	
M & F	20-29	11.3	8.8
	30-39		14.1
	40-49	29.0	26.4
	50-59		40.2
	60-69	44.3	45.8
	70+		56.0
	All	21.0	22.5

#### TABLE 7. Trends in the prevalence of hypertension among Filipino adults 20 years old and over. 1998 and 2003

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1998, 2003

Survey population: Nationally representative

Sample size: 9, 299 (1998), 20 - 39 y = 1,402, 40 - 59 y = 1,021, \* 60 y = 2,330 (2003)

Reference: Hypertension (Systolic > 140 mm Hg; Diastolic > 90 mm Hg)

#### Dyslipidemia

The prevalence of hypercholesterolemia among Filipino adults in 2003 was 8.5 percent, which is more than twice the nate of four percent in 1998. There was a significant increase in the prevalence of hypercholesterolemia between the periods particularly among the middleaged and older adults, and the condition remained significantly higher among the middle-age adults (10 – 20 percent) and the delevely (15 percent) thus nyounger adults.

The prevalence of elevated LDL-cholesterol among Filipino adults in 2003 was 3.7 percent. This is significantly higher than, and also nearly twice, the 1998 rate of two percent. By age category, the prevalence of elevated LDL-cholesterol was significantly increased within the five-vera period among the middle-aged adults and the elderly.

The increasing trend in hypercholesterolemia and elevated LDL-cholesterol may be associated with the increase in consumption of animal-based foods, particularly meats, and possibly fars and oils, as well as the decreasing fruit and vegetable consumption.

There is also no evidence of an increasing prevalence of elevated trighyteridies that could be associated with the increasing consumption of fits and oils (which is mostly cocount oil) in Philippine households. Overall, less than one prevent (0.7 percent) of Filipino adults had elevated trigyverides, which was only slightly lower than the 1998 rate (0.8 prevent).

Age group	Elevate choles			ted LDL- esterol <sup>2</sup>	Low HDL- cholesterol <sup>2</sup>	Elev triglyd	ated cerides
	1998	2003	1998	2003	2003	1998	2003
20-29	3.0	3.3	1.7	1.5	2.9	0.4	0.4
30-39	1	6.0		2.1	3.2		0.4
40-49	5.8	9.6	2.5	4.5	4.9	1.4	1.3
50-59		19.9		8.3	3.8		1.2
60-69	4.11	5.6	2.3	7.4	2.9	0.4	0.8
70+		15.4		7.0	4.2		1.1
All	4.0	8.5	2.0	3.7	3.5	0.8	0.7

TABLE 8. Trends in dyslipidemia among Filipino adults 20 years old and over, 1998 and 2003.

#### Diabetes

The Philippine data also show no evidence of a ternd towards an increasing prevalence of Dabets Mellins. It is surprised in the threw says on increase in the prevalence of Dabets Mellins while obesity increased significantly. The proportion of Filippino adults with Diabetes Mellins was 3.9 percent in 1998, and 3.4 percent in 2003. However, the proportion of Filippino adults with Impaired Fasting Blood Glucose, a pre-dabetic condition that pusts increased risk to diabetes, was 3.2 percent in 2003 (FBS = 100 – 125 mg/dL) compared to only 2.5 percent in 1996 (FBS = 110 – 125 mg/dL).

#### TABLE 9. Trends in the prevalence of Impaired Fasting Blood Glucose and Diabetes Mellitus among Filipino adults, 20 years old and over, 1998 and 2003

Gender Age group	15	98*	20	03 <sup>6</sup>		
	% Prevalence					
	Impaired Fasting Glucose <sup>®</sup>	Diabetes Mellitus Glucose <sup>b</sup>	Impaired Fasting	Diabetes Mellitus		
M & F	20-29	1.9	2.6	1.2	0.7	
	30-39			2.1	2.0	
	40-49	3.1	5.4	5.0	4.9	
	50-59			5.7	8.9	
	60-69	3.2	6.2	5.6	6.3	
	70+			6.2	5.1	
	All	2.5	3.9	3.2	3.4	

Source: National Nutrition Survey, Philippines, 1998, 2003

Survey population: Nationally representative

Sample size: 9, 299 (1998), 20 - 39 y = 1,402, 40 - 59 y = 1,021, 3 60 y = 2,330 (2003)

Reference: Impaired Fasting Glucose: (FBS = 110 - 125 mg/dL, WHO Technical Report Series 1985) ;

<sup>9</sup>(FBS = 100 - 125 mg/dL, ADA). Diabetes mellitus: (FBS <sup>2</sup> 126 mg/dL)

Nutrition Transition in the Philippines

#### Conclusion

The dietary changes that have occurred in Philippine households in the last 25 years are reflections of the increasing urbanization of the country. Urban dises have been associated with increasingly Westernized food habins, such as high-fat diets, processed foods and refined earbohydrates. Data from the Philippines exhibit a pattern of increasing intakes of fas and oils, supars and symps, meats and processed meat products, and other creatisd and termine products (including breads and bakery products, norolles, and snack foods made from wheat flour), and declining fruit and vegetable consumption. It is likely that these trends will continue given the scalaring urbanization of the Philippine population, coupled with increasing availability and variety of processed and fast foods, the frequency of eating outside the home, the use of computers and computer games can dhe influence of mass media.

While the improvements in diets have been in the direction of dietary goals and Philippine nutritional guidelines, including increasing the intakes of animal foods ("to increase good quality proteins and absorbable iron to satisfy nutritional requirements") and fats and oils ("as a remedy to caloric deficiency and to help lower the risk of vitamin A deficiency by facilitating its absorption and utilization"), the Philippines' progress in achieving the Millennium Development Goals still falls short of the rate necessary to meet the target. In spite of increased consumption of the food sources of iron, calcium and riboflavin, as demonstrated by increasing intake of animal source foods - including meats and dairy - these nutrients remain inadequate. The trade-offs of increased consumption of animal foods and fats and oils are increased cholesterol and saturated fats in diets, and increased overweight in children. adolescents and adults when coupled with sedentary lifestyles. The trend towards increasing obesity, hypercholesterolaemia and elevated LDL-cholesterol, which are known risk factors for CVD, is alarming. There has been increasing mortality from diseases of the heart and vascular system, which in the last 10 years have become the top two leading causes of death in the country. While consumption of animal foods and fats and oils, prevalence of obesity, hypercholesterolaemia and elevated LDL-cholesterol, and mortality from CVD and other non-communicable diseases (NCDs) are moving in the same direction, the consumption of fruits and vegetables and other traditional staples such as maize and root crops has steadily declined over time.

Although there has been progress in addressing undermutition in the Philippines, it is still a problem of far greater magnitude than overmutition is, especially among children. Out of than 30 are anatemic, 40 are vitamins A deficient, and only one is overweight. Our of every 100 children aged size to 10 years, 27 are underweight, 37 are sunted, 37 are anatemic, 41 are iodime deficient, and again only one is overweight. The burden of undermutition is also greater among 110-12/vara odisk and 13-to-19/vare-odisk, with six underweight to every overweight child in the former, and four underweight to every overweight child in the latter age group. Among adults, on the other hand, there are twice as many cases of overweight as underweight.

The evidence that the country is facing a double burden of malnutrition is seen in terms of the coexistence at the population level of undernutrition among children and the elderly with overnutrition among adults. The malnutrition double burden within households, e.g., an underweight child and an overweight mother, is also reported to be emerging, with prevalence of 8.2 percent in one poor urban community, rising to about 20 percent in a high-income urban community (Agdeppa, Laña and Barba, 2003). There is increasing scientific evidence to support Barker's hypothesis that chronic diseases such as CVD, diabetes and hypertension in later life may have their origins in fetal cardiovascular, metabolic and endocrine adaptation to intrauterine undernutrition (Aggett and Schofield, 2000). The prevalence of low birth weight, which is associated to fetal undernutrition, was estimated to be about nine to 11 percent in the 1990-1997 period, rising to about 18 percent in 1995-2000. Based on this hypothesis, the increasing prevalence of NCDs may also be associated with maternal and fetal undernutrition. Thus addressing undernutrition from early life including pre-pregnancy and maternal undernutrition, will contribute to reducing NCDs in the country. That overnutrition increases with are should also emphasize that programs for the prevention of overweight/obesity and NCDs in later life should start in children, particularly increasing physical activity and exercise.

#### References

- Agdeppa IA, Laña RD, Barba CVC. (2003). A case study on dual forms of malnutrition among selected households in District 1,Tondo, Manila. Asia Pacific J Clin Nutr; 12 (4): 438-446.
- Aggett PJ, Schofield L. (2000). Early nutrition and adult health: how strong are the links? Mal I Nutr; 6 (2): 181-187.
- Cerdeña CM, Laña RD, Molano WL, Chavez MC, Nones CA. (2002). Philippine Nutrition Facts and Figures Supplement 1: 2002 Update of the Nutritional Status of 0 – 10 yearold Filipino Children. FNRI – DOST. July.
- Food and Nutrition Research Institute, Department of Science and Technology (FNRI-DOST). (2000). Nutritional Guidelines For Filipinos (NGF). FNRI-DOST, Taguig, Metro Manila.
- Food and Nutrition Research Institute, Department of Science and Technology. (FNRI-DOST). (2001). Philippine Nutrition Facts and Figures. April, Manila.
- Food and Nutrition Research Institute, Department of Science and Technology (FNRI-DOST), (1976). Recommended Dietary Allowance (RDA) for Filipinos. FNRI-DOST, Taçuig, Metro Manila.

- Food and Nutrition Research Institute, Department of Science and Technology (FNRI-DOST), (1989). Recommended Dietary Allowance (RDA) for Filipinos. FNRI- DOST, Taguig, Metro Manila.
- Food and Nutrition Research Institute, Department of Science and Technology (FNRI-DOST), (2002). Recommended Energy and Nutrient Intakes (RENI). FNRI- DOST, Tacuig, Metro Manila.
- NEDA. (2005). Medium Term Philippines Development Plan 2005–2010 (draft). Manila, National Economic Development Authority (NEDA).
- Pedro MRA, Cerdeña CM, Constantino MAS, Patalen MLP, Palafox EF, Delos Reyes CM, Castillo EV, De Leon JV, Barba CVC, (2005). Sixth National Nutrition Survey: Philippines, 2003. National Food Consumption Survey: Household Level. Food and Nutrition Research Institute. Department of Science and Technology. Iamuary, Manila.
- Pedro MRA, Cerdeña CM, Patalen MLP, Nones CA, Vargas MB, Laña RD, Castillo EV, Barba CVC. (2005). Sixth National Nutrition Survey : Philippines, 2003. Update on the Nutritional Status of Filipinos. Food and Nutrition Research Institute, Department of Science and Technology, Ianuary, Manila.
- Reyes, C.M. (2003). Country development programming framework for the Philippines: assessment of the social sector. (unpublished paper)
- Templo OM. (2003). Country Development Programming Framework for the Philippines: Philippine Development Context and Challenges. (unpublished paper)



### Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

Nanette Lee" and Linda S. Adair"

#### Abstract

The trendency of men and women to work in different occupations contributes to the persisting gender wage gap. This effect is suggested to be greater at younger ages as people begin their carcers. However, this has not been ascertained in the Philippines because of data paucity, particularly among the youth which account for one-fifth of the country's employed population. Using 2005 Cebu Longitudinal Health and Nutrifion Survey data on 924 employed youth ages 20-22 years, we examined the: (1) extent of occupational gender segregation using the Karmel and MacLachkan indee (1) (2) (2) domand and supply side factors corcupational gender segregation that is wore among rule assisters. Sourcenstonial segregation is significantly associated with wage rate inequality, even after controlling for human capital and employment resultements.

#### Introduction

Gender equality is essential for sustainable development. This has been a central theme in global conferences such as the International Conference on Population and Development Held in Cairo in 1994 and the Wold Conference on Women held in Beijing in 1995. One of

Ph.D. candidate, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, USA; Senior Research Associate, University of San Carlos Office of Population Studies, Inc., Cebu, Philippines.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Research Fellow, Carolina Population Center, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, USA.

the areas where efforts are tangeted to promote gender equality and empower worms is in the labor market. Women and men tend to work in different occupations, and this segregation has been suggested to cause the continuing discrepancies in wages smong men and women. Estimates of the wage gap attributed to occupational gender sugregation range from five percent to 40 percent depending on the data and assistical methodology, with about 20 to 25 percent considered as the most reasonable estimate (Hakim 1992; Macpherson and Hirsch 1995; Preston 1999).

The Philippines has been making significant strides towards women empowerment and gender equality. Gender concerns are being mainstreamed in government policies and programs. Labor participation rate of women has been steadily increasing in recent years, from 50.5 percent in 19% to 54.9 percent in 2001 (ILO 2003). However, gender segregation in the labor market persists. Employment data compiled by the Asian Development Bata (ADB 2004) showed gender segregation following socially ascribed roles and responsibilities of men and women. Women were predisored to be employed in naturating functions, such as in private households as housekeepers, in education, and in health and social work. By occupation group, the highest concentrations of females relative to males were among laborers and as unskilled works. This segregation saggests poorer quility of women's work since these occupations do not usually have good terms of employment (i.e., overtime pay, health benefits, tenue).

The youth population (ages 15 to 24 years) is a significant economic force in the Philippines. The working youth accounted for 20 percent of the total amployed persons in 2005. At the same time, this group contributed almost half of the total unemployed persons. Young women had a lower labor force participation rate (LPPR) compared to young men (38 percent and 60 percent, respectively) (NSO 2005). A 2002 report on the Filippino youth found that the employment gender disparity is more pronounced in rural areas, where young women's LPPR was 35 percent raginst men's 64 percent in 2002 (PPCCM 2002).

A study (Warren and others 2002) on occupational stratification using a life course approach in Wisconsin suggests that gender effect on occupation is greater at younger ages – gender matters most when people are beginning their careers. From currer entry, more need to work: a corosa age groups, the effect of gender suggegizion on wages was highest among the younger ages (16-22) years) where occupational crowing has been postulated to be more severe (Macpherson and Hinch 1995). Whether this is true in the Philippinse cannot be ascertained, because information on the extent of segregation, particularly among youth workers, has been lacking, Agains this context, the authors in in cCI ) determine the presence and acture of occupational choice, and (3) estimate the effect of occupational gender segregation on Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

wage rate among the Filipino youth as they undergo a critical but understudied life stage transition.

The paper is organized as follows: (1) overview of the theoretical perspectives on occupational gender segregation and the Philippine youth labor market; (2) data and methods used in the analyses; (3) results; and (4) conclusions.

#### Theoretical Perspectives

#### Occupational gender segregation

Occupational gender segregation has persisted over time and is evident in all nations of the world (Grusky and England 2004; Moshe and Frank 1999; Preston 1999; Rosenfeld and Spenner 1992). Anker (1997) noted two major reasons why occupational gender segregation should be a continuing concern. First, it is a major source of labor market rigidity and economic inefficiency. Exclusion of majority of laborers on majority of occupations is a waste of human resources. Second, it is detrimental to women since segregation perpetuates negative views of both men and women, consequently affecting women's status, income, education, skills (Anker 1997). The key consequence associated with occupational gender segregation is the segregation of the payment structures and the persistent sex differential in earnings with women on the negative or lower end. The proportion of the gender wage gap (five to 40 percent) attributed to occupational segregation is reportedly higher than the proportion explained by work interruptions (15 percent) and comparable worth wage upgrading (five percent) (Hakim 1992; Preston 1999). It therefore follows that the theories formulated to explain occupational gender segregation are focused on explaining the gender nav gap. As discussed by Anker (1997), occupational gender segregation theories can be classified into three broad categories: (1) neo-classical and human capital theories; (2) institutional and labor market segmentation theories; and (3) non-economic and feminist or gender theories.

#### The Neoclassical Theory

This theory assumes rational choice on the parts of both the employer and the worker. Further, it assumes that labor markets function efficiently. The workers assess their own assess against constraints and take into account their preferences in deciding to seek the best paying job while the employer's main goal is to maximize profits by minimizing costs and maximizing productivity but is willing to pay the workers' marginal product because of labor market competition. On the supply side, this theory places high values on productivityrelated variables such as docuation and previous work experience. For the nochasical theoritis, women rightfully have lower pay because of their lower productivity. Further, this theory stresses the responsibility of women in terms of housework and childrate rults through willing to choose occupations that have relatively low penalties for temporary withdrawals from the labor force, i.e., occupations that offer flexible working hours. On the demand side, human capital theorists believe that the factors that influence workers' preferences (education, skills) for particular jobs influence the preference of employers. Therefore, jobs requiring higher education and work skills are offered to men since they supposedly have better education and skills rather than women. In addition, the stereotypical role of women as homemakers and caretakers can lead to higher indirect costs - i.e., compared to men, women will have higher absenteeism, turn-over rate, and require other non-wage benefits such as crèches for their children, separate toilets, etc. Neo-classical complementary theories have also emerged - the employer's taste for discrimination and compensating differentials. Employer's taste for discrimination (Becker 1971) assumes that employers are inherently prejudiced against certain groups, and usually these groups are those who are different because of visible characteristics such as are, sex, race, etc. When employers hire someone that they are prejudiced against, it presents higher cost. The compensating differentials model states that women prefer occupations that have good working conditions and fringe benefits and avoid occupations with unpleasant and dangerous conditions - these will lead women to accept lower paving jobs with high non-wage pav (Anker 1997).

#### The Institutional and Labor Market Segmentation Theories

These theories assume that institutions (i.e., unions, large enterprises) significantly influence the hiring, firing, promoting and paying of employes. They also believe that labor markets as eggmented. The dual market drow segments the market into primary and secondary sectors – the former includes jobs that are relatively good in terms of pays, security, opportunities for advancement and working conditions while the latter includes jobs that rend to be poor in pay, chances for promotion and working conditions. Further, primary sectors are believed to be protected from competition unlike secondary sectors where competition is firece. This segmentation model then is used to explain occupational gender segregation: female occupations have lower wages because of overcrowding while male occupations have lower competition therefore enjoy higher wage rates. The statistical distribution theory is based on the assumption that there are differences in the productivity of distinct groups and high sectual and information costs associated with recruitment and promotion decisions. It is therefore believed to be rational for employers to discrimate against low-productivity owdres such as women to user on decision-main costs (Akner 1997).

#### Feminist/Gender Theories

These theories center on non-market variables that put women at a disadvantage in the labor market, such as the patriarchal nature of society where women are seen as subordinates. This patriarchal ordering and the division of responsibilities contribute to why women Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

accumulate lower human capital and skills. Women are viewed to be responsible for home and childcare while men are the breadwinners, this stereotyping can then help explain why it is perceived that women have lesser need for education and work experience. This thereory further shows how female occupations mirror common stereotypical roles. For example, women's caring nature, skill and experience in household work, greater manual deterting, greater honessy and attractiveness can qualify her for occupations such as murses, doctors, social worker, teacher, maid, housekeeper, cleaner, etc. while women's lesser physical strength, lesser ability in math and science, and lesser willingense to face danger can diqualify her for occupations such as engineer, mathematician, driller, miner, construction worker, etc. (Anker 1997: Anker and Hein 1985).

#### The Filipino youth

The Filipino youth, ages 15 to 24 years, comprising 15.1 million (~ 20 percent) out of the 765 million (Filippinos in 200%, half of this youth population was between ages 20.42 years. With an annual growth rate of 2.1 percent, the Philippine population is expected to double in 33 years. As regards to education, about 42 percent were attending school (NSO 2002; POPCOM 2002). The fermal youth hal relatively higher educational attainment than the male youth. In fact, young fermales were more likely to have college education than males, regardless of age (Opens and Bergi 2003). In 2006, the youth comprised about a third of the conurry's working age population; with about half of them already in the labor force. While this group accounts for 20 percent of the total number of employed individuals, 44 percent of the unemployed were youths (NSO 2005). The latter suggests lack of job opportunities for the younger population, especially for the young women in rural areas; youth unemployment rate gradually increased in the past is years piron to the 2002 youth survey (fictica 2003). The Filipino youth's significant share in the labor force underscores their influence in the direction of the vool-economic development of the country.

Among Asian counties included in a cross-national study, the Philippines was reported to have the most gendre segregated occupations as measured by the index of dissimilative (Moshe and Frank 1999). Wage differentials between men and women have been reported and is a serious concerns but have no been analyzed in the context of occupational gendre agregation (ADB 2004). And as previously stated, few, if any, have examined working preferences and concernstion among the younger population – a population that comprise a significant portability of the theories of occupational gendre applicability of the theories of occupational gender segregation for a population where women are generally more highly desized than men but at the same time a population what still holds strong streetoppical views as regards to female/male regionsibilities and occupations (ADB 2004; Ogen and Beria 2002; POPCOM 2002).

#### Data and Methods

The authors used data gathered by the Cdou Longitudinal Health and Nutrition Survey (CLFINS) on a community-based sample or individuals how hereven [1938 s461 in metropolitud Cdou, the second largest metropolitan area in the Philippines. A stratified, single stage sampling was used to select 33 harangays (smallest administrative unit) – 17 urban and 16 rural barangays. Households in the selected barangays were surveyed and information was collected on all births occurring between May 1, 1983 and April 30, 1984. The CLFINS collected individual, household and community level data through face-to-face interviews using structured questionnaires in 1983-84, 1994, 1998, 2002, and 2005. This paper is a coss-sectional analysis utilizing data from the last survey for comol when participants were young adults.

Of the original ochor of 30,80 single/we births, 1,912 (1,008 males, 904 females) remained in the 2005 survey; 1,048 were working at the time of the survey but we focused on the 924 paid workers (ges 20-22 years). About 56 percent of the analysis sample were male, most (95 percent) were not currently in school with about two-thids having graduated from high school and only seven percent from collegs. Urban residents and those who were never married made up majority of the sample (69 percent and 71 percent, respectively). Less than half had previous work experience, most were employees and working full-time, and about 45 percent were in crafts and production occupations.

Selected characteristics	n	Percent
Aale	517	55.95
Married	268	29.00
Not schooling	878	95.02
araduated high school	607	65.69
Jrban resident	638	69.05
With work experience	385	41.67
Employee (not self-employed)	812	87.88
Vorking full-time	695	75.22
Decupation:		
Administrative, executive,		
managerial, professional	51	5.52
Clerical	101	10.93
Sales	127	13.74
Farming, fishing ,hunting, mining	23	2.49
Transportation, communication services	78	8.44
Crafts, production	413	44.70
Service, sports	131	14.18

Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

Details of the analysis methods employed are discussed under each aim as different segregation measures are employed. Aim 1 focuses on measuring segregation at the macro level while Aims 2 and 3 assess characteristics associated with and the effects of segregation measured at the micro level.

#### Aim 1

For Aim 1, which is the dutomine the presence and extent of ecopytimal gender appropriate, we used the Karmel and MacLachhan Index (1988)<sup>1</sup>. This index is based on the understanding that supergation means a different distribution of women and men across occupational categories, and the more equal the distribution over occupations, the less sugregation. The Karmel and MacLachhan Index (1) can be computed using:

$$I_{p} = \left(\frac{1}{T}\right)\sum_{j=1}^{s} \left|F_{j} - a\left(M_{j} + F_{j}\right)\right|$$

where T and a are total employment and the female share of total employment, respectively, and F and M are the number of female and male employees in the tho occupation. The number of females in occupation j under occupational integration is a(M + F). This index is interpreted as the proportion of the workforce (persons in employment), which would need to change occupations to remove segregation taking into account the female and male shares of occupations. The index represents the level of employment that would have to relocate, with replacement, so achieve 0 segregation. The 1 index range from 0 in the case of complete equality where women's employment is distributed similarly to men's across occupations to. The dcase of others 2003; Karmel and MacLachan 1988; Warts 1999; Warts 1998; Warts 1998

In this study, we used the 2-3 digit Philippine Standard Occupation Codes (most detailed, lowes: Icevel of cocupational grouping available) to classify each respondents work. Our respondents were employed in 126 occupation groups. These occupation groups were then classified into the seven major occupational groups (see details below) that were used to compute for the 1. We also estimated segregation indices stratified by characteristic sthat may affect the extrêt of segregation such as residence, employment type (Emerek and others 2003) and echooling status.

#### Aim 2

In Aim 2, which is to examine napply and domand ide factors associated with occupational clovier, we grouped occupations into three occupational gender-types to represent the dependent variable – integrated, fernale dominated, and male dominated occupations.

#### Dependent variable

The CLHNS coded nine major occupational groups; (1) professional, technical workers; (2) administrative, executive and managerial workers; (3) clerical workers; (4) sales workers; (5) farmers, fishermen, hunters, loggers; (6) miners, guarrymen; (7) workers in transport and communications: (8) craftsmen, production-process workers; and (9) service and sports workers. To increase sample size per group, we combined groups (1) n = 9 and (2) n = 42, and combined groups (5) n = 21 and (6) n = 2 resulting in seven major occupational groups (see Table 1 for detailed distribution). These occupational groups were then categorized into three occupational gender-types: integrated, female dominated, or male dominated occupations. There is no standard way of allocating occupations into gender-type categories: examples of the different ways in which these (or similar) categories have been defined in the literature include: (1) determining an occupation to be atypical when a majority of the employed are of the other gender (Corcoran and others 1984; Rosenfeld 1984) with some using set cut-offs such as 70 percent, 80 percent or 90 percent (Melkas and Anker 1997); (2) looking at patterns of mobility to identify blocks that are internally homogenous (Jacobs 1989; Rosenfeld and Spenner 1992); (3) defining integrated jobs as jobs falling within a certain proportion band (i.e., 10, 20, 40 percent) around the average female share of the workforce (Hakim 1992); and, (4) considering female representation in the labor force and classifying occupations that have a given degree of female over/under representation as 'male' or 'female' (Beller 1984; Rytina and Bjanchi 1984).

In a similar thread with the last definition, we determined occupational gender types as follows: an occupation was classified (formale dominated if its (formale stare of employment was higher than the overall (formale share of employment, otherwise the occupation was classified as integrated (Warts 1988)). For example, we classified an occupational group to be female dominated if the female share of employment in this particular group was significantly higher (alpha set at 0.05) than the over-all share of female employment (44 percent). On the occupation was classified as male dominated. The resulting classification corresponded well with the Hakin (1992) classification scheme of 20 percent band around the (formale share of occupation. Integrated occupations were cooled 0<sup>7</sup>, female dominated occupations were cooled 1, and male colominated occupations were

#### Explanatory sariables

Supply side explanatory wratables included traditional human capital variables of education and work experience, family structure variables such as living with mother and marital status, geographic residence (urban-trual), and job-finding network. For demand side explanatory variables, we considered job availability as perceived by the young adults, and requirements for education, work experience, physical exertion and work time. Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

To gather information on these demand side explanatory variables, the study asked the respondents about the requirements/qualifications necessary for their current jobs as regards to these variables. Operationalization of supply and demand side predictors are presented in Table 2.

Predictor	Measure
SUPPLY SIDE	
Human capital	
Education	Number of completed years of formal education
In school	Currently schooling/studying 1 = yes (46), 0 = no (878)
Work experience	Worked previously 1 = yes (385), 0 = no (539)
Family structure	
Marital status	Currently/Previously married = 1 (268),
	never married = 0 (656)
Living with mother	Living with mother $1 = yes$ (690), $0 = no$ (234)
Geographic residence	
Urban residence	Urban resident = 1 (638), rural resident = 0 (286)
Job finding network	
Found job by himself	Nobody helped to find job = 1 (361),
	somebody helped to find job = 0 (563)
DEMAND SIDE	
Job availability	
Only job available	Reason cited for choosing job:
	only job available = 1 (406),
	other reasons = 0 (518)
Human capital requirement	
Requires at least high	Educational requirement of job at
school graduate	least high school graduate 1 = yes (393) ,
)	0 = no (531)
Requires work experience	Job requires previous work experience 1 = yes (25)
	0 = no (667)
Physical requirement	
Physical exertion	Main job activity requires moderate/heavy physical
	exertion 1 = yes (417), 0 = no (507)
Time requirement	
Time requirement Full time job	Works at least 40 hrs/wk 1 = yes (695),

"() - n in each category

#### Analysis approach

To identify supply and/or supply side factors significantly associated with our 3 - level occupational gender type outcome (nominal, with no ordering assumed), we used polytomous logistic regression. This simultaneously models the log of the odds that the occupation is female dominated (divided by the odds that the occupation is integrated) and the log of the odds that the outcome is male dominated (divided by the odds that the occupation is integrated). In contrast to using two or separate dichotomous logistic models, using a polytomous model utilizes the data for all categories of the outcome variable in a single model structure, considering all levels of the outcome simultaneously (Rothman and Greenland 1998). First we ran a model with supply side factors only to determine significant respondent characteristics associated with occupational 'choice', then we entered demand side variables to the model to determine what employer/occupation characteristics influenced the outcome as well as to examine if the addition of these factors modulates the supply side effects. Further, we performed the analyses stratified by gender to see if the same predictors influenced occupational choice among males and females. Lastly, self-employed individuals may have different decision patterns, influences and job market constraints than those who depend on outside employment. Therefore, we assessed sensitivity of results to the inclusion of self-employed respondents by performing all analyses with and without this group (n = 112), coded 1 if self-employed, 0 if an employee. Most self-employed respondents were in transportation and communication (36.6 percent) and in sales (28.6 percent) jobs.

#### Aim 3

Aim is is a stimute the dipt of comparisonal grader segregation on sugger that among the Tabipian yandh. To operationalize the outcomers, may eaper broary, we divide self-resported sould weekly earnings by the usual number of hours worked per week – both pertaining to the main execupation. The local currency, Philippine peso, was used in the analyses. The main exposure of interest, occupational generate segregation (represented by occupational gender type) and the control variables, human capital characteristics such as education and work experience, and geographic residence were operationalized at perviously described.

Multivariate regression models were employed to estimate the effect of being in a genderdominated occupation on wage rates. Heckman selection models were used to account for potential selection bias that may have resulted from limiting our study to puld workers. For example, the respondent's decision not to work (therefore not having puld wages and excluded in the sample) could be influenced by reservation wages that are higher than the offer wages – therefore it is possible that those who were not in the sample could have had higher wages than those who were accually in the sample if they chose to work. The Heckman selection model assumes an underlying regression relationship:
$y = x\hat{a} + u$  (regression equation)

The dependent y variable (wage rate), is not always observed but the dependent variable for observation i is observed if:

$$Za + u_2 > 0$$
 (selection equation) where  
 $u_1 \sim N (0, \acute{0})$  and  $u_2 \sim N (0, \acute{0})$ , corr  $(u_1, u_2) = it$ 

When ñ ? 0, then the regression equation will yield biased results while the Heckman will provide consistent, asymptotically efficient estimates for the parameters in such models (Gronau 1974; Heckman 1976; StataCorp 1999).

Similar to the analysis approach used for Aim 2, we assessed the effect of having selfemployed respondents by estimating effects with and without this group.

# Results

## Presence and extent of occupational gender segregation

There is occupational gender segregation among Filipino youth. As measured by the I index shown in Table 3, about 279 percent of the sample needed to with occupations in tensore segregation; segregation was worse among those still in school, 43 cases of them (I = 41.3 percent), living in rual acase (I = 94.3 percent) and were self-employed (I = 340) percent) (Table 3). It is noteworthy that the index value estimates are substantial and within the range as or slightly ligher than the national estimates for most E.U. countries flowers to have relative high livels of segregation and for Japan Emered and Ones E.U. countries flowers England 2004). However, since the index is not margin-free and can be influenced by occupational classification and distribution, direct comparison of index estimates should be viewed with caution. Also, we focused on the youth population while most studies have not specifically analyzed this age group.

With the presence of occupational gender sugregation, it is interesting to see how the labor force is distinuted by gender in each occupation or to how which occupations are gender-biased. Table 4 shows clerical and sales occupation groups are female-dominated; farming, fishing, huming, mining and transportation - eflated occupations are male-dominated while administrative, executive, managerial, professional, crafts and production, and service and sports occupational groups are gender-integrated jobs. The classifications of these major occupational groups, although no result/the same are similar to results indicated by previous studies and somehow follow stereotypical expectations posited by the gender/ferminis theorists (ADB 2006; Anker 1997; Crussiy and England 2004; Wars 1995).

TABLE 3. 1 index va	lues by selected	characteristics: 2005	
Group	Index	N	
In school:			
No	.2783	878	
Yes	.4130	46	
Residence:			
Rural	.3433	286	
Urban	.2848	638	
Self-employed:			
No	.2743	812	
Yes	.3004	112	
All	.2787	924	

\*based on 2-3 digit occupation codes: sample distributed in 126 occupations

TABLE 4. Gender distrib	ution by occupa	stional group (r	1=924)	
Occupational group	Male	Female	n	
Administrative, executive,				
managerial, professional	47.06	52.94	51	
Clerical*	28.71	71.29	101	
sales*	45.67	54.33	127	
Farming, fishing ,hunting,				
mining*	95.65	4.35	23	
Transportation,				
communication services*	92.31	7.69	78	
crafts, production	56.42	43.58	413	
Service, sports	60.31	39.69	131	
All	55.95	44.05	924	

TABLE m (n = 024)

\*difference in proportions between total proportion per gender various occupational group proportion p < .05

Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

Looking at the distribution of males and females by occupational gender-type, we observed that the mojority (65 percent of framels, 64 percent of females) was working in ionggrated occupations; interestingly, only about 1-7 percent of females were in male-dominated occupations while about 17 percents of males were in female-dominated occupations; [Thides 5). This shows that females are more likely to be concentrated in specific occupational groups than males and supports the dual market theory as regards to 'crowding' of females. Given the types of occupational groups that were classified as male dominant, it is not surprising that the youch in male-dominated occupations were more likely to be out of school, rural resident, and self-employed. Only about serven percent of urban youth workers were in farming, fishing, hunting, mining, or transportation-related occupations (Table 6); morrover, this proportion was concentrated on the last group as public utility (motorized and nonmonozitod) vehicle drivers and to a lesser extent as survedores. Also, the observations that (1) almost all workers in male-dominated occupations were males and, (2) these compations were more likely in rural areas and held by the self-employed, may be driving the higher 1 midex among these groups.

Occupation gender-type	Male	Female	ALL
	%	96	%
Integrated	64.99	63.64	64.39
Female dominated	16.83	34.64	24.68
Male dominated	18.18	1.72	10.93
N	517	407	924

\*difference in proportions between total proportion per gender versus occupational group proportion p < .05

	In school (%)		Residence (%)		Self-employed (%)		ALL (%)	
Occupation gender-type	No	Yes	Rural	Urban	No	Yes		
Integrated	65.26	47.83	62.94	65.05	69.21	29.46	64.39	
Female dominated	23.69	43.48	17.13	28.06	24.14	28.57	24.68	
Male dominated	11.05	8.70	19.93	6.90	6.65	41.96	10.93	
n	878	46	286	638	812	112	924	

TABLE 6. Percent distribution according to occupation gender type, by selected characteristics, 2005 (n = 924)

# Supply and demand side characteristics associated with occupational gender type

Question 1: What supply and demand side characteristics were significantly associated with being in a female-dominated job versus an integrated job among the youth? (Table 7)

For both genders combined, respondents with more years of formal schooling and those living in urban communities were significantly more likely to be in fernale-dominated than integrated occupations (Odds and 1.55, respectively). When stratified by gender, this pattern is observed only among females but not males. The only supply side characteristic that significantly influenced males to choose female-dominated over genderintegrated occupations was schooling at the time of the survey (OR 2.65).

Including demand side variables did not substantially influence the significant effects of number of years of education and urban residence. Among the supply side characteristics, skills and physical exertion requirements are negatively associated with being in a female dominated occupation. Although we observed the same direction of effects for males, these associations were on statistically significant.

Question 2: What supply and demand side characteristics were significantly associated with being in a male-dominated job versus an integrated job among the youth? (Table 7)

Opposite to what was observed above, number of years of education and urban residence decreased the likelihood of having a male-dominated job versus an integrated job; for males, being in school and being married were also significant factors (OR 2.64, 2.02, respectively). Living in urban areas decreased the odds of having a male-dominated job over an integrated job by as much as 22 percent.

Similar to the first occupational gender type contrast, demand side variables had independent effects on occupational choice and did not significantly attenuate the effects of supply side characteristics. Compared to integrated jobs, male-dominated jobs were more likely chosen because of job (m)availability, more likely to require physical exertion and less likely to have higher educational requirement.

The exclusion of self-employed respondents from the analyses did not change the direction of the relationships among supply and demand side characteristics and occupational gender type. In general, for the supply side variables, the associations involving the docurion variables were strengthened while that of urban residence was slightly decreased. For the demand side variables, the negative associations between education and physical exertion requirements with the odds of choosing a mate-dominated job over an integrated job were wakened.

		genders				
	(n =	924)	Male	is (517)	Female	s (407)
Predictors	Model 1*	Model 2*	Model 1*	Model 2*	Model 1*	Model 2
Female dominated ver	sus integrate	d (reference	»)			
SUPPLY SIDE VARIA	BLES					
No. of years of						
education	1.13**	1.10**	1.01	1.00	1.24**	1.22**
In school	1.76	1.81	2.65**	2.33*	1.57	1.64
Living with mother	1.04	0.96	1.04	0.98	0.94	0.86
Married	0.98	0.97	1.22	1.32	0.84	0.83
Urban residence	1.55**	1.54**	0.79	0.77	2.90**	2.99**
Work experience	1.01	0.99	0.85	0.85	1.11	1.10
Found job by						
him/herself	1.04	1.00	0.90	0.88	1.19	1.20
DEMAND SIDE VARIA	ABLES					
Only job available		1.04		1.34		0.73
Require HS graduate		1.06		1.17		0.87
Require work						
experience		0.52**		0.63		0.52**
Need physical exertion		0.59**		0.66		0.59
Full time		1.09		0.74		1.64
Log Likelihood						
Male dominated versus						

SUPPLY SIDE VARIA	BLES					
No. of years of						
education	0.82**	0.92**	0.85	0.93	n/a	n/a
In school	2.57	2.76	2.64**	2.66	n/a	n/a
Living with mother	1.20	1.19	1.31	1.39	n/a	n/a
Married	1.23	1.10	2.08**	2.08**	n/a	n/a
Urban residence	0.35**	0.37**	0.22**	0.23**	n/a	n/a
Work experience	0.94	0.87	0.78	0.76	n/a	n/a
Found job by						
him/herself	1.16	1.66**	1.00	1.39	n/a	n/a

Only job available		1.74**		1.93**		n/a
Require HS graduate		0.19**		0.13**	j	n/a
Require work						
experience		1.30		1.36		n/a
Need physical						
exertion		2.11**		1.25		n/a
Full time		0.93		0.61		n/a
Log Likelihood	-752.96	-717.07	-425.59	-402.99	-268.12	-260.69
		(24)				
LR chi2 (df)	103.10	174.88	68.97	114.18	53.69	68.55
	(14)		(14)	(24)	(14)	(24)
Prob > chi2	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

\* Model 1: Includee supply side predictors only; Model 2: Includes supply and demand side predictors. \*\* p-value < .05; \* p-value < .10 in derby 7 Emails in melle dominated-occupations

TABLE 8. Odds ratio	(ORs) comparing having a gender-dominated job versus integrated job	
	(reference), self-employed excluded	

	Both genders (n = 812)	Males (436)	Females (376)
Predictors	Model 1* Model 2*	Model 1* Model 2*	Model 1* Model 2*

#### Female dominated versus integrated (ref)

# SUPPLY SIDE VARIABLES

No. of years of						
education	1.17**	1.12**	1.05	1.01	1.26**	1.24**
In school	1.75	1.93	2.73**	3.12**	1.70	1.56
Living with mother	1.23	1.12	1.44	1.26	1.02	0.98
Married	0.88	0.88	1.45	1.43	0.64	0.61
Urban residence	1.39*	1.39	0.61*	0.62	2.76**	2.80**
Work experience	1.06	1.04	0.79	0.77	1.26	1.26
Found job by						
him/herself	0.97	0.86	0.79	0.68	1.06	1.07
DEMAND SIDE VARI	ABLES					
Only job available		1.10		1.42		0.77

Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

Require HS graduate	1.25	1.48	0.92
Require work experience	0.59**	0.79	0.57*
Need physical exertion	0.51**	0.62	0.49**
Full time	1.12	1.14	1.23

Male dominated versus integrated (ref)

SUPPLY SIDE VARIABL	.ES					
No. of years of						
education	0.81**	0.86**	0.82**	0.86**	n/a	n/a
In school	3.18	2.75	3.68	3.26	n/a	n/a
Living with mother	1.05	1.11	1.16	1.26	n/a	n/a
Married	0.60	0.60	0.95	1.12	n/a	n/a
Urban residence	0.53**	0.55*	0.34**	0.34**	n/a	n/a
Work experience	0.93	0.95	0.86	0.94	n/a	n/a
Found job by	)					
him/herself	0.95	1.28	0.71	0.98	n/a	n/a
DEMAND SIDE VARIA	BLES					
Only job available		1.55		1.97*		n/a
Require HS graduate		0.40**		0.28**		n/a
Require work experience		0.79		0.95		n/a
Need physical exertion		1.20		0.79		n/a
Full time		0.62		0.45**		n/a
Log Likelihood	-593.74	-576.24	-310.13	-298.87	-240.04	-231.28
LR chi2(df)	76.07	111.07	42.22	64.74	58.70	76.21
	(14)	(24)	(14)	(24)	(14)	(24)
Prob > chi2	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

\* Model 1: Includes supply side predictors only; Model 2: Includes supply and demand side predictors

\*\* p-value < .05; \* p-value < .10

n/a only 6 females in male-dominated occupations

Restricting the analysis to those in gender-biased occupations, Table 9 presents the odds of being in male-dominated jobs compared to the odds in female-dominated jobs tygender. Regression results showed that among males, urban residence (OR .27) and educational requirements (OR .11) significantly decreased the odds of being in male-dominated jobs among females, the odds of having male-dominated jobs was positively associated with finding the job herself. Note that few females in male-dominated occupations affected the precision of the regression estimates involving females only

	A	LL	Excluding self-employed		
Predictors	Males (181) Females (148)		Males (116)	Females (87	
SUPPLY SIDE VARIABLES					
No. of years of education	0.92	0.82	0.85 *	1.01	
In school	1.15	-	1.07	-	
Living with mother	1.53	0.80	0.91	0.34	
Married	1.49	0.54	0.68	0.75	
Urban residence	0.27**	1.46	0.63	1.90	
Work experience	0.77	0.30	1.23	0.40	
Found job by him/herself	1.88	7.71	2.01	3.96	
DEMAND SIDE VARIABLE	s				
Only job available	1.17	0.46	1.21	0.25	
Require HS graduate	0.11**	3.81	0.19**	-	
Require work experience	1.90	2.21	0.99	0.81	
Need physical exertion	1.56	0.97	1.00	-	
Full time	0.98	-	0.51	_	
Log Likelihood	-96.13	-23.55	-63.01	-19.49	
LR chi2(df)	58.38(12)	9.28 (10)	31.31 (12)	4.67 (8)	
Prob > chi2	0.00	0.50	0.00	0.79	

TABLE 9. Odds ratio (ORs) comparing having a female-dominated job versus male-dominated job (reference)

\*\* p-value < .06; \* p-value < .10

- no estimates, category predicts failure perfectly

In sum, compared to being in other occupational gender types, the odds of being in firmal-odminated occupations were higher among those who were more seducated and those living in urban areas, and lower among those who require previous work experience and moderate/heavy physical exerction. Gender-segregated occupations, especially maddominated occupations, were more likely chosen because they were the only loss available for the youth (based on their own self-report) and because these their on high school detauction.

## Association between occupational gender type and wage rates

Hourly wage rates among the youth have a very wide range of variation, owing mostly to self employment wages - mean wage rate (standard deviation) for self-employed was P50.10 Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

(136.94), while that of the employee was P26.30 (33.79). Accordingly, the log of wage rate (earnings/hour) is used in the multivariate analysis.

Examining mean wage rates per occupational gender type, we found that mean wage rates for male-dominated occupations were higher than female-dominated and integrated occupations. This pattern of wage differentials persisted after excluding the self-employed.

Occupation gender type	Both	Both genders		Males		ales
	mean	s.d.*	mean	s.d.*	mean	s.d.*
ALL EMPLOYED						
Integrated	26.84	30.94	27.47	29.42	26.01	32.84
Female dominated	31.19	49.95	30.27	30.83	31.75	58.83
Male dominated	38.48	138.41	38.87	143.46	33.21	16.72
TOTAL	29.18	57.61	30.02	66.69	28.12	43.48
EXCLUDING SELF-EMPLOYE	D					
Integrated	25.49	29.34	26.70	29.07	23.88	29.69
Female dominated	27.34	45.74	23.68	13.94	29.29	55.67
Male dominated	30.92	25.09	30.13	26.13	37.23	14.13
TOTAL	26.30	33.79	26.61	26.95	25.93	40.34

\* s.d. = standard deviation

Table 11 presents the results of the multivariate regression models. After adjusting for education, work experience and place of residence, the Heckman selection corrected model showed that compared to integrated occupations, mak-dominated occupations that higher wage rate, epsechally when the self-employed were escluded (eggression coefficient makdominated occupation versus integrated occupations. 295, pc.05). Integrated and fermaledominated occupation versus integrated occupations. 295, pc.05). Integrated and fermaledominated occupation versus integrated occupations was abour 19.40 (eggression coefficient make dominated occupation versus fermale dominated occupations. 333, pc.05). To put the wage differences into context, the minimum houdy wage rate in metror Cebus at the time of the survey was abour P2500. Additionally adjusting for gender yielded similar results – make dominated occupations sculading the self-employed have significantly higher wage rate that the other occupation groups (eggression coefficient make dominated occupation versus integrated occupation. 279, pc.05).

Occupation gender type		Log Wage/hr (pesos)						
	Mode	st 1*1	Model 2**2					
	Coefficient	p-value	Coefficient	p-value				
ALL EMPLOYED								
Integrated	reference	Reference	reference	reference				
Female dominated	.012	.829	.048	.404				
Male dominated	.080	.323	.010	.899				
EXCLUDING SELF-EMPLOYE	D							
Integrated	reference	Reference	reference	reference				
Female dominated	039	.491	.006	.921				
Male dominated	.295	002	.237	.013				

\*adjusted for education, previous work experience, and urban residence

\*\*adjusted for gender, education, previous work experience, and urban residence

For all employed: Log likelihood = -2259.53, Prob > chi2 = 0.001, Wald chi2(6) = 22.82;

Excluding self-employed: Log likelihood = -2062.63, Prob > chi2 = 0.000, Wald chi2(6) = 54.77

<sup>2</sup> For all employed: Log likelihood = -2246.29, Prob > chi2 = 0.000, Wald chi2(7) = 48.92;

Excluding self-employed: Log likelihood = -2050.97, Prob > chi2 = 0.000, Wald chi2(6) = 80.68

# Conclusions

Although this study is mostly descriptive, we examined a serious labor concern in a significant segment of the population. We found that occupational gender segregation exists among Filipino youth and it is significantly associated with (1) human capital, place of residence, and to requirements, and (2) wage rate inequality, even after controlling for human capital.

Examining the demand and supply side characteristics allowed us to assess which theories more closely explain occupational segregation by gender among the Flipino youth. No single theory can explain occupational gender segregation in our sample; occupational choice was driven by conditions associated with parts of the major theories. The theory least compatible with occupational choice in our sample; is the neodessite theory. We found that the neodessite theory argument wherein male-dominated occupations were most likely to have more years of schooling while workers in male-dominated occupations were most least likely to have more years of schooling on the supply side, male-dominated occupations were the least likely to nequire a high school diplom. There is howevers one evidence supporting the compensating differentials model, a complementary of the neoclassical model – women tend to concentrate on jobs that do not require heavy physical exertion. Nonetheless. controlling for physical exerction requirements did not change the wage rate inequality results (data not shows)—mela-dominated jobs still had higher wage rate than demade or integrated jobs. As stated, the distribution of males and females across the occupation gender types may lend support to the dual market model of overcrowding. Lashly, focusing on the gender-biased occupations, the concentration of males on stereotypically male occupations (driving, farming, fishing, ev) and women on stereotypically female occupations (clerical jobs) can lend support to the gender/feminist theory.

To conclude, our findings suggest that policies aiming to reduce gender wage gap should continue to be concerned with reducing occupational gender segregation; and to reduce occupational gender segregation, policies should not only aim at improving the human capital investments (i.e., education) or productivity of women but also aim at changing gender stereorynes in the labor market.

This study characterized occupational segregation by gender and its association with wage rate differentials among young adults that may be holding transitional jobs. The next challenge therefore is for future studies to examine occupational mobility and assess if this study's findings will persist throughout the later stages of their career and life course.

#### Notes

- 1 The Kamel and McLashin Ioles's one of the many address used to measure exception algories regregation for address of Distinuity, Charles' Screen UL (packs, Cars Hole), We have to use the Kamel and McLashin Ioles, and instance the stand in acceptional grader segregation root min, segregation. The index can be decomposed to versul anges for exceptional grader segregation to the standard segregation in the index composite particularly in the segregation in the standard segregation is the standard segregation in the standard segregation is in the standard segregation in the standard segregation is in the standard segregation in the standard segregation is in the standard segregation in the standard segregation is in the standard segregation in the
- 2 Integrated occupations set as reference category because we are interested in knowing how different are the characteristics of individuals that take on segregated occupations compared to those that are integrated occupations.

# References

ADB. (2004). Country Gender Assessment (Philippines). Manila: Asian Development Bank.

- Anker R. (1997). Theories of occupational segregation by sex: An overview. International Labour Review 136(3):315.
- Anker R, Hein C. (1985). Why third world urban employers prefer men. International Labour Review 124(1):73-90.
- Becker GS, (1971). The economics of discrimination. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

- Beller A. (1984). Sex segregation in the workplace. Reskin B, editor. Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press.
- Corcoran M, Duncan GJ, Ponza M. (1984). Work experience, job segregation, and wages. Reskin B, editor. Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press.
- Emerek R, Figueiredo H, Gonzalez P, Gonas L, Rubery J. (2003). Indicators of gender serregation. CETE - Centro de Estudos de Economica Industrial J16, J82.
- Ericta CN. (2003). The Filipino Youth: A Statistical Profile, Background Statistical Reference; 2003; Diliman Quezon City. Philippine Social Science Council.
- Gronau R. (1974). Wage comparisons: A selectivity bias. Journal of Political Economy 82:1119-1155.
- Grusky DB, England P. (2004). Occupational Ghettos. Grusky DB, England P, editors. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press.
- Hakim C. (1992). Explaining Trends in Occupational Segregation: The Measurement, Causes, and Consequences of the Sexual Division of Labour. Eur. Sociol. Rev. 8(2):127-152.
- Heckman J. (1976). The common structure of statistical models of truncation, sample selection, and limited dependent variables and a simple estimator for such models. The Annals of Economic and Social Measurement 5: 475-492.
- ILO. (2003), 2003-2004 Key Indicators of the Labour Market. (Geneva).
- Jacobs JA. (1989). Revolving doors: Sex segregation and women's careers. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press.
- Karmel T, MacLachlan M. (1988). Occupational Sex Segregation Increasing or Decreasing. Economic Record 64:187-95.
- Macpherson DA, Hirsch BT. (1995). Wages and Gender Composition Why Do Womens lobs Pav Less. Journal of Labor Economics 13(3):426-471.
- Melkas H, Anker R. (1997). Occupational segregation by sex in Nordic countries: An emprical investigation. International Labour Review 136(3):341.
- Moshe S, Frank I.J. (1999). Dimensions of Gender Occupational Differentiation in Segregation and Inequality: A Cross-National Analysis. Social Indicators Research V46(2):225-247.
- NSO. (2002). Annual Poverty Indicator Survey. Manila, Philippines: National Statistics Office (NSO).
- NSO. (2005). NSO Table: Household Population 15 Years Old and Over by Employment Status, by Age Group and Sex: January 2005. Philippines National Statistics Office.
- Ogena NB, Berja CL. (2003)The Adolescents' Social, Demographic and Economic Environment: Perceptions and Realities Diliman, Quezon City.

Occupational Gender Segregation and Wage Rate Differentials Among Filipino Youth

- POPCOM. (2002). Pinoy Youth: Making Choices, Building Voices Commission on Population Republic of the Philippines.
- Preston JA. (1999). Occupational gender segregation Trends and explanations. The Quarterly Review of Economics and Finance 39(5):611-624.
- Rosenfeld RA. (1984). Sex segregation in the workplace. Reskin B, editor. Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press.
- Rosenfeld RA, Spenner KI. (1992). Occupational Sex Segregation and Women's Early Career Job Shifts. Work and Occupations 19(4):424-449.
- Rothman KJ, Greenland S. (1998). Modern Epidemiology. Philadelphia, PA: Lippincott-Raven Publishers.
- Rytina N, Bianchi S. (1984). Occupational reclassification and changes in distribution by gender. Monthly Labor Review 107:11-17.
- StataCorp. (1999). Stata Statistical Software: Release 6.0. College Station, Texas: Stata Corporation.
- Warren JR, Sheridan JT, Hauser RM. (2002). Occupational Stratification across the Life Course: Evidence from the Wisconsin Longitudinal Study. American Sociological Review 67(3):432-455.
- Watts M. (1995). Divergent Trends in Gender Segregation by Occupation in the United-States - 1970-92. Journal of Post Keynesian Economics 17(3):357-379.
- Watts M. (1997). Multidimensional indexes of occupational segregation A critical assessment. Evaluation Review 21(4):461-482.
- Warts M. (1998a). The analysis of sex segregation: When is index measurement not index measurement? Demography 35(4):505-508.
- Watts M. (1998b). Occupational gender segregation: Index measurement and econometric modeling. Demography 35(4):489-496.



# Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

Christian Joy P. Cruz and Ruzzel Brian C. Mallari

# Abstract

This paper aims to explore the issue of social acceptance of homosexuality in the Philippines both qualitatively as exidenced by systematically examining emerging themse in the literature, and quantitatively by using data from the Young Adults Fertifity and Sexuality Survey of 2002. While in general, "homosexual acceptance" among the young Filipino population is reported to be as high as 500 percent, the paper demonstrates that when acceptance is qualified with the activities that characterize homosexual parctice – men during men, women dating women and, escual attraction to the same sex – the result presents that only 13.5 percent of the young people approve both the homosexual person and the practice of homosexuality. Conceptable, in presents that acceptance of homosexuality must be estended from the acceptance of the homosexual person into incorporating the acceptance of

# Introduction

Human sexuality involves the norms and circumstances that govern the expression of sexual relations between individuals. Sexuality has been seen as a fact of nature, with sexologists such as Masters and Johnson (1966) focusing on the biology and physiology of sex. Since

University Researcher II at the UPPI and working on a thesis on Philippine fertility as a graduate student in the Master of Arts in Demography program at the UPPI.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Graduate student in the Master of Arts in Demography program at the University of the Philippines Population Institute (UPPI) and is working on his thesis on the Filipino elderly in the workforce.

sexuality is assumed to be at the core of human beings (i.e., as sexual beings), it is seen as a driving force that motivates humans to action particularly on the drive to procreate thereby stressing a heterosexual norm (Seidman 2003).

This proclivity to underscore the hetero-normative definition of sexuality was a product of the early Sexology movement in Europe that tended to promote the idea that any sexual expression that deviated from the heterosexual aim was abnormal. Noted sexologist Von Krafft Ebings' Prychopathia Sexualis (1889), listed homosexuality along with 200 other disorders as abnormal (Hartwich 1959). Freud's revolutionary psychoanalytic approach to sexuality, albeit medical, has led to a distinction between one person's gender and his sexuality. Freud rejected the previous idea that homosexuality was caused by the inheritance of female characteristics by males, or by the possession of a hermaphrodite mind (Westphal and, Ulrich n.d.) and argued that the direction the sexual drive takes has no necessary relationship to inherited sexual characteristics. He theorized that all children are born polymorphously perverse - their sexual desires can be drawn toward any object - and it is their childhood experiences that cause their sex drive to be directed to members of the opposite or the same sex. Since Freud rejected hereditarian theories of the causes of homosexuality, he also rejected the notion that homosexuals or inverts are necessarily feminine. According to Freud, whether a how grows up to have a masculine or feminine personality has nothing to do with the direction of his sexual desire. Thus, depending on his upbringing, a boy can develop into an effeminate heterosexual, a masculine homosexual, or some other combination of gender and sexuality (Freud, 1905).

The Kinary Reports (1948) further opened the theorizing on homosexuality by introducing that homosexuality is also present in American society with 10 percent of American more admining to be homosexuals for at least three years in their lives and four percent admitting to be homosexuals. Homosexuality according to Kinasey was then another option or outlet for the sexual direy, thus no percons is generally different in constitution. Individuals, is Kinary argued, follow a six point solal on whether a percon prefers not even a twinge for homoexual outlet (point 0) to purely a homosexual outlet (point is 0) used hutter possible that mem more in these categories on a continuum between homosexual and heterosexual at some point during their lifetimes.

Along with these developments in homosexuality theorizing in the West came the counterpart stream in the political and social cause for the homosexuality it may be construed that whatever the prevailing ideologies on how homosexuality is viewed - whether in the medical or psychonalytic level - influence on how society accepts homosexuality. Any discourse at the scientific level indicarring artices the social and the political standing of homosexuality or vice versa. Homosexual movements can either be a response or affirmation or countermeasure to prevailing ideourses on homosexuality. Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

Homosexual acceptance is mainly a product of these movements coming from the virtual outwaing of homosexual acts pictor to 1860 to moving in to mainterms starting in the revolutionary times of the 1970s. When viewed systematically, homosexuality is seen as a continuously evolving concept whose abstraction is constantly challenged and shaped by its relations with its environment, such relations include: the sockey where it is practiced, the dominant cubure persisting in the sockey, and the institutions that either recognize or suppress and repress its existence. The interplay of these forces, both the sociopolitical-legal considerations and institutional actors create and re-create homosexual identity and character which in turn vited to the social acceptance of homosexuality over time.

Homosexuality is proving to be a fertile ground with newly evolving concepts proposed in the Queer Theory body of literature. General concepts such as the homosexual-heterosexual continuum are further expanded in the introduction of concepts or classifications such as pansexual (involves no particular sexual preference, i.e., may have sexual relations with any gendec), autosexual (someone who prefers maximulation over partnered sex), and even asexual (someone who does not experience examal attraction at all).

The ability to understand and explain the dynamics of these forces that impinge on the definition of homoseruality at the macro level, will help individuals propagate a better understanding of the concepts regarding homosexual orientation and behavior. Such is most useful when one is in constant challenge to assert individuality especially in the (post) moleng isolatized world. Considering all these, adolectnce becomes a vital stage as it is the transition period between childhood and adulthood. The period is fraught with the simultaneous interplay of changes within the biological and emotional makeup of the child. Adolecence proves to be the time where boundanes are challenged and preferences stude in all aspects of his life including sexual identity. The need to provide understanding assures bettere coping for the adolecence to

It is the view of this paper to highlight and re-analyze homosexual acceptance among the Filipino youth using data from the 2002 Young Adult Ferniliy and Sexuality Study (YAFS3). It also attempts to organize esisting ilterature to provide a clear and realistic picture of the social acceptance of homosexuality by the Filipino young adults and identify the gaps to be filled by future research.

# Study Objectives

This paper examines the concept of homosexuality acceptance at the theoretical and methodological level. It seeks to raise concert about the character of the concepts related to how homosexuality is accutally viewed by young Filipinos. Conceptually it secks to present the various facets of homosecuality as viewed by adolescents and draw the line on what is attually accepted and what is only acceptable. It aims to highlight the manne between acceptance and acceptablity via the framework of how sexuality is constructed by the Filipino youth. Particularly, it will examine how the adolescents accent a homosecum herein wis-accepts a person who just huppens to be a homosecum.

As a background, it will put some discussion on the status of social institutions most perceived to create or influence the views on homosexuality such as religion, culture, media, and the law. The roles of these institutions provide some clue as to how a general optinion of homosexuality is constructed in the Philippine setting through the following questions:

- What is the role of religion, particularly the Catholic Church in the Philippines, in shaping the status of homosexuality?
- 2. What are the cultural concepts that influence homosexuality and its acceptance in the Philippines?
- How is homosexuality represented in the media? What are the prevailing stereotypes that characterize homosexuals?
- 4. What are the legislative initiatives being undertaken that define homosexuality in the Philippines? How is it being received?

More importantly, this paper seeks to revisit and analyze quantitatively the level of acceptability and acceptance of homosexuality among the young people in the Philippines using nationally representative data. Specifically it seeks to:

- Provide the level of homosexual acceptance among adolescents in the Philippines using YAFS3 data and analyze its meaning; and
- Reinterpret the level of homosexual acceptance by juxtaposing this acceptance variable per seversus other variables that may represent acceptance and/or approval of practice of homosexuality.

# Data and Methodology

The theoretical or qualitative analysis part of this paper utilizes available literature on homosexuality and its acceptance, both international and local. A thematic approach of documentary analysis is employed.

On the other hand, the methodological analysis used the VAFSS3 data set as its source of quantitative data. VAFSS3 is a national survey which represents the most recent effort to better understand the knowledge, attitudes and behaviors of Filipino addescents in matters related to their gender, sexuality and reproductive health. It is also a pioneer in the addition of homosexuality as a survey component on a national scale. This data set was collected by Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

the Dermographic Research and Development Foundation and the University of the Philippines Population Institute in partnership with academic institutions in all parts of the country, and with funding support from the David and Lucile Packard Foundation.

The YAFSS3 fieldwork resulted into a total of 19,728 respondents from 15,463 household in 894 sample barangays nationwide within the 15-27 age range. The survey employed a two-stage, self-weighting design with regions as main domains and large provinces as separate domains.

From the YAFSS3 data set, four variables were examined – acceptability of homosexuals to the respondent, approval of men dating men, approval of women dating women and approval of sexual attraction to the same set. The respondents were asked "How about you, are homosexuals acceptable to you, in general?" and the answer includes the following categories: Yes, Gsy only (male homosexual), Lesbian only (fernale homosexual), Bisexual only and No. For this analysis, all the first foar answers were considered a positive response (Yes).

For the attitude towards homosexual dating by sex, the straight-forward opesition asked of the young prople were "Do you approve of men dating mere?" and "Do you approve of women dating other women" with a positive answer of a Yes' or a negative answer of a 'No'. A measure to check approval of homosexual dating tegrateless of sex was created from these two duting variables, wherein a "Ver response to both questions was codel as 'Yes'. While a single 'Yes' answer to both questions and a "No' response to both question were codel as 'No'.

For the attitude towards homosexual sex roles, the question used was "It is alight to be sexually attracted to the same sex?" with the following categories as answers – Strongly agree, Agree, Nether agree nor diagree, Disagree, Strongly disagree. For purposes of simplicity, Strongly agree and agree were collapsed into the "Approve" category, the Disagree and Strongly disagree were put together as "Disapprove" category and renaming Neither agree nor disagree into "Neither".

An overall variable to measure practice of homosexaility was created from three base variables – approve men dating men, approve women dating women, and approve sexual attraction to the same sex. This is represented as a dichotomous variable coded as 1 for yes", they approve the practice of homosexaility (positive response to any of the three variables) and 0 for 'no', they disapprove it (negative answer to all of the three base variables).

Cross-classification using the Chi-squared rust was employed in evaluating the significant differentials in the acceptability of homosexual squints the practice of homosexuality. For deeper analysis, redistributing the percentages using the total asymple size or total on Gazes as base was employed to give a clear picture of the size of the young people who really accept a homosexual person as against the size of those who find acceptable a person who happens to be a homosexual. Further, a new variable was also created to represent the set of those who said 'Ves' in the acceptability of homosexuals after which it was cross-tabulated with the created practice of homosexuality variable. This was done to determine if there is a significant difference in the approval of the practice of homosexuality between males and females who said that they accept homosexuals in general.

While there was an attempt to employ a multivariate logistic regression analysis to ascertain the socio-economic-demographic factors that influence the acceptance of the practice of homosexuality, unstable models were generated because of the uneven distribution of most of the identified variables being studied. Hence, they were not included in the analysis.

# Discussion of Findings

## Revisiting Homosexuality

Homosexuality is a recent Western concept (Foucault, 1980) unique among the conceptualization of male-male sexual bonds of other cultures in several ways. Where the western concept of homosexuality assumes a life-long predaposition, other cultures have typically construed male-male sexual bonds as temporary phases, as in the initiation rites of tribes in New Cuine or ancient (Feec, or age-based traibonships, as in ancient Greece.

An even more profound uniqueness of the Western concept of homosexuality is revealed when it is contrasted with how make-mask sexual and romanic homos were treated in Imperial China where several make emperors were known to have had make harmes and favorite make concubines, and also where make prostitution (for make clients) was prevalent up to the end of the Qing Dynastry. The reason why there was no word for homosexuality in Chinese was because it was never seen as a defining or integral part of a periodi sidentity. Make-make sexual and romanic bonds were construed as relations have two people as opposed to a psychological essence that defined either person. Moreover, these same-sex bonds were seen as a perfective acceptable and natural way of like in Imperial China (Hinch, 1992).

Homosexuality has been viewed in different ways throughout the years and has been characterized primarily by the prevailing institutions within the society. Societies differ in the exerts on how much homosexuality (or some form of same-sex infinite relationship) is sancitoaed or rejected. The framework such as the cultural milieu including the moral and regions criterin where homosexuality is viewed, the social and political environment specifically the legal definition where it is protected and/or sanctioned, and the forces such as media that propaget and instill ideas on how it is understood, contribute to the overall acceptance of homosexuality.

In the Philippines, there is a very broad definition of homosexuality. Anyone who does not fit into the hetero-normative ideal of being male or female will be categorized as Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

homosexual, a bubba. To simplify things, the Filipino includes distinct concepts under the homosexual umberlla. Among the concepts included in this general meaning are physicality, gender identity, sexual orientation and sexual roles. Interspersed with these concepts are the general categorizations of homosexuals by the young Filipino.

In a series of focus group discussions and key informant in-depth interviews, Cruz (2006) posits a multi-devel approach to bomoscenul definition that starts with the gender identity of a person; if the person presents himself/herself opposite to the assigned physical makeup, then he is considered as a homosexual – a fluanting and fluantize and fluance the molecular make homosexual for this energy of the grave the pathentia or beamorem, those who work in beauty salons and are the ones jointing gay beauty pagents. They are characterized as males minicking a worman by using feminime clothing, sporting long hair and pathent hairs that distributed mails, tables and a single fluance that or number of the terms for homosexual females under this correspondent.

There are also persons who are comfortable with their assigned biological self and they do not present themselves as the opposite sex but they are romanically and sexually attracted to the same sex with little traces of characteristics of the opposite sex. They are branded as full-blown homosexuals or gays and soft-butch or lesibians.

If the sexuality of a person cannot be determined by his/her appearance and personality, the next iter to be evaluated is the role he/she engages in during sexual intercourse for the person to be considered a homosexual. There are males who belong to the caregory of *pamiati* (coming from the root word, *pa-mm*, a homosexual acting like a man) who defles the first two tiers of homosexual definition. Their fermale counteparts are the *biplick* of *pamma* who are females who still present themselves as females but are romanically and sexually attracted to females. This category is equivalent to the western concept of the 'closeted' gay. For males, if he takes on the passive role (or penetrate) willingly then he will be considered a homosexual but this categorization is defied when the male takes on this role in exchange for money or any frave.

Another categorization of sexual orientation is the bisexual, who is defined as someone who can get romantically and sexually attracted to members of both the opposite and the same sex.

#### Homosexuality in Culture

In early Greek civilization for example, pederasty was a relationship and bond – whether sexual or chaste – between an adolescent boy and an adult man outside of his immediate family: Pederasty was seen as an effective means of population control, education, and crime reduction by directing love and sexual desire into non-procreative channels. Military pederasty on the other hand was encouraged as means to improve troop monel, havery, and oreall fighting. Pederasty as a practice may be also seen in Japan, Europe, Africa and the Pacific Islands. The practice is not however present in the Philippines or in any of its minority prouts.

In the pre-colorial Philippines however, Spanish conquistadors saw gender crossing and transvession as an early feature in the pre-colorial societies. Local men dressed up in worner's apparel and acting like wornen were called, annog other things, *haggina, haghes, aggina, gang, hals* and *handwa*. They were significant not only because they crossed male and fermale gender lines. To the Spaniards, they were stoothing, even theretiming, as they were respected leaders and figures of authority. To their native communities they were biological religions functionaries and sharman, intermediates between the visible and anisysible worlds to whom even the local rule (*dab*) deferred (Garris, n.d.).

In the presence of wrestenization upon the succession of colonial nulzer, the concept of maculinity was given primacy inside the Filipino's subscription to a patiential culture. Many characteristics such as being muldar, muldars, muldar and extrans, muchatale and, mulang (Timener, et al. 1998 cited in Aguilar, 2006) were exhorted. As mulse are considered the more superior of the seexe, the image and extent of what being muchato means needs constant projection. Machimon takes then the form of winting, and the capacity to impregnate a woman thus becomes the foremore measure (Aguilar 2006). Deviation from this kind of sets of matheout leads to serious questions regarding one's secual orientation. Notice then that given the adformentioned conditions, the construction of homoscatually in Philippine culture is musered by resistance or deviations from norms set at the physical level, and later at the normal sexual natureshing is a curve.

# Homosexuality and Religion

The relationship between homosexuality and religion vrites gravity across time and place, within and between different religions and sects, and regarding different forms of homosexuality and bisexuality. Currently, authoritative bodies and doctrines of the world's largest religions generally view homosexuality negatively, from quieldy discourging homosexual activity, to explicitly forbidding same sexs sexual practices among adherents and activity opposing social acceptance of homosexuality. Some teach that homosexual orientation itself is sinful, while obten sassert that only the sexual acti as ain.

The dynamic interaction between homosexuality and religion has forever been subject to various interpretations in relation to homosexual acceptance. Religious doctrine is decided upon either by direct interpretation of authoritative books (Bible, Quran, Torha) or by church traditions. Primarily, the correct interpretation of these passages is governed and defined by groups in the religion's hierarchy. Among the dharmic religions that originated in India, including Hinduism, Buddism, Jainism and Süblishn, teachings regarding homosexuality Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

are less clear than among the Abrahamic traditions. Unlike in western religions, hornosecuality is rarely discussed. However, most contemporary religious authorities in the various dharmic traditions view homosecuality negatively, and when it is discussed, it is discouraged or actively forbidden. On the other hand most Abrahamic Religions such as Judism, Islam, and Christianity, traditionally frohids lessal relations between men and teach that such behavior its sinful.

The introduction of Christianity/Catholicism was an agent in the redefinition of sexuality and the systematic marginalization of homosexuals in history. Throughout Filipino history, the political powers have been submissive to the Catholic Church. The Church is determined to maintain its hold on important aspects of civil life, such as education, the availability of contraception and abortion, and even the registration of major events in the lives of the people like birth, marriage, child adoption, and death (Levson, n.d.). A very conservative interpretation of Catholic decrees about sexuality and marriage have been inscribed in the minds of the Filipino people, in a way that has proven difficult to alter or delete. Outstanding among these are the Church's views on the social roles of males and females, its insistence that any form of masturbation or premarital intercourse is sinful, and condemnation of homosexuality as unnatural behavior. Under the Catholic view, homosexual acts are intrinsically disordered. They are contrary to the natural law. They close the sexual act to the pift of life. They do not proceed from a genuine affective and sexual complementarity (Cathechism of the Catholic Church, 1997), Recently, the Catholic Bishops Conference of the Philippines has explicitly hanned the entry of homosexuals into the Holy Orders stressing that while effeminate traits are condoned, actual practicing homosexuals do harm to others through their victims. They do harm to the Church (Philippine Star 2004).

# Homosexuality in Media

Apart from the role of the cultural milieu that impinges upon the construction of homoscust views, media is seen as a great propagator of ideas, having explicit capasity of advocacy and implicit ability to frame political issues. Popular representation of homoscustility in mass media cumote be overly emphasized in its power. In the homoscust statution of the Philippines that appeared in the Exployable of Homoscustily (New York: Carninal Publishing, 1990), Frederick Whitam concluded that the Philippines enjoy a reputation as one of the contemportary societies that is more tolerator of homoscustility, as among other things homoscust characters in Philippine media (movies and television) clicit "claps and shouts of approval" from the many children in the audience. The development of gry clienca in the ransvestists. They were finnty, contact, and hubicross. The concept of militaria, transvestita, transvestitas. They were finnty, contact, and hubicross. The concept of militaria, transvestitas, resonseturia, and himake were introduced in these decades. Though the films of Dolphy were werging, contact, and hubicross the gas people in a jesting and first attantion which was taken as humiliation somehow for the concept "pagangasignar an ange linkahar." The roles of homosenauk tyriking by Dolphy's Facilica Falayday on kapstick driven comedy of the carly '90s have relegated the role of the homosexual to precisely a jesting character. Garcia (1996) reasserts patricular gay, mass-media characters that evoke. "claps and shouts of approval" do so because they portury disclusolay toporations roles whose entertainment value singularity derives from their gender anomaly, as well as other equally obtrusive things: neither man nor woman; covardu: funcal: holfan precisely.

In the 1970's portrayal was far different from the 1950s and 1960s. The gays portrayed in the 70s were in the closet whose story lines tended to delve on the sectors and dramatic. It brought more trauma for it mirrored the embarrassing and unacceptable ontes which were death, erine, broken family, and threass. In the 1990s, Rodenick Paulae emerged as a screaring figger in many of his films. Some of the films delved on the closet gay representation, while some portrayed the "handsome gay exploiter" theme. It was a combination of the "50s-'00s and the "70s surfing the issue of guilt and acceptance. The '90s was the period when acceptance became light. The outing of the *hada* was manifested and the contept of sisterbood was established. Filipino gay films address issues close to heart; sexual repression, marginalization, acceptance (rime and guilt) and the sisse of oming out.

Even within the history of gay-therned interna, the complexities of the gay character are slowly being fullfuld. In the advector of independent cherna, storylines opende up new explorations on the homosexual therme, from being an agent of contedy to becoming sophisticated protagonists that scuffle with serious statuations and dilemmas. Whereas earlier movies delve into the sexual practices and choices of homosexuals, as in Brockah Mahon Dancer (1988) and Chionglo's trilogy of macho dancers movies, the newer themes vereed away from sex and included among other things the life and love travals of homosexuals, giving us a clearer and more holistic representation of the gay Filipino. Critically acclaimed movies like, *Ang Reguladage at Macano Olsen have* created new perspectives in the examination of homosexual life, particularly the irony of being a homosexual in an albeit hard-line macho family. It is rather important to note in this case that it is the advancement of technology in the production of inomanic art, and not accessing the increased acceptance of homosexual issues, rather than consume-driven homosexual characters for entertrainment's ske.

While freedom to tackle homosexual issues in cinema is comptomised because of the State's instrument for control (i.e., the Movie, Television Review and Classification Board), the long standing primacy of the print media in the guarance of freedom of the press is highly accorded. The presence of any formal state instrumentility to censure print material is virtually inexistent. However, the Philippines' obscenity law, ambiguous as it may seem, becomes the overaching constraint that may compromise expersion. Technically speaking. Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

these obscenity laws prohibit the publication of pornographic materials and the confiscation of which remains within the State's domain. Otherwise, no independent body can exercise any power over these publications.

In an analysis of the rise and fail of the Philippine Gry Magzine publication phenomenon, Lim (2005) identifies the lack of advertisers, and the presence of more daring competition that has led to the demise of the leighimate gry ifferstyle publications. While readership remains high, any magzine must rely to some form of advertising support to expand its operations or at least, remain in publication. Lim circs the case of *Vasimo* that order than condoms rand sear-related products, no advertiser would want to get associated with homosexual-chemed magzine. Adding to that fact is the presence of severe competition that highlighted only the *Volation's* secal content. In an effort to capture the bigger marker starc, competition was based on which magzine could present more skin which on most occasions bordered on the pomographic, leaving authorities to use the observing have se to control.

The entry of a serious gap-themed publication such as *V* datafies has received high acceptance as seen from its high readership rates. However market forces, particularly the desire for more profit on the part of advertises who would pat their funds elsewhere than gap magazines; the hardcore competition that took the risk to go beyond the legal aspects of publishing which created a new underground market and economy; and the actual implementation of obscenity laws remain serious forces that implage on the survival and ultimately, acceptance of gap publications.

Whereas print and broadcast media have at some point, a probability to be censured, the down of the Information Age has resulted in an alternative form of expression and transmission of varying ideas. In effect, while the economies of the world are slowly being integrated into one echema, so has the earlange of cultural norms and ideas been made casey with connectivity to the World Wide Web. The emergence of blogs and the relative case of putting up personal websites have created avenues for discussion of almost every conceivable topic one is interested in without prejudice to the content. Moreover, the possibility of providing instant comments from the reader to the writer emures a study exchange of thoughs. Similarly, social networling sits allow a certain useer to content with fired stange care mainly to the lession/gytobiesual/mansgender (LGRD) commanity. As it is, the interent provides a powerful tool to force into dialogue divergent views as well as convergent views on LGBT issues which can help model the young people's perception, attitudes and brainly endition.

#### Homosexuality and the Law

The process of legalization of homosexual acts may be seen as the easiest indicator or barometer of how much a society has become liberal or restrictive of its views. The legal status of homosexuality varies greatly around the world. Homosexual sex acts may be illegal, especially under sodomy laws, and where they are legal, the age of consent often differs from country to country. In some cases, homosexuals are prosecuted under vaguely-worldd "public decency" /vagrancy law and morality laws.

Legal recognition of same-sex relationships also varies greatly. Legal privileges pertaining to different-sex relationships har may be carneled to same-sex couples include parenting, adoption and access to reproductive technologies; immigration; spousal henclin for employees such as pensions, health funds and other services; family laws; medical rights, including horpital visitation, notification and power of attorney; laberitance when a partnere dies visihout leaving a will, and social security and tax benefits. Same-sex couples without legal recognition may also lack access to ofmesic violence services, as well as mediation and arbitration over custody and property when relationships end. Some regions have laws specifically excluding same-sex couples from particular rights such as adoption.

Several countries impose the death penalty for homosexual acts. As of 2006, these include Mauritania, Sudan, Iran, Suadi Arabia, United Arab Emirates, Yennen, Pakistan and Chechnya under the Sharia kuw and some regions in Nigeria and Somalia. Homosexual acts between consenting adults are known to be illegal in about 70 out of the 195 countries of the world; in 40 of these, only male-male sex is outlawed. (Homosexuality Laws cited from withpedia.org).

While there is no explicit law that penalizes homosexual acts, most often, generic provisions like grave scandiul under the Revised Penal Code may be used. This lack of a clear policy statement regarding the rights of homosexuals has necessituted legislative initiatives from sympathetic groups. The first bill that sought to recognize the LGBT community as a sector was filed by the Late Congressman Reynablo Calabay (Datrict 1 of Quecon City) in 1957. The bill allowed for the participation of the LGBT sector in the party-list elections. The various LGBT organizations and individuals consulted for the Calaby Plattered discussions on the creation of LEGACY, or the Lesbian and Gay Citizens Alliance. The Alliance did not materialize.

In 1998, Akbayan Citizens' Action Party, a party-list organization competing for the 1998 elections, consulted members of the LGBT community to develop a party LGBT agenda. It is the first political party in the Philippines that has included an LGBT agenda in its platform for government. The consultation has also been instrumental in the creation of the first LGBT folloby group. Discussions among several LGBT organizations and individuals began to create the Lashian and Gray Legislative Advocacy Network, or LAGABLAB in 1999. "The Lesion and Gray Right Act of 1997", a bill by Ray Bellaford Angara-Castillo, was filed in Congress. The bill, the first of its kind because of its comprehensive coverage (included sometic paramethil), exercived several citizens from the community, particularly Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth: Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

LAGABLAB, because of its flaws and because of the authors' failure to incorporate LAGABLAB proposed revisions. LAGABLAB jusced the public demonstration against Earnals'second SONA. The Anti-Discrimination Bill of 2000, a product of several months of discussions in LAGABLAB, was filed through Senator Miriam Sandiago (People's Reform Parity and Adabaya Reg. ETR Roales. The bull would probline discrimination in the private and public sector on the basis on sexual orientation. LAGABLAB, along with Ammesty. International-Piblipinae, the International Gay and Lesbin Human Rights Commission (IGLHRC), Lesbian Advocates in the Philippines (LEAP) and other supportive organizations and individual sumched the "Stop Discrimination Now" Campaign to boost lobyling efforts and get the attention of Philippine legislators to approve the Anti-Discrimination Bill 6416. In 2004, civil rights bill passed in Congress, but failed in the Senate.

The same lack of a relevant law for recognizing the LGBT rights have caused the denial of the appeol of a post-opencity transseruial worms from updating bet ranne and gender status in the Givil Registry. In its railing, the Supreme Court pronounced that, "while the petitioner may have succeeded in altering his body and appearance through the intervention of modern surgery, no law authorizes the change of entry as to sex in the civil registry for that reason. There is no special law in the courty governing sex reassignment and its effect" (Supreme Court (EA, No. 174689, 2007).

In view of these (under)developments, the acceptance of homosexuality in the Philippines is severely undermined owing to the fact that the law does not simply recognize certain rights that must be accorded to the homosexual person. While the law is permitting in the case of display of homosexual behavior, it provides gray area on what constitutes grave standal thus allowing popular taxes to describe and constrict what is allowable. The continued and repeated demit of initiatives that have been sought for the legitimization of homosexual rights may provide as an indicator of how homosexuality is accepted in Philippine society. The deeply ingrained patiatedul nature of our institutions and the effective force of fundamentalist religious ideology have confounded the issue of basic human rights into a question of politics and mores.

## Acceptance of Homosexuality versus Homosexual Acceptability

According to the 2002 Pew Global Attitudes Project, about 64 percent of the Flippinos reported that homosexuality should be accepted by society (cited in www.enwikipedia.org/ wiki/ Societal\_attitudes\_towards\_homosexuality). And also gauging from the results of the YAFSS3, there seems to be a general tolerance among the Flippino adolescents for homosexuals. When asked if "homosexuals are acceptable to them in general," half (50.9 percent) of the respondents aged 15-24 gave their approval (Table 1).

Variable	Percent
ACCEPTABILITY OF HOMOSEXUALS TO R	
Yes	50.9
No	49.1
N of case = 16,884	
APPROVE MEN DATING MEN	
Yes	10.8
No	89.2
N of case = 16,837	
APPROVE WOMEN DATING WOMEN	
Yes	12.4
No	87.6
N of case = 16,837	
APPROVE SAME-SEX DATING FOR BOTH MALE AND FEMALE	
Yes	9.6
No	90.4
N of case = 16,837	
APPROVE SEXUAL ATTRACTION TO THE SAME SEX	
Approve	11.1
Neither	8.8
Disapprove	80.1
N of case = 16,837	
APPROVE OF PRACTICE OF HOMOSEXUALITY	
Yes	21.1
No	78.9
N of case = 16,837	

Results indicate a significant difference in the acceptability of homosexuals by sex with females (59.7 percent) being more accepting of homosexuals in general compared to males (41.2 percent) as exhibited by Figure 1.



FIGURE 1. Acceptability of Homosexuals to the Respondent by Sex

This finding is consistent with previous empirical studies done on attitudes toward homosexuals with results that say made's attitudes toward homosexuals with results that say made's attitudes toward homosexuals with Gasaner & Ovenez, 1976; Herck (1988; Herck & Gainstain, 1995; Herck & Gainstein, 1995; Kurs, 1984; 1984; Kine & Whitley, 1996, 1998; Kurdek, 1988; Luhrs, Grawford, & Goldberg, 1992; Pratte, 1993; Whitley & Kine, 1995 cited in Schellenherg, 1999). This result may also be supported by the discourse that because socially constructed concepts of appropriate female behavior (or maxulinity), are more narrowly defined than concepts of appropriate female behavior (or manulinity), departures from the herero-normative ideals and to be jadged more harshly by male than by female, and for male than for female homosecuals (Feinman, 1981; Hore, Fagoe, & Leinbach, 1990; Marin, 1900 as cited in Schleinberg, 1999).

Examining the approval of the young people to men dating men, the study finds that only 10.8 percent answered positively, and a significant difference can be observed in the answers by sex, with more males (11.8 percend) compared to females (9.8 percent) answering yes. On the other hand, 12.4 percent of the adolescents approve of women dating female with no significant difference in the narwers between males and females.

With the review of the attitudes of the youth towards same-sex dating, included in the analysis is the new same-sex dating variable which examines the approval of both men dating men and women dating women, wherein, about one in 10 adolescents approve of both men dating men and women dating women, with males (10.2 percent) significantly more approving than females (9:1 percent).

N of case (Male = 7,989; Female = 8,894)p-value < 0.01

Another variable being assessed is the approval of the youth to same-sex sexual attraction, with 11.1 percent positively approving, of which, there are significandly more females approving (12 percent) than males (10.1 percent). Interestingle, about 9.0 percent near hearther approves on disapproves of same-sex sexual attraction with eight out of 10 disapproving it. It seems that those who neither approves nor disapproves of same-sex sexual attraction still want a clearer definition of sexual attraction to help them put into concert their replets.

Variables	Male	Female
ACCEPTABILITY OF HOMOSEXUALS TO R**		
Yes	41.2	59.7
No	58.8	40.3
n of case (Male = 7,989, Female = 8,894)		
APPROVE MEN DATING MEN**		
Yes	11.8	9.8
No	88.2	90.2
n of case (Male = 7,968, Female = 8,869)		
APPROVE WOMEN DATING WOMEN		
Yes	12.8	12.2
No	87.2	87.8
n of case (Male = 7,968, Female = 8,869)		
APPROVE SAME-SEX DATING FOR BOTH MALE AND FEMALE*		
Yes	10.2	9.1
No	89.8	90.9
n of case (Male=7,968, Female=8,869)		
APPROVE SEXUAL ATTRACTION TO THE SAME SEX**		
Approve	10.1	12.0
Neither	8.7	8.8
Disapprove	81.2	79.1
n of case (Male = 7,968, Female = 8,869)		
APPROVE OF PRACTICE OF HOMOSEXUALITY		
Yes	20.8	21.3
No	79.2	78.7

Note: \* p-value < 0.05, \*\*p-value < 0.01

A large proportion of the youth at 85.6 percent who accept a homosexual in general reportedly do not approve men dating men as presented in Table 3.

	Approve men dating men			
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case	
BOTH SEXES**				
Yes	14.4	85.6	8565	
No	7.0	93.0	8244	
MALE**				
Yes	17.9	82.1	3276	
No	7.7	92.3	4671	
FEMALE**				
Yes	12.3	87.7	5289	
No	6.2	93.8	3573	

TABLE 3. Cross-tabulation of approval of men dating men by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex

Note: \* p-value < 0.05, \*\*p-value < 0.01

Consistently, from among those who said they do not accept a homosexual in general, a little more than nine out of 10 also do not approve of men daning men. Comparing the results by set, from among the addiscents who have a positive attitude towards a homosexual a great majority at four out five males and about nine out of 10 females disapprove of men daning men.

As regards approval of women during women, from among the respondents who said they accept a homoscual, 83.8 percent change their stand by disapproving of it and from among those who said they do not accept a homosexual, nine out of 10 consistently disapprove of it. From among the males who accept homosexuals, 82.D percent do not approve of women dating women and from among the females who accept homoscuals, 84.9 percent disapprove of the same. A big share at a little over 90 percent of those who do not accept homoscual in general, restardless of esc, also do not approve of thome who do not accept homoscual in general, restardless of esc, also do not approve of sum dating women.

A deeper look of same-sex dating shows that from among the young people who accept homosexuals, only about 13 percent signified their approval to it for both sexes. A vast majority at 94 percent of those who said they do not accept homosexual also do not approve of both men dating men and women dating women.

Acceptability of	Approve sexual attraction to the same sex					
homosexuals to R	Approve	Neither	Disapprove	N of case		
BOTH SEXES**						
Yes	14.3	10.5	75.2	8565		
No	7.8	7.0	85.2	8244		
MALE**						
Yes	14.3	11.1	74.6	3276		
No	7.2	6.9	85.9	4671		
FEMALE**						
Yes	14.4	10.1	75.6	5289		
No	8.6	7.1	84.3	3573		

TABLE 4. Cross-tabulation of approval of sexual attraction to the same sex by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex

Note: \* p-value < 0.05. \*\*p-value < 0.01

TABLE 5. Cross-tabulation of approval of same-sex dating of both male and female by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex

	Approve san	ne-sex dating fo	r both male and
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case
BOTH SEXES**			
Yes	12.9	87.1	8565
No	6.3	93.7	8244
MALE**			
Yes	15.1	84.9	3276
No	6.9	93.1	4671
FEMALE**			
Yes	11.5	88.5	5289
No	5.5	94.5	3573

Note: \* p-value < 0.05, \*\*p-value < 0.01

On the other hand, among those who accept homosexuals, 14.3 percent approve of sexual attraction to the same sex while from among those who do not accept, 85.2 percent disapprove as well of same-sex sexual attraction. Almost the same results can be observed after controlling for sex as can be gleaned from Table 6.

Acceptability of	Approve set	xual attractio	n to the same se	x
homosexuais to R	Approve	Neither	Disapprove	N of case
BOTH SEXES**				
Yes	14.3	10.5	75.2	8565
No	7.8	7.0	85.2	8244
MALE**				
Yes	14.3	11.1	74.6	3276
No	7.2	6.9	85.9	4671
FEMALE**				
Yes	14.4	10.1	75.6	5289
No	8.6	7.1	84.3	3573

TABLE 6. Cross-tabulation of approval of sexual attraction to the same sex by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex

Note: \* p-value < 0.05, \*\*p-value < 0.01

Looking at the percent distribution of the aforementioned cross-tabulated variables based on the total sample size of 16,809, only 3.4 percent accept homosexuals in general and also approve of men dating men (Table 7).

)	Approve men dating men			
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case	
BOTH SEXES**			16,809	
Yes	3.4	45.6		
No	7.4	43.6		
MALE**			7,947	
Yes	7.4	33.8		
No	4.5	54.3		
FEMALE**			8,862	
Yes	7.3	52.4	1	
No	2.5	37.8	1	

TABLE 7. Cross-tabulation of approval of men dating men by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex (recomputed as a percentage of the total n of case) Meanwhile, 4.2 percent of the total sample size accept a homosexual and approves of women dating women while about two-fifth do not accept homosexuals and also disapproves of women dating women. Three percent of the young people reported an approving response wowdrs a homosexual and same-sex dating for both male and female (Table 8).

	Approve women dating women			
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case	
BOTH SEXES**			16,809	
Yes	4.2	44.8		
No	8.3	42.7	{	
MALE**			7,947	
Yes	7.4	33.8	1	
No	5.4	53.4	(	
FEMALE**			8,862	
Yes	9.0	50.7		
No	3.2	37.1		

TABLE 8. Cross-tabulation of approval of women dating women by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex (recomputed as a percentage of the total n of case)

Two-fifth of them reported a disapproving response toward homosexuals and samesex dating for both male and female. Those who reported that a homosexual is acceptable to them in general and they approve same-sex sexual attraction comprise 7.3 percent of the young people interviewed. Two out of five showed a disapproving stance toward homosexuals and sexual attraction the same sex.

Breaking down the results by sex, based on the total cases for males (7,968) and females (8,869), 7.4 percent and 7.3 percent respectively, have positive attitude towards both a homosexual and nen daring men. On the other hand, 7.4 percent of males and 9.0 percent of females accept homosexuals and at the same time approvs of female daning female. Comparatively, 6.2 percent of males and 6.8 percent of females accept homosexuals and at the same time approve of same-sex daning for both sexes. In contrast, a little over half (54.8 percent) of males and one-third (88.1 percent) of females have a negative attitude towards both a homosexual and same sex dating for both mead female.

	Approve same sex dating for both male and t				
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case		
BOTH SEXES**			16,809		
Yes	3.1	45.9			
No	6.6	44.4			
MALE**			7,947		
Yes	6.2	35.0			
No	4.0	54.8			
FEMALE**			8,862		
Yes	6.8	52.9			
No	2.2	38.1			

TABLE 9. Cross-tabulation of approval of same-sex dating of both male and female by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex (recomputed as a percentage of the total n of case)

About only 6.0 percent of males and 9.0 percent of females accept homosexuals and also approves of same-sets secual attraction, while hulf (9.5) percent) of males and about one-third [34.0 percent) of females have a disapproving position toward both a homosexual and sexual attraction to the same sex. Among the males and females, 11.6 percent respectively, accept both homosexuals and homosexuality practice. Distinctively, half (9.05 percent) of males and about one-third (94.2 percent) of females said they disapprove both of homosexuals and the percence of homosexuality.

Acceptability of	Approve se	in to the same se	ex	
nomosexuals to R	Approve	Neither	Disapprove	N of case
OTH SEXES**				16,809
/es	7.3	5.3	38.3	
lo	3.8	3.4	41.9	
ALE**				7,947
es	5.9	4.6	30.7	
io	4.2	4.1	50.5	
EMALE**				8,862
/es	8.6	6.0	45.1	
No	3.5	2.8	34.0	

TABLE 10. Cross-tabulation of approval of sexual attraction to the same sex by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex (recomputed as a percentage of the total n of case) After aggregating the three approval of homosexuality practice variables – men dating men, women dating women, sexual attraction to the same sex – into one variable, the result shows that one out of five young people approves of the practice of homosexuality. There is no significant difference between the approval of practice of homosexuality between males and females.

Generally, among the adolescents who accept homosexuals, one out of four claims to approve of homosexual practice. Some 85 percent of those who do not accept homosexuals also disapprove of homosexual practice. In the interim, among the males who accept homosexuals, almost three out of 10 approve of homosexual practice while among those who do not accept homosexuals, 84.2 percent remains to disapprove is practice. Onefourth of females who accept homosexuals on the other hand, approve of the practice of homosexuality, and from among those who do not accept homosexuals, 85 percent disapprove of homosexuality practice.

	Approve of practice of homosexuality		
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case
BOTH SEXES**			
Yes	26.4	73.6	8565
No	15.5	84.5	8244
MALE**			
Yes	28.2	71.8	3276
No	13.8	84.2	4671
FEMALE**			
Yes	25.4	74.6	5289
No	15.2	84.8	3573

TABLE 11. C	ross-tabulation of	approval of practice of homosexuality by the acceptability of	
	homosexuals	to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex	

Note: \* p-value < 0.05, \*\*p-value < 0.01

Recalculating the percent distribution based on the total sample size, of the youth respondents, oah J35 present find homosexuals acceptable and also approve of the practice of homosexuality (Table 12). Thirty seven percent of them accept homosexuals in general but disapprovar for the practice of homosexuality. Tada, four out of 10 showed their disapproval for bhomosexuals and the practice of homosexuality. Table 13 shows that from among those who accept homosexuals, there are more males who approve of the practice of homosexuality.

	Approve of practice of homosexuality		
Acceptability of homosexuals to R	Yes	No	N of case
BOTH SEXES**			16,809
Yes	13.5	37.5	
No	7.6	41.4	
MALE** 7,947			
Yes	11.6	29.6	
No	9.3	49.5	
Female**			8,862
Yes	15.1	44.6	
No	6.1	34.2	

#### TABLE 12. Cross-tabulation of approval of practice of homosexuality by the acceptability of homosexuals to R of both sexes and as controlled by sex (recomputed as a percentage of the total n of case)

TABLE 13. Cross-tabulation of the approval of practice of homosexuality by sex of the respondents who said 'yes' in the acceptability of homosexuals to the respondent

Sex of those who said 'yes' in the	Approve of practice of homosexuality		
acceptability of homosexuals**	Yes	No	
MALE	28.2	71.8	
FEMALE	25.4	74.6	

N of case (Male = 3,276, Female = 5289); \*\*p-value < 0.01

## Conclusions and Recommendations

Efforts toward the mainstreaming of ideas relating to homoscuality have been made underway with the advancement of crisscrossing took-oplicida-coconsulic factors. In the light of the modernizing approach to understanding homosexuality, studies must veer away from the psychiatric perspective of analyzing its citology. Far more important questions are as to how social institutions have remained in control of the status of the homoscuali, how these forms of continued marginalization are proliferated, and in the way, find how these processes can be confronted.

Conceptually, this paper has attempted to demonstrate that the adolescent Filipinos' idea of homosexuality varies. In the attempt to complete the picture of the homosexual by attaching
his practices, the level of "acceptance" within the Filipinos has dropped. It is this paper's attempt to put forward that acceptance is different from mere acceptability. Acceptability of the homoseculary of a person rest solely on the "possibility to be accepted", that is, a homosexual may be accepted for reasons other than his homosexuality as defined by his homosexual activities. A society's acceptance takes into account not merely a topical and physical personstation of a homosexual but also the practices that characterize his personality.

Quantitatively, the paper also suggests that when the practice of homosexuality is included in the equation, the level of acceptance of the Flipino youth towards homosexuality (the person and his/her activities) changes. It was viewed that the 'teal' acceptance - both the person and his/her practice - was only demonstrated by 13.5 percent of the addessents. The other 37.5 percent who accept the homosexuality but do not approve of the practice of homosexuality seem to represent the religious dogma of the Catholic Church, which is 'lowe the sinner but northe isan''. Still, a significant proportion at over 40 percent do not accept homosexuality attached to being a homosexuality which may be anchored on the social signar attached to being a homosexual

It can be observed that the practice of homosexuality considered in this paper consists of superficial practices statiched to being a homosexual as these are the only factors that can be supported by the available data set. Nevertheless, the quantitative findings still emphasize the point that the level of acceptance will adjust to its real level when the practice factors are incorporated, even with the limitation of the data.

With these things in mind, the following are recommended:

- A baseline data should be collected to help analyze homosexuality and the social institutions influencing it and the gaps in the existing literature should be filled by future researches and papers along this matter;
- Qualitative studies focused on gender and sexuality among the young people should be undertaken as preparatory work in comprehending the reality behind their attitudes towards homosexuality;
- Future surveys/studies should include other appropriate questions in capturing all the dimensions of sexuality in general and homosexuality in particular to present a more realistic level of homosexuality acceptance; and
- Review of existing attitudinal scales towards homosexuality and developing new attitudinal scales towards homosexuality that will be fitting for the Philippine setting.

Revisiting Social Acceptance of Homosexuality Among Filipino Youth Some Theoretical and Methodological Implications

# References

- Aguilar, EJT. (2006). Voluntary Vasectomy: Rethinking Pagkalalaki Among Married Cebuano. Philippine Population Review, Volume 5 No. 1. Pp. 25-57.
- Cruz, Christian. (2007). Determinants of the Gender and Age Differential on the Acceptability And Practice of Homosexuality among the Youth in the Philippines. YAFS3 working papers.
- Du Prie, Daniel. (1998). The spectre of Freud: homosexuality, gay genes and the 'weak father' theory.http://members.tripod.com/duprie/essays/the\_spectre\_of\_freud.htm. Accessed October 20, 2007

Encyclopedia of Homosexuality. (1990). New York: Garland Publishing,

Foucault, Michel. (1980). The History of Sexuality: An Introduction. New York : Vintage Books

Garcia, J. Neil C. (2006). Philippine gay culture: the last thirty years: binabae to bakla, silahis to MSM. Quezon City: University of the Philippines Press, c1996.

\_\_\_\_\_, (2004). Male Homosexuality in the Philippines: a short history. IIAS Newsletter. http://www.iias.nl/nl/35/IIAS\_NL35\_13.pdf. Accessed October 28, 2007.

- Hart, John and Diane Richardson. (1981). The Theory and Practice of Homesexuality. USA: London, Boston and Henley.
- Hart, Donn. (1992). Homosexuality and Transvetism in the Philippines. USA. Asian Homosexuality. Dynes, Wayne and Stephen Donaldson (eds.).
- Hartwich, Alexander. (1959). Aberrations of secual life, after the Psychopathia secualis. Trans. from the German by Arthur Vivian Burbury. London : Stapple Press.
- Lim, Michael Kho. (2005). When the Politics of Desire meets the Economics of the Skin. The history and Phenomenon of a Filipino Gay Magazine. Paper read at the Sexualities, Genders, and Rights in Asia: An International Conference of Asian Queer Studies. July 7-9. Bangkok, Thailand.
- Offir, Carole. (1982). Human Sexuality. New York: Harcourt Brace Jovanivich.
- Researching Sexuality and Sexual Health in Southeast Asia and China. (2005). The Institute of Health Sciences, Kunning Medical College and Rockefeller Foundation.
- Schellenberg, Glenn E., Jessie Hirt and Alan Sears (1999). Attitudes toward homosexuals among students at a Canadian university. Canada: Sex Roles: A Journal of Research.
- Schroeder, Melinda. (2004). Changing Social Attitudes in the United States: IncreasingAcceptance of Homosexuals. United States: UW-L Journal of Undergraduate Research VII.

Searle, John, (1997). The Construction of Social Reality. New York : Free Press.

Seidman, Steven. (2003). The Social Construction of Sexuality. New York : Norton

Silverio, Mely, 2004. Homosexuality. Diliman, Quezon City: Youth Sex and Risk Behaviors in the Philippines. Raymundo, Corazon and Grace Cruz (eds.).

Wiederman, Michael. (2001). Understanding Secuality Research. Wadsworth Thomson Learning.

- Wood, Julia T. (2003). Gendered Lives: Communication, Gender and Culture. Wadsworth Thomson Learning.www.en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Societal\_attitudes\_towards\_homosexuality.
- Yee, Nick. (2003). "Catching The Phoenix: The Social Construction of Homosexuality". http://www.nickyee.com/ponder/social\_construction.html. Accessed October 20, 2007.



# The Emergence of Multigenerational Households: The Role of Early Union'

Clarinda Lusterio-Berja

# Abstract

ecent demographic and social trends in the Philippines bring about the formation of various non-nuclear household arrangements. The Young Adult Fertility and Sexuality Survey III (YAFSS3) reveals that 22 percent of young Filipinos (15-27 years old) are in a multipenerational co-residence and 35 percent of them in early union. The data also show that young people in multigenerational households are disadvantaged in terms of education. employment, parents' characteristics and risk behaviors compared to their counterparts in nuclear households. In this study, the emergence of multigenerational co-residence is seen as a family survival strategy in responding to various socio-demographic and economic pressures specifically carly unions, teenage pregnancy and solo parenthood. It describes the condition of youth in multigenerational co-residence compared to those in nuclear households. It also examines the relationship between multigenerational co-residence and youth developmental outcomes (i.e., education and employment) as well as risk behaviors (i.e., substance abuse and early sex) and probes whether parents' early union lead to children's early union. Utilizing the individual and household data from the YAFSS3, the study employs a two-stage analysis to determine whether multigenerational co-residence is contributing to the success or failure of the youth's transition. The findings center on the importance of multigenerational co-residence in shaping the educational and social experiences of young people and ensuring that the youth are safe, secure and stable within these household arrangements.

<sup>\*</sup> Core research team member of YAFSS3, and Ph.D. candidate, Department of Sociology, University of the Philippines.

### Introduction

Multigenerational households are commonly found in many developing countries, particularly in Asia where families are characterized as closely latit. This household structure allows families to come together to face the many trails of life, such as raising a child, earning for elders, single parenthood, and high cost of living and housing. This kind of living arrangement houses the transformation of a household into extended houses as a result of changes, as well as transitions within the family and consequently, its relationship to the larger king group. For example, the increasing participation of a more active economic contributor to the family's coffer. The diminished time spent by mothers in housing after the household leads to relance to older family members, participative the grandparents.

Some societie encourage multigenerational living because of the primary role of the family in the child's socialization. The parents and other adult members of the family instill in the child the norms, values, belefic, and patterns of behavior expected in society. In the Philippines, multigenerational living continues despite the decline in household size and the trise in single-person households observed in the hast decades. Estimates from the 2002 Young Adult Ferdiny and Sexuality Study 3 (YAFSS3) show that one out of five households is multigenerational and unexpectedly, there are more of this in urban (particularly in Metro Munia) than in rural areas (Beriz, 2003).

Earlier studies about multigenerational households attribute the decline in this type of coresidence to preferences of the elderly (Shanas; 1968 cited by Ruggles, 1998). This is not reflected however in the case of developing countries where preferences of the younger generation figure as an important factor as well. In some countries, the rise in education and job status of the younger generation have eroded the economic incurives of multigenerational co-residence. For others, this set-up remains a refligue for those in difficult life situations.

In this study, the emergence of multigenerational households are seen as a family survival strategy, particularly as a response to various socio-demographic and economic pressures brought about by early union, teenage pregnancy and solo parenthood.

The tudy aims to describe, as well as compare, the conditions of the youth population in multigenerational and nonnultigenerational households. It also identifies the factors that predispose young people to different living arrangements. In particular, it probes the role of early union of children and the role of parents in the emergence of this kind of living arrangement.

# Methodology

### Data

This study utilizes data from the YAFSS3, the third of a series of youth surveys covering 16 administrative regions of the Philippines. The YAFSS3 has a total respondents of 19,747 young people, ages 15-27 years old. Aside from the individual survey, household data were also generated from 15,401 sample households and community data from 903 *hamagan*.

### Variables and measures

The study identifies multigenerational households using the relationship to household head, type of family (whether the household member belongs to the first up to the sixth family nucleus or whether he or she close not have family nucleus), age and marial status variables in the household record. The characteristics of young people as well as their household heads are described in each of the co-residence uppes.

Multigenerational household is defined as a household consisting of "three or more generations of prenets and their families." The typical multigenerational household in the Philippines would fall into one of two types of family structures as shown in Figure 1 below. The first type includes families with the household head, his or her children, and grandchildren. The second type includes a household head, his/her ow no intellint the fuller and grandchildren and his/her own paterns. Very few households would fall into the third type, which consists of the household head, his/her own children and grandchildren and his/her own paterns.





In the first type of multigenerational household, the children marry young and thus the household head carries the burden of providing financial and other support to both his/her children and grandchildren. In cases where the children are employed, the grandparent or other older relative usually provides the day care for the young children. In such cases, these older relatives may feel some strains on their health and emotional state because of their age and physical state. In some households, the siblings of the young parent also have their share in day care for the young children.

In the second type, the household head provides caring for their parent/older relative. The household head is the one strained by the responsibility of providing for the food, shelter and medical needs of their parent/older relative in addition to the daily demands of raising their own children.

In the third type, dependency burden of the household head is coming from both the young and the old members of the household.

### Method of analysis

A multinomial logistic regression (MLR) model was estimated to test the effects of early union on multigenerational co-residence. The outcome categories in the dependent variable are: (1) household extended by grandchildren of household Insaid; (2) household resended by parents of household head; and (3) normaliggenerational household. The normaliggenerational household serves as effective category. The independent variables includee carly union, work, education, age, sex, parents's early union, subality of parent's union, parent's work, submity and povery stratus. Thus, logis 11 errers to the logistic regression that compares households extended by grandchildren vs. nonmultigenerational households while logit 2 compares households served ed by parents of household head vs. nonmultigenerational households

Logit 1 = log (probability (extended by grandchildren | X))/ probability

(nonmultigenerational | X) =  $b_{10} + b_{11}X_1 + b_{12}X_2 + \dots + b_{1k}X_k$ 

Logit 2 = log (probability (extended by parents | X))/ probability

(nonmultigenerational | X) =  $b_m + b_n X_n + b_n X_n + \dots + b_n X_n$ 

### Results

Data from the YAFSS3 reveal that multigenerational households represent about 20 percent of households with young people ages 15-24 years old in the Philippines. There are more households extended by grandchildren and/or son- and daughter-in-law than those extended by parents of the household head (17.1 percent and 4.2 percent respectively). The Emergence of Multigenerational Households: The Role of Early Union

This suggests that the young people termina dependent on their parents even as they form a family of their own. Those who marry at a young age continue to seek parent's support and remain in their parent's house. The rest of multigenerational households provide support for the delarbi. Providing care for the family elders at home is still a common practice among Filipino families.

### Household size and composition

To further describe multigenerational households, the average household size and the composition of households in terms of their relationship with the household head were estimated. The results are presented in Table 1 below.

TABLE 1. Household Composition				
Relationship to household head	Percent			
Head	17.1			
Spouse	14.2			
Son/Daughter	52.7			
Son-/daughter-in-law	2.4			
Grandson/Granddaughter-in-law	6.3			
Parent/Parent-in-law	1.0			
Other relatives	4.8			
Not related	1.5			
TOTAL	100.0			
N of cases	90,830			

As expected, the non-multigenerational households have fewer household members than multigenerational household (5.57 vs. 7.75).

In the Philippines, the size and composition of household changes at different stages of the family life cycle. For instance, a newly married couple that decides to stay temporarily with parents of either spouse will belong to an extended family household during their earlymarried life. They later on more out to establish their own household and this cominues during the childkaening and child rearing stage. The household becomes extended again when a married child and his/her spouse or other relatives join the couple. When all the married children have gone, the couple is left with unmarried children and becomes nuclear again.

BERJA

Data also imply that majority of Filipino households are nuclear – composed primarily of husband, wife and children. The others are either bilaterally extended which includes the finilies of the husband and wife or vertically extended with the children's family including the soor, daughter: in-law and grandchildren. Vertical extension is more prevalent compared to the horizontal extension.

The regional distribution presented in Table 2 shows the highest proportion (29.2 percent) of multigenerational household in the National Capital Region (which is 100 percent urban).

	TADLE 2. Type	or munugeneratio	nal Residence by	10gion	
Region	Nonmulti- Generational	With children and grandchildren of household head (Type 1)	With children and parents of household head (Type 2)	Total Percent	Number of cases
llocos	76.7	19.2	4.1	100.0	917
Cagayan Valley	82.8	13.2	4.0	100.0	325
Central Luzon	83.2	14.1	2.7	100.0	1,459
Southern Tagalog	83.2	13.7	3.1	100.0	2,783
Bicol	73.7	22.2	4.1	100.0	1,022
Western Visayas	82.9	13.1	4.0	100.0	1,210
Central Visayas	75.9	19.7	4.4	100.0	1,490
Eastern Visayas	75.3	19.9	4.9	100.0	700
Western Mindanao	85.9	11.3	2.8	100.0	433
Northern Mindanao	80.6	16.8	2.6	100.0	844
Southern Mindanao	79.9	17.1	3.1	100.0	1,236
Central Mindanao	80.9	12.5	6.6	100.0	512
ARMM	82.5	12.1	5.4	100.0	314
CAR	77.0	19.0	3.9	100.0	305
CARAGA	75.8	17.8	6.4	100.0	534
NCR	71.8	21.7	6.5	100.0	2,880
TOTAL	78.7	17.1	4.3	100.0	16,964

PHILIPPINE POPULATION REVIEW

While it is expected that urban areas tend to be more nuclear, the gravitation of rural people to urban centers being the center of economic activity leads to its congestion. The economic cost of building and/or owning a house is also difficult for younger couples.

Western Mindanao has the lowest proportion of multigenerational household, Similar distribution is reflected in the other regions in Mindanao where multigenerational co-residence is low but extension by aged parents is above the national average. This implies that although households in Mindanao are predominantly nonmultigenerational, they still tend to provide care and emotional support to their delser stuher than keep their young marined children and grandchildren. One possible explanation would be the ease of building houses especially for young couples in these predominantly rural areas compared to the cities.

The nuclearity of households in rural areas does not necessarily imply waning kinship structure. Castillo (1979) described the Filipino family as "residentially nuclear but functionally extended." In a sense, this points the described the modal household in the Philippines as nuclear but the family relationship continues to be extended. Kinsmen, particularly in the rural areas identify with each other, assist one another, and participate in joint activities even if they do not share a common residence.

### Characteristics of household heads

Table 3 summarizes the characteristics of household heads by type of household. It shows that makes predominantly head nonmultigenerational households. More females than males head Type 1 households (28 percent vs. 15 percent). Type 2 multigenerational households showed no difference in the gender of household heads.

As expected, the older household heads are found in multigenerational households. The younger ones are usually in nonmultigenerational households while about half of those who are already in their retirement age (65 and over) head a multigenerational household. Interestingly, there are relatively larger proportions of the younger heads in the Type 2 households.

A large majority of the households are headed by matricel people regardless of household type, although relatively larger proportions of those in dissolved unions (separated/divorced and widows) are found in both types of multigenerational households. A possible explanation to this observation is the Filipino tradition that bequestifs household headship to the oldest finally member regardless of his to the economic contribution to the inalist.

In terms of education, it appears that heads of nonmultigenerational households and Type 2 households tend to be better off than those in Type 1 set-up since there is higher proportion of those who reached high school and college in those households compared to their counterparts.

TABL	E 3. Characteris	stics of Household	Heads by Type o	f Household	
	Nonmulti- Generational	With children and grandchildren of household head (Type 1)	With children and parents of household head (Type 2)	Total Percent	Number of cases
SEX					
Male	80.3	15.4	4.3	100.0	14,607
Female	68.0	28.0	4.1	100.0	2,359
AGE GROUP					
15-24	95.0	0.0	5.0	100.0	926
25-34	92.6	0.9	6.5	100.0	1,265
35-44	88.8	6.1	5.1	100.0	4,297
45-54	77.2	18.5	4.3	100.0	6,604
55-64	65.4	32.0	2.6	100.0	2,625
65 & over	52.5	45.5	2.0	100.0	1,246
MARITAL STATUS					
Never married	95.9	1.0	3.0	100.0	492
Currently married	80.6	15.5	3.9	100.0	13,674
Living-in	85.3	11.0	3.6	100.0	797
Separated/Divorced	65.0	25.9	9.1	100.0	351
Widow	56.3	36.8	6.9	100.0	1,567
EDUCATION					
No schooling	74.6	22.9	2.5	100.0	568
Elementary	75.2	22.2	2.6	100.0	6,175
High School/					
Vocational	81.1	14.9	4.0	100.0	6,458
College	80.6	11.8	7.6	100.0	3,763

# Characteristics of youth population

Table 4 describes the youth in multigenerational households and compares them with those in non-multigenerational households.

Results show that there are more females than males in Type 1 households (28 percent vs.15 percent). The males are more likely to be in nonmultigenerational and Type 2 households (80 percent vs. 68 percent and 4.3 percent vs. 4.1 percent, respectively).

As expected, the younger ones are found in nonmultigenerational households (82 percent vs. 74 percent) while Type 1 multigenerational households tend to have the older cohort of youth population (14 percent vs. 22 percent). Again, no age-difference was found among those in Type 2 residence.

Education showed very little difference among young people across all three types of coresidence. Those in multigenerational co-residence seem to be better off than those in nonmultigenerational household in terms of education. There is slightly higher proportion of those in multigenerational set-up who had at least high school education than those without in (17.3 percent v. 16.9 percent).

	Nonmulti- Generational	With children and grandchildren of household head	and and parents of household usehold head (Type 2)	Total Percent	Number of cases
		(Type 1)			
SEX					
Male	79.9	15.6	4.4	100.0	8,042
Female	77.4	18.5	4.1	100.0	8,923
AGE GROUP					
15-19	81.8	14.0	4.3	100.0	10,236
20-24	73.8	21.9	4.3	100.0	6,728
EDUCATION					
W/ high school	78.1	17.3	4.6	100.0	10,076
W/o high school	79.4	16.9	3.7	100.0	6,824
EMPLOYMENT					
Working	77.2	17.5	5.3	100.0	4,673
Not working	79.2	17.0	3.8	100.0	12,290
GOT MARRIED BEFORE AGE 20)					
Yes	66.4	30.0	3.7	100.0	1,412
No	79.7	16.0	4.3	100.0	15,552
FATHER GOT MARRIED EARLY					
Yes	76.4	19.7	3.9	100.0	2,322
No	79.2	16.8	4.0	100.0	10,173

MOTHER GOT					
MARRIED EARLY					
Yes	77.2	19.5	3.3	100.0	5,766
No	79.6	15.7	4.7	100.0	6,984
FATHER IS WORKING OVERSEAS					
Yes	82.6	11.1	6.3	100.0	253
No	78.5	17.2	4.2	100.0	16,713
MOTHER IS WORKING OVERSEAS					
Yes	80.6	10.2	9.2	100.0	196
No	78.6	17.2	4.2	100.0	16,768
PARENTS LIVING TOGETHER					
Yes	80.8	15.6	3.6	100.0	12,933
No	73.4	20.7	5.9	100.0	2,523
URBANITY					
Urban	76.8	18.4	4.8	100.0	8,810
Rural	80.5	15.7	3.7	100.0	8,155
POVERTY					
Poor	83.4	13.0	3.6	100.0	6,180
Non-poor	75.8	19.5	4.7	100.0	10,553
TOTAL	78.7	17.1	4.3	100.0	16,964

Conversely, there is slightly higher proportion of those without high school education than those with high school education among the youth in nonmultigenerational households (79.4 percent vs. 78.1 percent).

There is also slightly higher proportion of unemployed youth in nonmultigenerational households (70 percent vs. 77 percent). On the other hand, higher proportion of economically active youth is in Type 2 multigenerational households (5.3 percent vs. 3.8 percent). The Type I household did not show any difference in employment of youth.

Those who got married before age 20 have greater predisposition to be in Type 1 multigenerational household compared to those who did not marry early (30 percent) vs. 16 percent). Conversely, in nonmultigenerational households (66 percent vs. 80 percent), there is lower proportion of those who married early. There is no difference among those in Type 2 households. The Emergence of Multigenerational Households: The Role of Early Union

As capacited, there are more adolescents whose fathers and mothers married early that are found in Type 1 multigenerational households (19.7 vs. 16.8 percent and 19.5 percent vs. 15.7 percent). Since the parents married early, they have greater probability of having married children and grandchildren living with them. Those who did not marry early tend to be in the nonmultigenerational or Type 2 households.

Those whose fathers work overseas are more likely to be in nonmultigenerational bouschols. In Type 1 households, the fathers are less likely to be working overseas. On the contrary, Type 2 households exhibited slightly higher proportion of fathers working abroad (6.5 percent vs. 4.2 percent). The difference in proportion is even larger for mothers working oversess (9.2 percent vs. 4.2 percent). Again, this shows that in the absence of a mother, the grandmother takes on the responsibility of child rearing so the family becomes extended at least while the mother (or the father is away.

Those whose parents are not together tend to be in multigenerational co-residence (20.7 percent vs. 15.6 percent in Type 1 and 5.7 percent vs. 3.6 percent in Type 2). A possible explanation is the tendency, particularly among female parents, to seek support from her family of origin when her marriage is dissolved (Zablan, et al, 1996).

In urban areas, there is growing tendency to form multigenerational co-residence. About 18.4 percent of urban young population and only 15.7 percent rural youth live in Type 1 households. Smilatly, there is 4.8 percent youth population in urban and only 3.7 percent in rural in Type 2 households. The nonmultigenerational households have lower proportion of urban than areal urballens (7.6.8 percent), so 2000 percent).

There is higher proportion of poor than nonpoor in nonmultigenerational households (83 percent vs. 76 percent). The opposite was observed in both types of multigenerational households where more nonpoor than poor youth were found (19.5 percent vs. 13 percent for Type 1 and 4.7 percent vs. 36 percent for Type 2).

### Factors that influence multigenerational co-residence

The grandchildren of the household head extend the bigger proportion of multigenerational co-residence in the Philippines. Results of the MLR model summarized in Table 5 identify hou are more likely to be in this living arrangement. The MLR coefficients reveals that those who got matriced before the age of 20, with a mother who matried early, older, unemployed, nonpoor, urban residents, with parents still living together are more likely to be in Type I multigenerational co-residence.

The odds of forming a co-residence of household head with his/her children and grandchildren are highest for those who got matried early (i.e., before age 20). They are two times more likely to be in this living arrangement than in nonmuligenerational set-up. As expected, increasing age of the youth shows a positive association with Type I households. Interestingly, those who live in urban areas are more likely to be in this living arrangement. One explanation for the higher likelihood of Type 1 living arrangement is that those in the cirjf fuil it more difficult and costly to part up a separate dwelling unit while in runA area three is enough space and a simple dwelling unit made up of light materials will do for a newly married couple.

In terms of socioeconomic status, those without high school education are more likely to be in Type 1 households. These young people are in a disadvantaged situation since education provides them skills and the opportunity of getting good jobs in order to perform their family role and become productive members of the society.

Although they have low education, they belong to nonpoor households. It seems that low easient is balanced off by being in nonpoor households although it could not be safely assumed that they are not in a disadvantaged situation.

The negative association of Type 1 households with parents living together demonstrates the influence of parents on children's predisposition to be in such living arrangement. This implies failure in early marriages which could be associated with earlier findings that those whose mothers married early trend to be in multigementational set-up.

The other type of household, which is extended by parents of the household head (Type 2) comprise only a fifth of all multigenerational co-residences. In this type of living arrangement, young matriced son or dangher heads the household and the param(s) of the head extends the household. Who are more likely to be in this multigenerational co-residence? Five factors figured as significantly determining Type 2 co-residence as also shown in Table 5. The model indicates that those with a mother who matried early, with parents in dissolved union, with moder working abrouch does without high school education, and nonpoor are more likely to be in Type 2 (household head with children and parents of household head) multigenerational co-residence.

In the logit 2 model, the odds of forming a co-residence extended by grandparents are highest for those whose mothers work overses. The parents of the household head, usually the grandmother joins the household to give support in terms of childcare so that their hiddren will be also towark abroad and make economic provisions for their grandchildren.

Unlike in the first model, education did not show significant effect in forming Type 2 living arrangement. However, employment appeared to have positive association with Type 2 household. This partly explains the finding that these households are mostly headed by young married couples.

The young people in Type 2 households seem better off than other youth since they are employed and they belong to households considered as nonpoor. But again, this does not mean that they are not in disadvantaged position. In fact, these young people bear the responsibility of providing for the economic needs of both their children and parents.

Similar to those in Type 1 households, if the parents are living together, it is less likely that they are in Type 2 living arrangement. Here, the stability of parents' union seemingly appears as a protective factor to early marriage and congruently being in a Type 2 household.

	Hour	ehold ext	onded b		House	shold ext	anded by		
		dchildren				ts of Hou			
	Head	vs. Non	multioer	erational	vs. No	vs. Nonmultigenerational			
	household			household					
	B Std. Sig. Exp			в	Std.	Sig.	Exp		
		Error		(B)		Error		(B)	
Intercept	-3.818	242	000		-1.907	.466	.000		
Age	.119	.010	.000	1.126	015	.020	.460	.985	
Urban	.113	.054	.035	1.120	083	103	418	1.087	
Male	.009	.055	871	1.009	015	.103	.885	.985	
Not Working	.095	.060	.115	1.100	457	.110	.000	.633	
Without high									
school	232			1 261	- 134	.117	.252	875	
education	10.02	.060	.000						
Early union	.740	.088	.000	2.096	.183	.213	.390	1.201	
Father married				1					
early	.106	.069	.124	1.111	.140	.138	.313	1.150	
Mother married									
early	.220	.056	.000	1.246	264	.110	.017	.768	
Father works									
overseas	.014	.217	.948	1.014	.378	.329	.251	1.459	
Mother works									
overseas	350	.283	.216	.705	.711	.329	.031	2.035	
Poor household	-,605	.062	.000	.546	264	.114	.021	.768	
Parents are									
together	289	.069	.000	.749	446	.131	.001	.640	

The reference category is: nonmultigenerational.

BERJA

### Discussion

Completing education, entering the labor force, starting a family, having children and setting up one's own home – these formed the track that many young Filipinos followed in the past. But many social, economic and structural disruptions have made this transition difficult to achieve.

The study found that early union predisposes young people to be in Type 1 multigementional set-up. This event is coupled with early pregnancy, dropping out of school and unemployment. In this set-up, the economic burders in mostly assumed by the household heat. If the household heat, the house hold heat, If the household heat, If the household heat, If the household heat, the household heat, If the household heat, the household heat heat the house hold heat, the household heat, If the household heat heat are not house household heat heat heat work.

Childcare support is provided mostly by the grandmother and sometimes shared by members of the households. The same is true in the case of Type 2 households, although the difference is that the young married children take the double burden of the young and the old in the family.

Households are reconfigured to accommodate family members who need support for childers and other demands of urban life particularly among young people. Ironically, the changing economic realities and migration have to some degree dislocated and strained the bedrock of intergenerational relationships. The increased amount of time spent by both men and women in the workplace has challenged the traditional capacity of the family to provide the totality of care for all its members in the home.

It is evident in this study that when the mother works overseas, grandparents assume most of the childcare and childrearing responsibilities. Consequently, the large intergenerational gap between young people and the elderly and the missing middle generation is likely to strain family relationships.

Mother's early marriage was found to be a predisposing factor in both types of multigenerational living arrangement. Unlike the mother's, father's early union showed insignificant effect in forming multigenerational households.

Parental role is also shown by the significant effect of parents' own living arrangement, (if the parents are still living together) on household formation of young people. If family members seek the support from a multigenerational set-up, then the household has to be stable enough to be able to provide not only economic but also psychological and social support.

Multigenerational households are more likely to be nonpoor. Here, the poverty measure used should provide context to this finding. It is important to note that the indicator of poverty used in this study is based on household and housing characteristics and characteristics of household head, and excludes the poverty status of the respondent per se. However, in this study, education and employment status serve as proxy measures of poverty status of the young. As mentioned earlier, being in a nonpoor household does not necessarily connote that they are not in a disadvantaged position.

# Conclusion

By and large, the multigenerational co-residence as it is found in the Philippines appears as a coping strategy to face fimily trials and poverty situation brought about by early unions. For Type 1 co-residence, those who married early seek economic and child care support from the household head. For Type 2 co-residence, the household head gains child care support from their parents as well.

While multi-generational living is encouraged by many societies that emphasize intergenerational solidatiry, several issues have yet to be addressed particularly in the case of the Philippines where multigenerational co-residence appears as a symptom of problems that confront the Filipino family.

- Multigenerational co-residence is more common in highly urbanized areas than in rural areas. In urban areas, limited space and housing facilities pull family members and extended kin together to share limited resources in order to survive urban life.
- 2) Multigenerational co-residence contains dissolved nuclear family. This could possibly impact on the shaping of young minds growing up without the conventional family setup. Family roles must be well-defined to prevent strains in intergenerational relationships.
- 3) The efforts of family members of multiple generations living in one household show family responsibility. But, while family members are willing to step in as care givers, not all of them are equipped to provide the care and services that children and older relatives require. Sometimes, child care is already too physically demanding for the older relatives treit circumsances force him/fare to do such task.
- 4) For some young people, multigementional co-residence can be considered as an option especially among those who intend to get matried early and have children. This has pressing demographic impact since daughters already start reproducing while their mothers are still in their reproductive years. Young people who start family life early are pulled out from school and faced with unemployment problem. In turn, they put pressure on multigenerational co-residence.

Given all these, it is important to examine conditions of multigenerational households to ensure that the youth, as well as the other members of the family, are safe, secure and stable within these household arrangements. Multigenerational should be a preference, not only of the household head and the delerk but more importantly, the youth.

### Note

### References

- Berthoud, Richard and Karen Robson. (2001). "The Outcomes of Teenage Motherhood in Europe". Innocenti Working Paper No. 86. Florence: UNICEF Innocenti Research Centre.
- Bruce, Judith et al. (1995). Families in Focus: New Perspectives on Mothers, Father and Children. Population Council, New Year: 1995.
- Castillo, Gelia T. (1979). Beyond Manila: Philippine Rural Problems in Perspective. Ottawa, Canada: International Development Research Centre.

Chant, Sylvia. (1997). "Marginal (m)others: lone parents and female household headship in the Philippines." European Journal of Development Research 9:1-34.

- ESCAP. (1997). Review of the Youth Situation, Policies and Programmes in Asia and the Pacific, p. 32, Bangkok.
- Illo, Jeanne Frances I. (1992). Who Heads the Household?: Women in Households in the Philippines. *Finding the Household: conceptual and methodological issues*, vol. 5, Women and household in Asia, edited by K. Saradamoni. New Delhi: Sage Publications.
- Lusterio-Berja, Clarinda. (1998). "The Filipino Household". Unpublished Paper.
- Lusterio-Berja, Clarinda. (2003). "Filipino Youth in Multigenerational Households". Paper presented at the 5<sup>th</sup> National Social Science Conference, May 2003, Philippines Social Science Council Bildg, Quezon City, Philippines.
- Medina, Belen T.G. (2001). The Filipino Family, 2<sup>nd</sup> Ed. Diliman, Quezon City: University of the Philippines Press.
- National Statistics Office. (1997). 1995 Census of Population and Housing, Manila.
- Zablan, Zelda, Clarinda Lusterio and Gilda Diaz. (1995). Conditions of Households with Heads in Dissolved Unions. NSO Monograph No. 3.

Paper prepared for the 7th International Conference on Philippine Studies organized by the International Institute for Asian Studies (IIAS), June 16-19, 2004, Leiden, The Netberlands.



# Active Life Expectancy of Filipino Older People

Grace T. Cruz

### Abstract

Using data from the 19% Philippine Elderly Study, the study presents results which provide a baseline estimate of the Active Life Expectancy (ALD) among Filipino older people ob years and over. The study employs a functional health approach which measures health in terms of the respondent's ability to perform normal everyday activities of daily bring. Findings demonstrate a significant gendre partner in ALE, with the fendes more likely to outly where male counterparts although they can expect to live a greater part of that life in a state of physical disability.

# Background

Population aging refers to the increasing number and proportion of people in the older age groups. By United Nations (UN) definition, a population is considered aging when the proportion of older people is seven percent or over. UN tabulations sormally define older people to include those at least 60 or 65 years old. In the Philippines older persons refer to those aged 00 years and over.

The aging of the world's population has assumed significance in recent years particularly in countries that have gone farthest in the demographic transition. The unprecedented high level and tempo of aging observed in many countries have spelled tremendous implications on the bigger socio-cultural and economic milieu, particularly in the area of health care and

Director and associate professor, University of the Philippines Population Institute. Correspondence relating to this article may be sent to gusteruz@yaboo.com

health financing, which explain the amount of research attention that this demographic phenomenon is receiving today.

The contours of population aging have been defined by demographic and epidemiologic transitions. Sustained declines in fertility and mortality levels experienced by many economically developed societies have resulted in the maturation in age structure that resulted in a d'munité rise in the number and proportion of the older sector of the population. Such population dynamic is inframely linked with the shifts in disease patterns. In particular, the mortality pandemics of infraetorise at the leading causes of death and diseases have been gradually replaced by degenerative disease (Doman, 1971).

The 20th century saw a continuing shift in morbidity patterns that brought about further declines in morality than earlier subjects to 400 (791). This mortality decline, which was mostly concentrated in the older age groups, made significant impact on the size of the population at the advanced ages. Using data from the United States, Olshansky and Ault (1980) noticed a rapid moritally decline in advanced ages that was caused by the posponement of ages at which degenerative diseases tended to lead to death. This development extended life expectancy a thirth beyond screen decades which, in the 1970a, was believed to be close to the biological limit of human life. To emphasize this remarkable achievement in epidemiologic history, Olshansky and Ault (1986) proposed a fourth stage to the transition, the 'Age of Delayed Degenerative Diseases." The new stage signals the period of a radistribution in degenerative diseases accompanying the shift in the age of death with the causes (degenerative) remaining essentially the same.

In many countries where population aging has reached significant levels, a central policy concern is the potential conflict between achieving longer life and improving the quality of life (van de Water, 1933 in Crimmins, 2003). A controversial issue in this regard is the question of whether declining mortality at advanced ages will result in additional years of health or additional years of disability at the oldest ages. Indeed, developments in the demographic and epidemiologic transitions that have added more years to life have now resulted in uncertainties about the level of health of the population. Some have argued that increasing life expectancy may ironically be producing 'longer life and worsening health' (Verbruggge, 1984) which means having more people with ill health who are likely to be consumers of health care services and products (Gruenberg, 1977). This pessimistic view is the so-called 'expansion of morbidity hypothesis' (Gruenberg, 1977; Kramer, 1980; Olshansky et al., 1991). The latter runs counter to a more optimistic view, the 'compression of morbidity hypothesis' (Fries, 1980, 1989) which anticipates an improving state of health. This theory suggests that future increases in life expectancy will not necessarily mean increased prevalence of illness and disability but will in fact, eventually lead to improvement in the quality of life of older people. With the task of eliminating premature causes of death already largely Active Life Expectancy of Filipino Older People

accomplished, chronic illnesses are expected to occur only during the last few years of life. Healthy life will be prolonged at a rate greater than that of total years of life and consequently, the fraction of total life that is healthy will increase (Rogers et al, 1990).

The uncertainty of the aging-health nexus has elevated health as a central issue in the aging discourse and has accordingly given rise to new methodological approaches which include among others, health expectancy (H.E.). H.E. typically refers to the average number of vears an individual can expect to live in a given health state (Mathers, Robine and Wikins, 1994). The concept of H.E. resulted from a broadening in the conceptualization of health from a metric of length of life as a measure of health status to a quality of life perspective. The measure seeks to assess the quality of remaining life by determining number of years lived in health states such as a state without disability, with disability, handicap or any other form of impairment. An attractive feature of H.E. is that it combines the fundamental dimensions of health (mortality, morbidity and disability) into a summary indicator to provide information on the length of life (adding years to life) and the healthfulness of life (adding life to years). It involves the development of indicators that provide important tools for understanding how health states and length of life change in actual population and whether there has been an expansion or contraction of healthy life (Crimmins, 2003) as life expectancy rises. They also provide the means to assess which individual-level factors are likely to be associated with better health at older ages (Manton et al., 1997; Manton and Gu, 2001).

HE is a generic term used for ballby life expectancy and is alternately called 'Acrive Life Expectancy' (LLS). ALF is a type of HE: which measures active or independent life and makes use of Activities of Dally Living (ADL) and Instrummental Activities of Dally Living (IADL) as measures of health status (Kaz et al., 1963, Lawron and Brody, 1969, Verbragge and Jette, 1994, Conceptually, ADL and IADL are indicators of disability aince they measure ability to provide personal hygiene and self care such as batting and volicing (ADL) and basis activities necessary to reside independently in the community such as marketing, housekeeping and meal preparation (IADL). Ability to perform ADL and IADL activities have been widely used as indicators of health in many secarch on older population (Crimmins, 1996).

This paper seeks to estimate the ALE among Filipino older people 60 years and over and to assess gender differences, if any. This will establish the benchmark estimates of ALE of older people in the country

# Data and Methodology

The study was based on data from the 1996 Philippine Eldedy Survey (PES), the first nationally representative sample of older people aged 50 years and over in the country. PES was conducted using a multi-stage stratified cluster sampling design which resulted in a total of 2285 interviews with respondents, aged 50 years and over living in households. The response rate was 95 percent (Hermalin, et al., 1998). The 1990 PES was part of a bigger project, 'Compansive Study of Elderly in Four Asian countries' which included the Philippines, Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand and was designed to investigate how rapid demographic change in these societies has affected the elderly. It collected a whole range of characteristics of older people including ther health which is the main focus of this study.

The paper defines health in terms of its social dimension which considers a person's ability to perform certain social finetions and proficiency in social existence. In particular, the study adopted a functional health definition, measuring health in terms of two conceptual domains personal care (ADD) and independent living (ADD). ADL and IADL measures have become standard variables in elderly research jost like eag, sex, marial status and income and have been increasingly used in measuring the quality of life and functional states. (Spitzer, 1987). The advantage of using ADL sover other behalth indicortos is that these are more specific and concrete, thus avoiding situational or contextual difference among survey respondents. ADLs were also found to be good predictors of a wide range of healthrelated behaviors (Weiner et al. (1990). However, they do not measure the full range of activities necessary for independent living. Thus, IADL measures were developed to fill in the gap (Lawton and Brody, 1990).

In the 1996 PES, eldelty respondents were asked if they had any difficulty doing any of the four ADL or five IADL activities because of health reasons. ADL activities include self-care tasks such walking around the boxes, earing, putting on clothes/dressing, and taking a bath/going to bathroom. IADL indicators which measure the ability to assume independent living include preparing one's own meai, shopping for groceries or personal items, managing own money, doing light housework like doing dishes, straightening up or light cloaning, using transportation oget to places beyond walking distance. These indicators were used to define the functional health status of the older person. A person was considered interver if he or she could not perform at least one of the ADL or IADL activities by himself or herself because of health reason. Thus, a healthy state means no functioning ability problem, i.e., without any ADL or IADL activities by himself or

ALE was derived using the prevalence-based Life Table or the Sullivan Method. Calculation of the Sullivan Health Expectancy required data on the age and sex-specific disability rate of the older population (obtained from the 1996 PES) and the age-specific mortality data by sex derived from the 1995 compared life table of the country. The 1995 life table is utilized because life table for 1996 (i.e., the year the survey was conducted) is not available.

The following life table functions were used in the computation of ALE:

- 1 the number of survivors at age x
- L the number of person years lived in the age interval x, x+5
- e the total life expectancy at age x

Active Life Expectancy of Filipino Older People

Although the proportion of older people living in institutions in the country is negligible, the computation of ALE took this factor into account to san tot to bias the estimates. A consideration of the institutional population was also meant to reconcile the disability prevalence which was taken from a community-based survey (i.e., excluding those living in institutions) and the life-table estimates which covered the entire population (i.e., including those to institutions). Estimates of the institutionalized elderly were calculated from the one percent sample of the 1995 census.

One limitation of the Sullivan method is that the method requires life tables by the specific subgroups of the population. The Sullivan method is often used to compute health expectancy by esc, partly because life tables by zer are available in most of the countries in the world. In some countries, life tables are also available by ethnicity or by region. However, it is very rare to find life tables by level of education or by utaba/rurnal. A more detailed discussion of the Sullivan method can be found in Jagger (1999) and Saito et al (1999). Sample spreadshees: for computing health expectancy is also available from the REVES website (<u>ftp://</u> cuorversinelife/tamovers/method/sulliv2, Sulliv2, Sulliv

# Results

### Aging in the Philippines

Prior to the discussion of the results, a brief overview of the aging situation in the country is provided to contextualize the study findings.

The level and rate of aging in the Philippines is low and slow in comparison with that of other countries which have experienced more dramatic demographic transitions like Germany and Jpan where almost a fourth of their population belong to the older age groups. The 2000 census counted a total of 4.6 million older Filipino, comprising six percent of the country's population as shown in Figure 1. White agging prevalence in the Philippines may be relatively low, this is expected to assume prominence in the future with the numbers reaching a double-digit mark in 2020 under the assumption of a moderate fertility and mortality decime (Craz, 2005). This future scenario is likewise suggested by the first atte of growth the fastest growing sector in the courry's population roldy.

The aging of the Philippine population can be traced to the declines in fertility, infant and child mortality and the general improvement in the overall level of health, which have led to further extensions in life. While increases in life expectancy has been a norm in annoval all countries of the world, this varies across age, sex, education and racial groups of the population. In the Philippines, large strides have been achieved in extending life expectancy. At present, a female can expect to live 7:2.2 years a birth and 6:69 years for the multise of the provention of the provide the provide the provide the provide the provided the provide representing about 10 years gain from their construpters in the 70s (Table 1). Both the probability of reaching old age and the charac of survival among throw who reached old age have increased in recent years. Gender differentials also show that older fermales have a greater charac of gaining years of life compared to the macks. Between 1970 and 1985 older fermales gained 2.2 years as compared to 0.5 years among the males to that in 1995 a woman who survived to age 60 can expect to life 1933 more years on the average, as compared to 16.8 years for the average mac. The very slight change in remaining life among those who survived to their 60s compared to the overall life expecancy at list hi mplies that these life gains beneficited mostly the younger segment of the population. This also explains the relatively slow pace of aging in the country. This is opposed to the pattern in low mortality countries where improvements in life expectancy, mainly caused by increased longerity experienced by the older sector of the population, are accounted for by the overall mortality reductions from chronic diseases at older ages.



FIGURE 1: Trends in Size and Growth of Older Population, Philippines, 1948-2020

Source: Census data for censuses 1948-2000. NSO population projections for 2020.

Year/period	Lif	Life expectancy at birth			Life expectancy at age 60			
	Male	Female	Gender Difference	Male	Female	Gender Difference		
1970	57.3	61.5	4.2	16.3	17.1	0.8		
1980	59.7	65.1	5.4	16.5	18.2	1.7		
1990	62.2	67.4	5.2	17.0	19.0	2.0		
1995	64.4	67.8	5.2	16.8	19.3	2.5		
2002	66.9	72.2	5.3					

Source: Fileger, Wilhelm, SVD, J. V. Cabigon "Life Table Estimates" HFDP Monograph 5. MY. 1994 (1970 ns 1990) NSO. 2002 (from NSCB website: http://www.nscb.gov.ph/stats/wmfact.htm)

### ADI and IADI Difficulties

Table 2 shows the level of disability using a measure which combines all four ADL and five IADL activities. A respondent is considered as having a disability if there is difficulty performing any one of these nine activities. Results show a high level of disability, with 28.2 percent admitting to have experienced some difficulty in doing any of the nine activities.

Findings also underscore the well-known age and sex grading of disability with females and those in the advanced ages generally showing elevated levels of functional deficits (Figure 2). By the time they reach 70 years, the prevalence level is a high 42 percent or more than twice that reported by those in their 60s. The increasing level of disability with advancing are means that under current conditions, the disability burden of the population will continue to increase as population ages.





Background Characteristics	Male	Female	Both Sexes
% with at least one ADL or			
ADL difficulty	23.8	31.5	28.2 (357)
Age			
80-69	14.8**	19.7**	17.6** (126)
70 +	36.9	45.5	42.0 (231)
Education			
No Schooling	34.3**	37.3**	35.8** (87)
Elementary	22.8	32.6	28.6 (215)
High School or higher	17.5	22.4	20.2 (54)
Literacy			
Can not read	28.2	38.7**	34.4** (114)
Can read	22.5	28.7	26.1 (243)
Marital Status			
Currently married	19.0**	30.3	23.8** (163)
Never married/separated/divorced	15.4	32.0	28.6 (18)
Widowed	39.5	32.0	33.8 (173)
Work Status			
Working	11.5**	16.7**	13.8** (67)
Not working	37.9	37.0	37.2 (290)
Living Arrangement			
Living alone	17.4*	31.9	26.1 (18)
Living with spouse only	6.4	39.6	24.0 (24)
Living with children	26.7	31.2	29.3 (253)
Other types of living arrangement	24.2	28.6	26.7 (62)

TABLE 2: Disability Prevalence Rates Among Filipino Older People 60 Years and Over by Selected Background Characteristics: 1996 PES

\*Significant at p = 0.05 \*\* Significant at p = 0.01

inste: the significance level provided in the last column refers to the set differences arous the various background variables while the significance levels provides in columns 2 and a fare to the significance excess background variables makes and femakes, respectively. The chi-square test for independence was the basis for the statistical test of significance).

### ADL/IADL Disability Across Subgroups

Bivariaire results of disability by various background variables suggest the prominence of educational variation in health status. Using the chi-square test for independence, results show a significant negative relationship between education and disability with about a fifth of those in the highest educational attainment reporting some functional disability as compared to 30.5 percent among those with educational attainment neoret than high school. Using an alternative measure of education, literacy or the ability to read a simple message, heing literate is also associated with lower reported levels of disability compared with their illiterate counterparts. The better health status of those with higher educational preparation may be tetre access to information and services that result in better health precises and ourcomest: an effect of generally better economic opportunities among the better educated as well as better access to information and services that result in better health precises and ourcomest.

In terms of work status, results show that those currently working are less likely to report experiencing functional difficulty than those not currently working. This finding must be interpreted with caution however since it is also possible that some elderly may be working because they are healthy and in the same manner, being unhealthy could hinder one's chances for work. Males show wider health discrepancy in disability by work status compared with the females. Males who are not working are three times more likely to have a disability compared to the currently working. The corresponding ratio is 2.2 for the females. This ornder differential may be explained by cultural expectations where males are considered the breadwinners of the family and so are expected to continue working until they retire or are overtaken by disability. In addition, the low level of social security coverage in the country (which is tied up with employment in the formal sector at least during the dates of the survey) can be considered a factor why men continue to work even at old ages. The high proportion of males who work beyond 65 also indicates the high proportion working in the informal sector where there is no formal retirement age and thus exit from the labor force is likely due to health-related reasons. Females on the other hand are less likely to work regardless of their health status

Differentials in health state by matrial status and living arrangement manifest distinct gender differentials. No perceptible difference in functional health is apparent among the females regardless of their matrial status whereas for the males, matrial distuption due to the death of spouse is associated with significant levels of disability. About four out of 10 wikdowers reported functional health problems, which are troic the level observed among the currently marked. This implies that matrial status is more likely to be a discriminating variable for males but not for females. Generally however, it is the widowed who displayed the highest level of functional disability.

Contrasting picture between the genders is also noted in terms of living arrangement with those living with their children likely to experience the highest levels of disability. It is not clear however whether those who are unhealthy chose to live with their children or in an extended household because they need care. The finding is more pronounced among females than males. The most unhealthy females are more likely to be living with their spouse only while the most unhealthy males are living with their children.

## Active Life Expectancy (ALE)

What do the foregoing levels of functional disability mean in terms of the quality of the remaining years of older Flipmos? The answer is demonstrated by Active Life Expectancy (ALE), which examines the proportion of remaining life level without disability. Unlike the traditional life table method which only indicates the duration of remaining years of life, ALE decomposes the remaining life into years spent in inactive and active states, an indicator of quality of life.

Table 3 shows the number and proportion of remaining life in an inactive state by age and sex using the Sulfaran Method. Results indicate that a considenble proportion of the older people's remaining life is lived in inactive state with significant gender disparity. Females have an advantage in terms of the number remaining years lived but they experience greater disability compared to the males. This is indicated in the genter number and proportion of remaining years lived in disability, a finding consistent with what has long been established by genomologists in advanced aging occides. Figure 3 clearly shows this gender disparity. Sitzyyear-old males for example can expect to live for 17 more years on the average compared to 19 years for females. However, the latter can anticipate to live a third of their remaining years to be a threshold point beyond which surviving women can expect significantly higher level of health butters with a greater part of their remaining years (52%) operated to be lived in an unhealthy state. The males are a bit better off as they are likely to pospone this experience at a latter age.

Interestingly, the gender disparity in the proportion of remaining life in inactive state does not endure, with a consover rowards the end of the life cycle. Results show that at age 00, a reversal in pattern occurs with the relative proportion of the remaining life lived in an inactive state among males exceeding that of the females. This is consistent with the age pattern of mortality in the country, which also shows a use reversal in mortality pattern with the males generally surpassing the females' death rate in all ages accept in the in the 80<sup>+</sup> age bracket (Craz, 2016). This is Bleweise violate in the multiple state of 0.7 for the 90<sup>+</sup> age group compared to 112 in the previous age bracket. All these factors tend to suggest the possible changing gender differential in mortality, morbidity and ALE patterns across the different stages of the file cycle. Due show that must have an advance in ALE. proportion of life lived without disability) during the onset of aging but shift to a disadvantageous position in the advanced stages of the aging process. This is the effect of the apparent twist in mortality and morbidity patterns marked by a decline in mortality and a surge in disability at the extreme age group.

Age and Sex	Status	% of remaining life lived in an		
000	Total	Active	Inactive	inactive state
Male				
60	16.8	12.3	4.3	26.7
65	13.7	9.4	4.2	31.0
70	10.9	6.6	4.3	39.5
75	8.4	4.3	4.1	48.6
80	3.5	1.3	2.2	62.1
Female		1		
60	19.0	12.6	6.4	33.7
65	15.4	9.6	5.8	37.8
70	12.0	6.4	5.6	46.8
75	9.0	4.4	4.7	52.0
80	3.6	1.5	2.1	57.7

FIGURE 3: Proportion and of remaining life in inactive state by age and sex: Sullivan method. 1996 PES



\* InALE\_F : inactive life expectancy for females InALE\_M : inactive life expectancy for males

### Discussion and Conclusion

The study has established the baseline information on the acrive life expectancy (ALE) among Filipino older people 60 years and over using the first nationally representative sample data on older people in the county. The study employed a functional health approach which measured health in terms of the ability to perform normal everyby activities of daily living (ic, ADL) and IADL indicators). Being a novel approach in assessing delarby health and given the early stage of elderly research in the country, it is not surprising that only two previous explorations in ALE have been done in the country prior to the study. These include an intercountry comparison in health expectancy using ADL indicators provided in the 1984 WHO data (Lamb, 1999) and the self-assessed health measure using the 1990 PES (Ofstedal, Zimmer, Craw, Chan and Lin, 2004). Both studies made use of the Sullwan method to measure ALE. However the former study (i.e., WHO study) does not provide a nationally representative estimate.

Findings demonstrate that while female older people live longer lives, they are more likely to spend longer, years and a higher proportion of thirt remaining like in an inactive state. Results also indicate the increasing level of disability with advancing age, again with the females generally at the disadvantage. This implies that as we anticipate future expansions in the size of the older population and as older people continue to experiment increasing longevity, we can expect a corresponding rise in the projected number with disability, more for females than males.

An expected rise in the number of older people who are unable to perform everyday activities has significant implications at various levels. At the macro level, it translates to an expected increase in the demand for health services which at present the government is ill equipped to handle given not only the badgerary constraints but also the competing demands from the younger sector of the population who constitute the major bulk of the country population. Results of the 1996 PES reveal that only 9.4 per cent have access to some social security benefit which is significantly lopsided in favor of those with high educational attainment (i.e., at least high school).

With the low government priority given to the older sector of the population, the burden of care for the delive including financial as well and non-material types or support will have to be managed by the family. However, changing family structure brought about by migration, including rural-urban and overseas labor migration have somehow threatened the ability of the family to care for its older memory. This is in the light of the increasing intermational migration pressure on women (i.e., high demand for female labor migrants) who are the traditional care givers of the older people. The istantion is likewise carechated by the massive outflow of trained and experienced health workers which has led to marked disortions in health care deliver (Mosta, 2007). Poverty is another factor that may get in the way of the family's ability to care for its elderly members. This is particularly salemin in the context of recent estimates confirming the country's poor economic condition with about 34 per cent of the population currently stimmated to be liring below poverty line in 2000 (Orbert, 2002). While Filipinos are generally known for their strong fille oblgation, poverty can erold the middle generation's capacity to provide economic and health assistance for the older generation. Studies confirm the significance of resource availability as a determinant of intergenerational support with families having frever socio-economic resources less likely to be involved in line support (Hogun et al., 1993). Furthermore, this economic situation and the need to provide for the basic needs of the family may force older members to continue working despite their age and all health.

On the other hand, investments in human capital as indicated in the improving exhauston profile of the country presents a window of opportunity that may help avoid the possible negative scenarios associated with the aging of the population. Recent studies show that better educated elderly will be in a better health stams and will be better able to provide for their support at old age (Luz, 2007). Improvements in the education composition of the future elderly population will lead to mach lower increases in disability than one could expect without improvement in education.

Results of the 1996 PES underscore the promising impact of this so called "clacation borons" on the well-being of the future generation of older Flipinos. Improving education profile of the incoming generation of older Flipinos has been aboves to be associated with a more active involvement in the labor force and entry in new occupation domains (Cruz, forthcoming). Attendy, data show traces of increased level of older womer's participation in the professional and administrative posts which radiationally, are associated with the males. Concomitant with their improving economic condition is again in their health condition marked by their increasing longers; This suggests that educating our current generation of young people is a long-term investment to ensure a future generation of active and ecconomically betweet-off older people. Clearly docation is key in maintaining a 'tritroux cycle' (*Lazz*, 2007) that promises a greater healthy life expectancy among the future generations of active and Plipino people.

At the same time, one should not ignore the role of healthy lifestyle such as exercise in any future intervention program designed to increase active life expectancy among older people in the Philippines. Moreover, the caundative negative effects that health risk behaviors such as smoking and drinking at early ages pose on the later health and mortality patterns make it imperative to true targing health from a life ocurse perspective rather than the usual agespecific approach. This also recognizes the need to incorporate delerly health policies to those benefitting the younger sectors of the population and recognizing the primacy of prevenive rather than a curative approach to aging health. The passage of the Tobacces Regulation Art in the country which seeks to absolutely han smoking in public places and penalizes tobacces also to mismor (LMCa, 2000) is an important step towards this direction.

### Notes

- Paper presented at the 10th National Convention on Statistics held at EDSA Shangri-La Hotel, Mandaluyong City, Philippines, October 1-2, 2007.
- 2 Omran defined three major successive stages of epidemiologic transition manely: 1) the age of pestilence and famine where the major cause of death is antibued to infectious diseases, maluatrition and maternity complications; 2) the age of receding pandemics; and 3) the age of degrementive and man-made diseases.

# References

- Asis, Maruja. (2007). "Health Worker Migration: The Case of the Philippines." A powerpoint presentation presented during XVII General Meeting of the Pacific Economic Cooperation Council. Sydney, Australia. May 1-2, 2007. In <u>www.auspecc.anu.edu.aus</u>. Retrieved on August 30, 2007.
- Crimmins, E.M. and Emmanuel Cambios (2003). "Social Inequalities in Health Expectancy" in J.M. Robine, C. Jagger, C. D. Mathers, E. M. Crimmins, and R. Suzman (Eds). *Determining Health Expectancies* (pp. 111-126). West Sussex, England: John Wiley and Sons, Ltd.
- Cruz, Grace. (2005). Health Transitions Among Filipino Older People. Unpublished doctoral dissertation. University of the Philippines.
- Fries, J. (1980). "Aging, Natural Health, and the Compression of Morbidity," New England Journal of Medicine 303: 130-135.
- Fries, J. F. (1989). The Compression of Morbidity: near or fat? Milbank Memorial Fund Quarterly 67:208-232.
- Gruenberg, E.M. (1977). "The failures of success", Milbank Memorial Fund Quarterly/Health and Society 55, 3-24.
- Hermalin, Albert, Carol Roan and Aurora Perez. (1998). "The Emerging Role of Grandparents in Asia". Elderfy in Asia Research Report Series. Na 98-52. Population Studies Centre: University of Michigan.
- Jagger, C. (1999). "Health Expectancy Calculation by the Sullivan Method: A Practical Guide," NUPRI Research Paper Series No. 68. Tokyo: Nihon University Population Research Institute.
- Lamb, V. L. (1999). "Active Life Expectancy of the Elderly in Selected Asian Countries," NUPRI Research Paper Serier No. 69. Tokyo: Nihon University Population Research Institute.
- Lawton, M.P., and Brody, E.M. (1969). "Assessment of older people: Self-maintaining and instrumental activities of daily living." Gerontologist 9:179-186.

- Lutz, W., KC Samir, Hafiz Khan, Sergei Scherbov and George Leeson. (2007). "Future Ageing in Southeast Asia: Demographic Trends, Human Capital and Health Status" Paper presented in the International Workshop on Financing Issues for an Aging Society in Southeast Asia held in Singapore, 3-5 September 2007.
- Manton, K. G. (1982). "Changing concepts of morbidity and mortality in the elderly population." Milbank Memorial Fund Quarterly/Health and Society 60, 183-244.
- Ofstedal, Mary Beth, Zachary Zimmer, Grace Cruz, Angelique Chan and Yu-Hsuan Lin. (2004). "A Comparison of Self-Assessed Health Expectancy Among Older Adults in Several Asian Settings." *Hallym International Journal of Aring*.
- Omran, Abdel R. (1971). "The Epidemiologic Transition: A Theory of the Epidemiologyof Population Change," *Milbank Memorial Fund Quarterly* 49(4): 509-538.
- Olshansky, S. Jay and Brian Ault B. (1986). "The Fourth Stage of the Epidemiologic transition: The age of Delayed and Degenerative Diseases." *The Milbank quarterly* 64 (3): 355-391.
- Olshansky, S. J., M.A. Rudberg, B.A. Carnes, C.K. Cassel and J. A. Brody. (1991). "Trading off longer life for worsening health: the expansion of morbidity hypothesis ", *Journal of Aging and Health* 3, 194-216.
- Rogers, Andrei, Richard G. Rogers and A Belanger (1990). "Longer Life but Worsening Health? Measurement and Dynamics," The Gerontologist 30: 640-649.
- Saito, Y., E.M. Crimmins, and M.D. Hayward (1999). "Health Expectancy: An Overview," NUPRI Research Paper Seriet No. 67. Tokyo: Nihon University Population Research Institute.
- Verbrugge, L.M. (1984). "Longer life but worsening health? Trends in health and mortality of middle-aged and older persons", *Milbank Memorial Fund Quarterly/Health and Society* 62(3), 475-519.
- Wiener, J., R. Handey, R. Clark, and J.F. Van Nostrand. (1990). "Measuring the Activities of Daily Living: Comparisons Across national Surveys," *Journal of Grantology*: Social Sciences 45(6): 5229-5237.



# A History of the University of the Philippines Population Institute

Mercedes B. Concepcion

### The Beginnings

In early 1955, Dr. Philip M. Hauser, founder of the University of Chicago's Population Research Center, one of the world's leading centers for the study of demography, visited the Philippines upon the invitation O. Dr. Mercelith B. Greese, Principal Existical Advisor, University of the Philippines Statistical Training Centre (UPSTC). He addressed the members of the Philippines Existical Association at one of its monthly meetings. Furst then a Research Assistant, the first Filipino to have been appointed to the UPSTC's research staff upon my arrival from training in Biostatistics in Australia on a Colombo Plan fellowship. A few months later 1 me Dr. Hauser again, this time at the Seminar on Population Problems of Asia and the Par East organized by the LUN. (UN) in Bandong, Indonesia in November1955, Historicalki it was the first seminar on the solute of population experimed by the UN.

The well-known demographers at the time – Dr. Pascal K.Whalpton, Director of the UN Population Division in charge of the seminar; Dr. C. Chandrasekaran who did the wellknown Mysore Population Study of India; Dr. Dadley Kirk of the Population Council, Inc.; Dr. Irene Tavuber of Princeton University; Dr. John Durand of the UN. Population Division, Dr. Marshal C. Baffour of the Rockrefeller Foundation; Dr. Hauser – were all in attendance. The Philippine delegation to the seminar was headed by Dr. Enrique T. Virtat, then U.P. Executive Vice-President, with Dr. Elisco Perez, Deputy Director of the Bureau of Cansus and Statistic (now National Santistics Office), as member. Dr. Victor C. Valenzuela, Professor of Public Health, UP. School of Hygiene, and I had been awarded Junio Fellowships by the International Socies Council o started the seminar along with some 18 others from

Professor Emeritus of the University of the Philippines, first (and last) dean of the UPPI, and recipient of the 2005 United Nations Population Award. The author acknowledges the assistance of the UPPI director and staff in the writing of this history.

Asia. Among them was Dr. Toshio Kuroda of Japan's Ministry of Health and Welfare. Several, now well-known, personalities in the field of demography from Asia made their debut at the Bandung seminar.

The seminar was the first to focus attention on increasing population trends within the region covered by the Economic Commission for Asia and the Far East (EGAFB), now Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (FSCAP). The seminar participants realized that the thing population growth rates largely negated or probably even retarded the effects of national socia-economic programs that provided an environment conducive to lowering birth rates. An important outcome of the seminar was a recommendation that the UN issee the initiative in setting up a regional denographic training and Research centre in the ECAFE region. Consequently, the Demographic Training and Research centre was jointly operated by the UNR was the Government of India. The Centre was jointly operated by the UNR and the Government of India. Its first Dicetor was Dr. C. Chandrasckann.

In the spring quarter of 1998, the Population Council, Inc. awarded the author, then a research instructor at the UPSTC, with a Ediovahigh or advanced study in demography at the University of Chicago's Department of Sociology. After one quarter of academic courses, Dr. Hauser recommended to Dr. Virata that the author be allowed to pursue a Ph.D. in Sociology, on paid leave. Thus, she completed the academic requirements for the Ph.D. Di Sociology, on paid leave. Thus, she completed the academic requirements for the Ph.D. to Sociology, on paid leave. Thus, she completed the academic requirements for the Ph.D. the work of the vising professional leavers in demographic statistics who are truming to Australia on completion of the assignment. Special arrangements were made for the author to underathek for discustration was related by the prioride arbite being given by mail by the Department of Sociology faculty. In June 1963, the author obtained her Ph.D. in Sociology in absentia from the University of Chicago.

In November 1962, the Ford Foundation sent out a population survey mission to East and Southeast Asia composed of Dr. Hauser, Dr. Dudley Krist and Dr. Noear Harkayo Y the Economic Affaire Program of the Ford Foundation. The mission visited the Philippines to look into the fictuality of estabilising a demographic centre or a population institute at UP. Dr. Virans, then Acting Director of the UPSTC, was very receptive to the idea, provided that the University be given time to train a number of people for the work to be undertaken and provided frent hat it receive sufficient financial support both from the Philippine the mission members that during the ensuing year he would try to assess how long it would take the University to carry out the preparatory steps in order that a population institute as estabilished in the Country as a whole was better prepared to organize the institute as fina to the fact that the country as a whole was better prepared to organize the institute as finance.
trained personnel was concremed than in 1953 when the UP agreed with the UN to establish a Statistical Training Concernity ULN financial support. In 1962, there were about six persons who had had formal training in demography, one of them at the Ph.D. Level, and the others with demographic training either in the United States or at the Bombay Demographic Training and Research Contre. No such similarly trained popels in statistics were available when the UPSTC started operations in June 1954. Dr. Virata also informed the Ford mission members that assistance would be needed during the preparatory period in the form of research grants and funds for graduate fellowships.

After the mission's departure, De. Virats took several implementing steps aimed at the eventual establishment of the population institute. Dr. Elvira M. Pascual, M.A. Demography from the University of Chicago, was appointed as carly as February 1963 as a research De. Virata discovered that Dr. Felsforo Lana of the U.R. Goognphy Department was interested in demography and accordingly, he was invited to join the group being prepared for the activities of the institute. Concurrently, De Virata arranged with Dr. Ricardo Pascual, Dana of the Cardaute School, that a master's degree in demography he offered in the Graduate School of Arts and Sciences and thus the administration of the degree big vero to a committee on demography ainto there was no department of demography in that School.

On 15 May 1963, Acting LLP President Wirza, in Memorandum No.366, sensibilished a committee in demography in the Canduate School of Ars and Sciences composed of representatives from each of the following disciplines sociology, demography, economics, geography and social psychology. Wembership in this committee was for two years, nervasible for a similar term upon recommendation of the Dean of the Graduate School and upon approval of the University President. The committee was to recommend matters pertaining to faculy development, research, fellowships and scholaschips. Following a setties of meetings, the committee formulated and recommended the adoption of the requirements for an M.A. (Demography) program. Such a program was approved by the University Cound at its 221<sup>a</sup> meeting held in September 1963. There was reason to believe that such a program would attent; student, gain the coorganito of official agencies and attacts appreciable public interest and support. The committee was to function until the time when the Population Institute will have developed its fail (complement of staff.)

The Population Council, Inc. on the other hand, granted the UPSTC the sum of \$3,000.00 for the analysis of census data and another \$7,500.00 for a study of virial statistics and fertility in the municipality of Imus, Cavite. These research grants were utilized for on-the-job training of the personnel intended for the institute.

With the foregoing steps, Dr. Virata felt that the basis had been had for the establishment of a population institute and that it was time that preparations be made to reach an agreement between various foundations and the UP, with government assistance for setting up a population institute, both for the training of personnel and for research on the country's population problems. Dr.Virata saw that the time was ripe for a formal agreement to be concluded between the Philippine Covernment represented by the UE and the foundations in order to assure continuation of financial support for the institute until such time that the foundations would stop their support. This arrangement would permit the creation of a permanent budget for the institute to ensure continuity of its activities on government support alone. A favorable situation existed for this plan in 1943 because the national budget for fiscal vera 1964 had an item for counterpart purposes to meet foundation grants

Dr.Vinta suggested to then U.P. President Carlos P. Romalo that the Population Council or the Ford Foundation be requested to send a short-term consultant at the end of 1963 or early 1964 principally to assist the U.P. In drafting an agreement that would be presented to the Government and the Foundations for final approval. Dr.Vinta suggested that Dr. Hauser be tapped for this assignment since the latter had indicated a desire and a willingness to participate in formulating the plasm for the institute.

## The Establishment of the Population Institute

The establishment of the Population Institute as a unit of the U.P. was approved by the Board of Regents on 20 November 1964 with the following objectives: (1) provide at least nine gradutes with demographic training, during the first three years of its operation; (2) produce a comprehensive analysis of characteristics and trends of the Philippine population; and (3) initiate a program of research on matters significant for planning and program purposes.

The Institute, with initial four-year support from the Ford Foundation, operated as a regular unit of the University through its director in consultation with an executive committee on general policy matters and an advisory committee in demography on academic matters. After the first four years of funding the Institute's facalty development, scholarship program and library, the Ford Foundation extended its financial support for no more than four years, on a matching-grant basis.

The Population Institute was headed by a director responsible for the administration of the training program and the direction of the Institute's research program. As the Institute developed there was provision for an associate director to serve as a deputy to the director and as acting director in the director's absence.

The Institute's professional personnel, appointed by the director, consisted of research associates and teaching faculty, both of whom undertook research and teaching functions as may be required. Research associates had to have an M.A., preferably in demography or in a related discipline. Senior research associates had to have Ph.D. degrees in demography or

in a related discipline. Research assistants were appointed as needed and consisted in the main of graduates majoring in demography or in related disciplines. All members of the Institute professional personnel and staff performed their Institute functions as assigned and directed by the Institute director.

At the outset and in accordance with grants-on-hand and pre-established arrangements, the professional personnel comprised the following:

Acting Director	Dr. Mercedes B. Concepcion
Principal Research Associate	Dr. William F. Pratt
Research Associate	Mrs. Elvira M. Pascual
Visiting Professor of Demography	Dr. Frank W. Lorimer

In addition, Dr. Hauser served as consultant to the Population Institute during the term of the Ford Foundation grant in accordance with agreed-upon relationships with the University of Chicago.

Because of the limited personnel at the initial stage and the prospect that one or more research associates might be sent abroad for further training, a proposal for a second senior research associate was submitted to the Ford Foundation and subsequently approved. This person was expected to assist in the demographic training of local personnel as well as contribute to the research program during the initial years of the Institute.

At the outset, the Director was assisted by an executive committee and a committee in demography. The executive committee consisted of Dr. Enrique T. Virata, university professor, as chairman; the UPIP director, Dr. Meredels B. Concepcion and a representative of the University of Chicago to be designated by the consultant, Dr. Hasser. The committee's function was to consider general policy matters affecting the Institute and to review and approve research proposals.

The committee in demography served to advise the UPPI director on matters relating to the establishment of training programs including the M.A. degree program in demography and on other academic matters. After the first four years of operation, this committee ceased to function.

#### The Training Program

The Population Institute is responsible, in cooperation with appropriate departments of the U.P., for administering a training program in population studies leading to the M.A. degree in demography. The program is inter-disciplinary and assures the production of demographic personnel with backgrounds in such relevant fields as economics, sociology, social psychology, geography, anthropology, statistics and other areas as may be desirable. The program, in addition to turning out persons with demographic training equipped to contribute to demographic work in government and other agencies, would serve as a basis for discovering exceptionally qualified students who merit further training, including Ph.D. training, at universities abroad.

In addition to the academic program, the Population Institute also administered an inservice training program, the purpose of which was to provide government personnel with specific types of demographic skills.

## Research Program

The demographic personnel of the UPSTC were already engaged in significant demographic research projects at the time of the Institute's establishment. Such research projects provided an excellent basis for the organization of further research activities and included the following projects:

- An analysis of the demographic and socio-economic characteristics of a sample of the population enumerated in 1960 (supported by the Population Council, Inc.).
- 2. A study of the completeness of registration of vital events in two Philippine municipalities, namely, Imus, Cavite and Calasiao, Pangasinan (the first supported by the Population Council, Inc. and the second by the UP. Social Science Research Council).

A major obligation of UPPI was to develop, design, and administer such research programs in demography to assist government in planning, economic, educational, and other activities, in respect to which policy and program must necessarily deal with population size, distribution, composition, and components of population change. UPPI was to serve as the focal point for the analysis of demographic information and the dissemination of knowledge in this field to the government and to the Filipino people. Moreover, the Institute was to be the major unit for academic research in demography at the UP. Ir was to assist the country's other educational and research institutions in the development and conduct of demographic programs, and in the design and conduct or other suitable agencies.

The research program consisted of the following activities:

- The development of a monograph on the Philippine population involving a circula analysis and development of available data and a preliminary survey, in cooperation with other ULP units, of relations between population trends and some other major trends in Philippine society. The results of this analysis, organized in the light of historical development and future prospects, would be published.
- Cooperation with the Bureau of the Census and Statistics in the design of special tabulations and comprehensive analyses of the data obtained on subjects designed to

increase the country's demographic knowledge and to serve specific purposes of policy and administration. Such projects would go beyond established census and statistical programs.

- Expansion of studies of completeness of registration and enumeration of vital events of the type described above and of studies relating to conditions and factors affecting Philippine fertility.
- The development of studies relating to conditions and factors affecting migration and mortality in the Philippines to complement studies on fertility.
- The undertaking of experimental studies to provide a basis for the design and installation of a national sample vital registration and statistical system.
- The exploration of methodological problems relating to current Philippine population estimates and projections.

#### Consultative and Advisory Services

There was increasing awareness within the country of the importance of considering population factors in relation to government, economic and social policy and program. However, the searchy of demographic personnel had made it difficult for government agencies and others to obtain demographic consultative and advisory services. UPPI was to provide such services as desired.

At the same time, the Institute would take steps to secure the collaboration and assistance of other agencies contributing significantly to the population field. In particular, it would make full use of the many resources available at U.P. For example, the Statistical Training Centre would provide consultative services on sampling and evaluation of survey results. The Institute of Economic Development and Research would provide advice on the interrelationship between population and economic development. Similarly, the Institute of Egoine and the College of Agriculture would commbute through their studies of communities. The Institute of Asian Studies and the Community Development Research Council were two other units whose specialized studies would be utilized in the overall research Scheme.

It was necessary to keep in close contact with national government agencies interested in population studies. These agencies included the National Ecocomic Courcel (now the National Economic and Development Authority or NEDA, the Program Implementation Agency (now the Presidential Management Staff), the National Science Development Board (now the Department of Science and Technology or DOST), the Disease Intelligence Center of the Department of Health and the Bureau of the Census and Statistics (now National Statistics Office or NSO).

Finally, contact was made with qualified persons and institutions outside the country, to be discussed in the sections below.

#### Physical Plant

Suitable space was to be provided for the Institute at the Diliman campus, including general famishings for office and research work. It was envisaged that the Institute would form part of the Public Affairs Complex composed of such units as the College of Public Administration, the Institute of Mass Communication, the College of Social Work and Community Development and the Statistical Timing Centre During all or part of instiyers of operation pending the construction of the Institute's permanent office, comparable findities were provided at the Rizal Hall of the Manila campus where the Statistical Center was also located.

Owing to lack of financial resources, the plan for a separate building for the Population Institute as part of the Public Affairs Complex never materialized. In 1985, the U.P. administration required all graduate units to be located in the Dilman actompus to make way for the transfer of the College of Pharmacy to the Manila campus. Hence, the Population Institute was provided permanent space at Palma Hall in Dilman and allotted part of the space occupied by the College of Pharmacy.

#### Technical Assistance Support

During the initial stage of the Institute's existence, local personnel had to be developed even while initiating a research program. With a limited number of trained Filipino demographers available, the Institute would have to depend on foreign personnel and consultants at the outset. Such foreign demographic personnel would help train local demographers to make the Institute self-sufficient in demographics personnel, qualified local personnel including the members of the Institute's professional staff were to be sent abroad for further training.

Among the sources of technical assistance support were the U.N. and its specialized agencies and the Population Council, Inc., in addition to the special arrangements with the University of Chicago as described in a later section.

At the time of its establishment, the Population Institute was fortunate to have the services of Dr. Frank W. Lorimer, visiting professor of demography at the UP, through the generosity of the Population Council, Inc. In addition to teaching courses in demography in the Department of Sociology which contribute to the MA. in Demography. Prof. Lorimer also consented to be available for the UPP's research program. By mutual agreement, he also served as visiting professor of demography at the Institute. In this capacity, Prof. Lorimer prepared anonograph on Phillippine population trends as indicated in the Institute's research program.

## Relationship with the University of Chicago

Supporting services from the University of Chicago (U.C.) through its Population Research and Training Center were tapped for strengthening work in demography in the Philippines. Under the cooperative agreement between the U.P. and the U.C., such assistance involved the following:

- 1. Training -
- Availability for consultation on matters relating to the curricula and requirements for the graduate degree.
- b. Provision for exchange of personnel including arrangements for visiting faculty from the U.C. and other institutions and visits of staff from the UPPI to the U.C. or other suitable demographic institutions as may be indicated.
- c. Cooperation with the Institute in helping to make available all training materials produced by the U.C. and elsewhere.
- d. Admission of qualified students from the U.P. for the Ph.D. program in sociology (demography) at the U.C. or other suitable universities, also assistance in obtaining fellowships, scholarships, and other research assistantships, as may be necessary for the training of U.P. students at the U.C. or other suitable institutions.
- 2. Research
- Availability for such cooperative undertakings as may seem desirable at the initiative of either party.
- b. Availability for consultations on research progress of UPPI, including assistance in the design of research and formulation of proposals for obtaining research.

The Population Research and Training Center (PRTC) at the U.C. would send a senior demographer to visit the Institute once each year during the initial phase for all tests at not-work period for consultation and discussion of the Institute's training and research program and plans for in future work. More frequent visits as may be requested by the Institute and as may be financed could be arranged. Finally, the PRTC Derector, Dc. Hauser, greed to serve as liaion with UPPI for any other services that it may desire at the U.C. such as the Community and Family Study. Center or at other universities or institutions in the Universities.

#### Library

An adequate working library for books, periodicals, government documents and other materials for the Institute's training and nesearch progress would be required. At the dim of the Institute's esablishment, the Statistical Training Center had a small collection of demographic materials. Although these materials could be obtained either on loan or donation from the Center library, most terms needed to be provided specifically for the Institute. The Ford Foundation support provided an item for subscriptions to relevant periodicals, purchase of books and training materials and procurement of national census publications.

## Academic and other Programs

The degree of Master of Arts (Demography) requires completion of at least 30 units of graduate work of which 24 should be in formal academic courses. The remaining six units should be credited for the master's thesis.

Five coarses are basic in the program and required of all students: Demography 211 (Demographis Statistics), Demography 212 (Population Studies), Sociology 260 (Demography) or Geography 226 (Juhural Goegraphy), Demography 255 (Special Topics) in Demography), and Social Science 201 (Statistics for the Behavioral Sciences). Other coarses would be selected from cognate fields depending on the student's interest and subject to approval by the program adviser.

In 1965, two students were formally enrolled in the program and a third person was completing degree work in Statistics with the intention of pursuing the M.A. program in demography.

#### Staff Development

In 1964, the Institute counted with three persons trained in demography. One had a Ph.D., the second an M.A. in this field, and the third had had a year's training at the DTRC of Chembur, India. However, these three merely formed the nucleus of a staff contemplated to increase in number as promising students were sent for foreign training at the dOttotal level.

## In-Service Training

A series of lectures and classroom discussions were arranged to acquaint outside agencies with the need for special training in population studies and for disseminating the Institute's demographic research and training program.

An integrated program incorporating the following aspects was basic to the production of trained workers at government level:

Demographic history and problems; General statistical methods; Basic data of demography and their collection; Techniques of demographic analysis; and Inter-telationships of demographic, economic and social phenomena

The in-service training was designed to cover a period of six to eight weeks during the summer, involving a total of 180 hours of work. A major portion of the in-service training would be devoted to discussion of individual problems supplemented by reading and practical work on data gathered by the different agencies.

Participants were to be chosen from among the intermediate staff of the census bureau, office of vital and health statistics, social welfare and economic development agencies, and the junior faculty members of colleges and universities – particularly their departments of sociology and economics – that had working relationships with policy-making bodies.

The Institute undertook a total of 12 in-service training sessions from 1965 to 1976.

## Conferences

UPPI's program included at least one conference in hite 1965 to explore the resources and needs of the country with respect to demographic analysis, and to develop the professional capacities of persons who had already acquired professions run the field. The participants would include upper-exchedon government officials concerned with questions to which demographic studies were directly relevant as well as leading experts in economics, sociology, anthropology, geography and public health.

The First Conference on Population was convened under the sponsorship of the UPPI and the Population Council, Inc. on 22 November 1965. U.P. President Carlos P. Romulo opened the conference followed by Prof. Hauser, Dr. C. Chandrasekaran, Regional Adviser on Population Policies and Programmes based at ESCAP was invited to speak on Population Programmes in ECAFE Countries. The director of the University of Singapore's Economic Research Center, Dr.You Poh Seng, spoke on Determinants of Population Growth while Visiting Professor Frank W. Lorimer presented a paper on Demographic Responses to Changing Technology. The second part of the program featured UPPI Director Mercedes B. Concepcion who presented the Demographic Factors in Philippine Development while Dr. Rosa Linda Tidalgo, U.P. School of Economics, summarized her paper on Output, Capital, Labor and Population Projections from the Supply Side. The third section consisted of papers by Visiting Associate Professor William F. Pratt on School Enrollment Projections and by Dr. Wilfrido Reves, U.P. Institute of Hypiene, on Philippine Population Growth and Health Development. The last portion of the program featured Prof .Hauser who spoke on Research Problems in Demography. The closing address on Trends and Prospects of Population Growth was eiven by Dr. Juan Salcedo, Jr., Chairman, National Science Development Board (NSDB). The papers and discussions were published under the title First Conference on Population.

## CONCEPCION

On 27-29 November 1967, a Second Conference on Population was held at the National Science and Development Board (NSDB). This conference was co-sponsored by UPPI, NSDB and the Ford Foundation. The U.N. Development Programme (UNDP) Resident Representative, Mr. Warren Cornwell, addressed the Conference on the topic: Population and Progress: On Rice and Men. Director Concepcion spoke on Population Growth Implications in the 1970s while Ms. Adriana C. Regudo and Visiting Assistant Professor Edmund M. Murphy presented their paper on Philippine Population in the 1970s, Director Carmen LL, Intengan, Food and Nutrition Institute, discussed The Food Needs in the Seventies while Dr. Leon A. Mears, Visiting Professor, U.P. School of Economics UPSE), presented the Problems of Equating Rice Supply and Demand in the 1970s. The International Labour Office's consultants, Mr. Bernardino A. Perez and Mr. M. L. Gupta, spoke on Labor Force Trends and Employment Targets while UPSE Visiting Professors Jeffrey G. Williamson and Don J. DeVoretz discussed Education as an Asset in the Philippine Economy. The latter then presented A Dynamic Programming Model for the Philippine Educational Sector followed by Undersecretary of Education Dr. Onofre D. Corpuz who talked on Education in the Seventies. The sole paper on urbanization was that of Visiting Assistant Professor Gerry E. Hendershot who addressed The Challenges to Urbanization in the Seventies. The topic of Health and Medical Services in the Seventies was dealt with by Prof. Melchor L. Jacinto, U.P. School of Hygiene. The paper, Prospects of a Fertility Decline in the Seventies, was coauthored by Director Concepcion and Dr. Hendershot, Dr. Thomas R. McHale, Executive Vice-President of Victorias Milling Corporation, presented his thoughts on The Philippines in the Seventies: The Problem of Population Growth and Economic Development. Dr. Paulino Garcia, NSDB Chairman, closed the conference with his address on the Growth of Our Population and Growth of Our Nation. The proceedings of this second conference were also published.

A third Conference on Population was held on 11-12 December 1969. Unfortunately, the program and proceedings of this Conference were mixial during the transfer of the Institute from Mania to Diffman in 1985. A partial lits of the presentors was obtained which included Fr. Georges Fron, CLGM, Assistent Pofissors, Department or Genomics, De La Salle University, who presented a paper entitled, The 1968 National Demographic Survey – Some Findings on Mobility; Population Institute Research Associate Zelda C. Zablan, whose paper dealt with IUCD Retention Rates Among Family Planning Platena at the Philippine General Hospital; De ML, Gupta, Manpover Assessment and Planning Expert, National Munpover and Youth Coancel, who reported his findings on the Present State and Anticipated Supplies of Engineers in the Philippines in the Seventise; Dr. Gerry E. Hendenbor, Department of Sociology, Yuanethil University, Navbille, Tennessee, who sopke on the Characteristics of Migrants to Manila and Other Urhan Places from Two Rard Communities and Dr. Grissina Planet, U. Sastistical Center Director, who shared be rapper on Employment of

Scientific and Technological Manpower in the Philippines. Understandably, the Third Conference was never published.

The conferences accomplished two things: they reviewed the demographic studies being undertaken or were being planned; and they discussed technical questions that had arisen or were expected to arise in the course of the participants' work. The Institute saft undertook the preparation and circulation of pertinent materials for discussion in these conferences, served as resource persons on technical matters, recorded the discussions taking place and summarized the proceedings for publication.

## Basic Demographic Analysis

Demographic research already initiated at the UPSTC that was carried forward by the UPPI included an analysis of the demographic and socio-economic characteristics of a sample of the 1960 population made possible by a grant from the Population Council, Inc. Secioconomic differentials in fertility indicated by the 1960 Census of Population, following the procedures applied to the 1956 and 1958 data from the Philippine Social Barveys of Households (PSSH), were also studied. It addition, the characteristics of migrams (as of 1960) by region of destination were also studied. File Anadie dealing with the fertility and varial studies (of my Philippine municipalities (Imms, Cavite and Calasias, Pangasian) were aimed at the measurement and explanation of relations between tertility and certain social factors.

These field studies – intended to serve as preliminary inquiries into the interrelationship between fertility and other characteristics of a cross-section of Filipino married women – were supported by the Population Council, Inc. and the U.P. Social Science Research Council. These pilot projects provided valuable training aids for future workers in the field.

Information on child-woman ratios was collected in the 1956 and 1958 rounds of the PSSH and in the 1960 Census on Population on a sample basis. Age-specific rates were calculated from these data in order to check the consistency of the vital registration records.

The number of children horn and the number surviving by age of modier were recorded for the May 1956 and May 1958 PSSH rounds as well as in the 10 percent sample of the 1950 Census of Population. Ratios of children living to children born could be used to estimate the death rates as a supplement to scanty morthly information from other sources. The general level and age-pattern of mortality so derived were compared with the mortality level and age-pattern of death rates bohained from vital registration data.

The consistency of various demographic indexes was tested using quasi-stable population models derived by Coale and associates at Princeton. Such models provided a firmer basis for estimating current population trends and preparing population projections on alternative hypotheses.

#### Monograph on the Population of the Philippines

A brief but comprehensive report on the demography of the Philippines was needed for the use of policy and decision-making agencies in both public and private sectors. Previous studies on the Philippines population like the UX-Population Growth and Manpower in the Philippines and various dissertations and theses served as the nucleus of the report. Available data from the 1960 Population Crassus on fertility, migration and the labor force orgether with the population projections prepared by the Bureau of the Census and Statistics were reviewed and revised for incorporation in the report. Such a report was presented during the First Conference on Population in 1965.

#### National Demographic Surveys

In 1968, the Institute in collaboration with the Bureau of the Census and Statistics, began a series of quipopennial surveys of fertility and other demographic variables as well as the family planning knowledge, attitudes and practice (KAP) of a representative sample of marticid women 15-49 years of age. These surveys came to be widely known as the National Demographic Surveys (NDS6). From then on, the surveys rounds in 1973, 1978 (done as part of the World Fertility Survey program), 1983, 1988 and 1993 were carried out in cooperation with the ICS. In 1998 the NDS expanded to include questions on the health of mother and child as part of international program known as the Demographic and Health Surveys. Thus, the NDS became the National Demographic and Health Survey, NDISI, ben NDS performed by Marcon International. The UPPI did not have any part in this project except to as at as consultant to the National Sutsitisco Office. Another NDHS round was undertaken in 2003 with some of the facility of the UPPI writing the chapters of the report. The results of the 1998 and 2003 NDHS have been published.

The World Fertility Survey, an international program of fertility and contraceptive knowledge, practice and use, begin in the early 170s under the asspices of the International Statistical Institute (ISI) with the collaboration of the U.N. (UN), the US Agency for International Development (USAID) and the International Union for the Scientific Study of Population (USSP). At the invitation of the ISI, the Philippines participated in the WFS by lanching the Republic of the Philippines Fertility Survey (RPFS) in May 1978, with major financial support from USAID and the Philippine Government, to ascentin national and sub-national levels of fertility and family planning KAP. A WFS technical staff member, Dr. Alphonse MacDonald, was appointed Country Coordinator for the RPFS. Dr. Tito A. Mijares, NCSO Director, and Dr. Mercedes B. Concepcion, UPPI Director, served as Project Director and Co-Project Director, respectively: The NCSO and UPPI staffs participated in the survey questionninite design, training, fieldwork, analysis of data, and writing of the Prist Country Report. The RPFS report was published in December 1979, in time for the General Meeting of the USI which was held in Manla.

In addition to the NDSs and NDHSs, the National Acceptor Survey (NAS) was conducted in three biennial rounds (1972, 1974, and 1976). It was aimed at tracking the achievements of the national family planning program which was established to implement the population policy by virtue of Republic Act 6365 known as the Population Act, signed by President Marcos on 16 August 1971. The focus was the level of new family planning or contraception acceptance, continuation of contraception, effectiveness of contraception in terms of useeffectiveness and fertility effects, and over-reporting of family planning acceptance in response to the rapidly growing population growth. USAID funded the NASs, which were conducted in collaboration between UPPI and the Commission on Population (POPCOM). The UPPI staff was led by Drs. John F. Laing, James Phillip, and Jater joined by Drs. Zelda C. Zablan and Josefina V. Cabigon. On the POPCOM side were Mrs Aurora Go, Dr. Tim Warner, and Ms. Rica Llorente. Field work and coding were carried out by Consumer Pulse. Inc. headed by Ms. Rosario Chew and her staff, Mrs. Mercy Abad and Mrs. Darrah Estrada, Ms. Nellie Mangubat took charge of the data processing. Final reports of these NASs were published as books or monographs and most of the findings were published in various international publications such as the Studies in Family Planning

The national family planning program's new thrust, The Total Integrated Development Approach (TIDA), initiated in 1976 in seven selected pilot provinces, led to the cooperative research project known as the Seven Provinces Study (SPS). The study simed to evaluate the program's impact on current fertility levels and on contraceptive prevalence in these seven provinces. Three research centers – UPPI, the Office of Population Studies (OPS) of the University of San Carlos in Cebu, the Research Institute for Mindano Calture (RIMCU) of the Mindano Carlor Endow, the Research Institute for Mindano Calture (RIMCU) of the Mindano Carlor for Population Studies (MCPS) of the San Application Studies (DPC) of the San Application Studies (DPC) of the Visaya, and the Simasi Ontental in Mindana. The first three provinces were assigned to UPPI, the next three to OPS while RIMCU was responsible for Misanis Oriental Infections. The SPS underwent two rounds, one in January-March 1976, the second a year later.

The Davao Research and Development Foundation joined the above-named three research centers in carrying out the annual Area Fertility Surveys (AFS), an expansion of the SPS. The five regions selected for the study consisted of Central Lazon, Western Visayas, Northern Mindanao, Southern Mindanao and Metro Manila. Reports submitted using the AFS data from 1977 to 1980 covered levels, trends, differentials and determinants of fertility and contraceptive pervalence.

Owing to the fact that the greatest proportion of births was contributed by women in the age group 15-24 years, in 1982 UPPI undertook a study of the fertility levels, beliefs and attitudes of the girls belonging to this age group. The Young Adult Fertility Survey (YAFS), as it was called, collected information on the seasual practices and contraceptive knowledge of a nationally representative group of young women aged 15-24 years (excluding Muslims) for policy and program purposes. A moder round was conducted in 1994, this time including both males and females but still excluding Muslim youth. The third YAFS round was done in 2002 with emphasis on the sexuality of young adults. This round included the Muslim youth and the age group of all national respondents excluded to age 27. The survey results served as bases for sex education programs of the Department of Education and for advocary campaigns being undertaken by the POPCOM.

## Population Institute Graduates

The first M.A. Demography was awarded to Mr. Peter Smith who obtained his degree in 1966. Mr. Smith later obtained a Ph.D. in Sociology from the University of Chicago and served as Visiting faculty at UPPI in October 1970. In 1968, three students - Trinidad S. Osteria, Antonio Pacheco and Milagros Ranoa - were granted the degree of M.A. Demography during the U.P. commencement exercises. Except for Mr. Pacheco, the two ladies went on to pursue doctoral degrees in Johns Hopkins University (IHU) and the University of Chicago (U.C.), respectively. Three other M.A. students graduated the following year, one of them, Ms, Zelda C, Zablan, joined the UPPI faculty after graduate studies at IHU and the Universite de Paris I. The second Institute Director, Dr. Corazon M, Raymundo, obtained her M.A. Demography in 1972 and was sent as a UNFPA and Harvard Fellow for doctoral studies at Harvard University. Ms. Lita I, Domingo (M.A. Demography, 1974) became a UPPI faculty member after receiving her doctorate degree from Harvard University. Other faculty members, Imelda Z. Feranil (M.A. Demography, 1975), Josefina V. Cabigon (M.A. Demography, 1976), Elisco de Guzman (M.A. Demography, 1979), Nimfa Ogena (M.A. Demography, 1984) and Aurora E. Perez (M.A. Demography, 1984) went for doctoral studies abroad with the exception of Professors Feranil and de Guzman.

Among the 137 graduates of the Institute, 127 were awarded their M.A. Demography while the remainder (10) pursued a Master in Population Studies. About a tenth of the graduates (13) were from Afghanistan, Lao People's Democratic Republic, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Viet Nam, Korea, Japan, Malaysia, the Maldires, Nepal and the United States.

## Proposed Transfer of the Demography Program and Attachment of the Population Institute to the College of Arts and Sciences

The University authorities convened a Committee to Review Academic Programs (CRAP) in August 1981 to review the various programs with a view to streamlining University operations. The committee was chaired by Dean Jose Encarnacion, Jr., UPSE. As a result of the committee's findings, the chair recommended the abolition of the M.A.

Demography degree and the reclassification of the Population Institute into a research unit of the College of Arts and Sciences (CAS). As a result of the UPP faculty's position paper submitted in January 1982, Dean Encarancion reconsidered his extire recommendation and instead proposed the establishment of a Department of Demography (to off era MA. degree in Demography) under the CAS and the Population Institute (to undertake research and extension service activities) attached to the CAS. Despite the submission of a second position paper on the academic, budgetary and organizational implications of the establishment of a Department of Demography and the Population Institute attachment to the CAS, the Board of Regenst approved the CRAP 1983. Hence on its 18' gear of existence, the Population Institute usy "languarteed". However, the Department of Demography was never established. The Population Institute was treated as a department of the College while at the same time serving as a research institute with a budget for the faculty and faf.

## UPPI's Involvement with the Government

## Population Policy and Program

On12 December 1968, then Executive Secretary to the Philippine President Rafael Salas convened a group interested in some aspects of population at the U.P. Institute of Public Administration. The proposed to see up a Commission on Population that would study all aspects of the population situation and recommend to the Philippine President policies and programs related to economic and social development. The Population Institute was tasked to serve as the Secretariat.

The following month, a second meeting took place when the group was informed that a darf of the Executive Order setting up the Population Commission was being considered by President Marcos. This draft was prepared by the Institute with the assistance of the them National Economic Council (now NEDA) and the Presidential Economic Staff (PES). At the same time working committees were set up one: (1) education, information and communication; (2) medicine; (5) religion and culture; and (4) population and economics. These committees discussed program proposals gazered toward the Commission 4 objectives. On 19 Hebraray 1969, President Marcos signed Executive Order No. 171 establishing a Commission on Population with the following objectives:

- Undertake, promote and publish studies and investigations on the Philippine population in all its aspects;
- Assemble and disseminate technical and scientific information relating to medical, social, economic and cultural phenomena as these affect or are affected by population;

- Formulate policy and program recommendations on population as it relates to economic and social development;
- Formulate research and study programs and projects and assign these to such individuals or organizations as the Commission may deem appropriate; and
- Perform such other duties as proper authorities may from time to time direct the Commission to undertake.

The Commission consisted of the secretaries the Departments of Education, of Health, and of Social Wafter; the chairman of the National Economic Connell, the UP. President: the presidents of the Carbolic Bishops Conference of the Philippines, the directors of the Burean of Churches and the Muslim Association of the Philippine; the directors of the Burean of Carsus and Statistics, Disease Intelligence Center, the Asian Social Institute and the Institute for the Study of Human Reproduction; and the deans or directors of the Burean of Medica, the Institute of Hygien, the Institute of Mass Communication, the Population Institute and the School of Economics, all units of the UP; the president of the Philippine Medical Association, the executive director of the Association of the Philippines and the presideng? the Panela Parenthous Movement of the Philippines. The Population Institute was designated as the S\secretariat with the director acting as executive director of the

The Commission concluded that reducing population growth was an urgent national need and recommended to President Marcos that a policy on reducing the high rate of population growth be formulated and that family planning be made part of a broad educational program oriented toward the harmonious development of the individual personality, the family and the nation. On 6 December 1960, President Marcos approved the Commission's asternet: on population policy and program.

A new Commission on Population was set up by Executive Order No. 233 on 15 May 1970 which repealed Executive Order No. 171, series of 1969. The secretaries of education and of social welfare were appointed by Persident Marcos as commission chairman and chairman of its executive committee, respectively. On 15 June 1970, the executive committee of the Commission designated Dr. Conrado Li. Lorenzo, Jr., a former Population Council bio-median fellow, as Executive Director.

Republic Act 6365 known as the Population Act, signed by President Marcos on 16 August 1971, established a national policy on population. The Philippine Congress declared "that for the purpose of furthering national development, increasing the share of each Fülipino in the fruits of economic progress and meeting the grave social and economic challenge of a high rate of population growth, a national program of family planning which respects the religious beliefs of the individuals involved shall be undertaken".

To carry out the purpose of RA 6365, a 12-member Commission on Population was created in the Office of the President. The functions and duites of the Commission were essentially identical with those of the previous Commission set up by Executive Order No. 233.

With the proclamation of martial law in September 1972, RA 6365 was revised by Presidential Decree No.79, issued on 8 December 1972, which explicitly involved both public and private sectors in a national program of family planning that respects the religious beliefs and values of the individuals involved.

On 31 March 1973, another Presidential Decree, No. 166, was issued amending the revised Population Act of 1971. The amendment gave the private sector representation in the formulation of policies relevant to furily planning. Thus, two members from the private sector were added to the original composition of the Board of Commission on Population.

## Special Training

From 1996 onward, the faculty engaged in various training sessions for a variety of audiences ranging from social science teachers to local government officials, from POPCOM regional directors and staff to Iranian educators and Vietnamese planners, from the DOST Sectoral Task Group to the Social Security System (SSS) officials. The training involved (1) policy operations, data management and utilization for several batches of local government officials; (2) situation analysis and data collection methods for health personnel at different service levels; (3) alternative demographic projection methodologies for SSS officers; (4) six courses on demographic data appreciation for Local Government Units (LGUs); (5) basic concepts, measures and projections of mortality and morbidity and their uses in planning for local planners; (6) population education for the Iranian educators; (7) management and research training for the Vietnamese planners; and (8) assessment of LGU commitment and support to family planning and to the Philippine Population Management Program (PPMP). In addition, faculty members pilot-tested the organization and strengthening of the Local Council for the Protection of children in Sorsogon, Leyte, Ifugao, Tawi-Tawi, Basilan and Metro Manila; and trained field interviewers for a community survey of Pangasinan. The staff also participated in disseminating the findings of the YAFS II and III to regional audiences. The Institute faculty also cooperated with the NSO in disseminating the results of the 2003 NDHS to various regional audiences.

Junior faculty and staff underwent training on the newest computer programs and archiving, the local area network, and the application of SPSS to survey data and analysis.

Forty-three years have passed since the formal establishment of the Population Institute as a unit of the University of the Philippines. During these years, the Institute has become the major source of demographic research results and the formation of a cadre of demographers who are spread throughout the government and private agencies. The Institute still does not have a bailding of its own. Despite this lack, it has managed to gain a reputation not only locally but regionally as well. Its faculty and staff are involved in major demographic pursuits and are consulted whenever questions on Philippine population characteristics and projections arise.

್ಷತ



# Selected Abstracts of Master's Theses for M.A. in Demography, University of the Philippines Population Institute

## Agustin, Sonny S. 2007. Sibling Effect of Dropping Out of School Among Adolescents. Master's Thesis. University of the Philippines. Diliman, Quezon City

THIS STUDY examines the effect of the number of sibling and preceding sibling interval on the dropping usof school behavior of a cohort of adolescent children from the third (1998-1999) and fourth (2002) follow-up surveys of the Cebu Longitudinal Health and Natrition Study, a multi-purpose panel study of mother-thild pairs in Metro Cebu. The effect of the number of sibling and the preceding sibling interval on school dropout through the allocation of various resources is analyzed through cross-tabaliations and chi-square analysis and also through sequential logistic regression. The resources are grouped into four 1) material family resources (type of school, book ownership); 2) non-material family resources (nonders', parenting style, level of enforced family bonding; 3) cognitive resources (evel of educational aspiration, attainmet expectation with regards to the educational spiration); and 4) nonfamily resources (club/organization membership, number of close female friends). Analysis is done separately by sec.

The cross-tabulations show that the number of siblings has a direct influence on male school dropout, and that the preceding sibling interact influences school dropout indirectly through the allocation of various resources. However, the study also finds that the number of sibling indirectly affects male school dropout through the type of school, the level of enforced family bonding, the level of educational aspiration, and club/organization membership. Furthermore, the number of siblings affects female school dropping out through the type of school, book ownership, the level of enforced family bonding, and club organization membership. As for the preceding sibling interval, it is found to affect male school dropout through the type of school, and club/organization membership. In these instances, having many siblings and close subling spacing are observed to limit the amount and quality of allocated resources, a disadvantage which in turn makes

## UNIVERSITY OF THE PHILIPPINES POPULATION INSTITUTE

children more likely to drop out of school. The main determinants of male school dropout are found to be household wealth, the level of educational aspiration, (thb/organization membership while the main determinants of female school dropout are household wealth, type of school, book ownership and club/organization membership.

## Reyes, Dhona S. 2005. Generation of the Philippine Working Life Tables: Some Methodological Considerations. Master's Thesis. University of the Philippines. Diliman, Quezon City

THIS STUDY seeks to investigate the changes and patterns of the Philippine labor force through the construction of working life tables. Classication of the working life tables for males and females in the Philippines using available estimates of the life table functions by Fileger and Cabigon (May 1994) and the hybrid labor force participation rates (Labor Force Survey and ensus activity rates) for 1970 and 1990 provides life expectancies by work status (active or inactive). These are indicators that simultaneously deal with quantity by measuring the number of years lived by a hypothecial cohorn in the labor force. An estimate of the working life shows the potential contribution to the economy of those active indivigibals in the labor force. The method used for calculating the working life tables separately for males and females in the Philippines for 1970 and 1990 in this study is based on the U.N. Mamal on the Methods for Analyzing Census Data on Economic Activities of the Population.

Findings in the labor force participation rates show that the age pattern of activity rates estimated using the census or the labor force survey data generally depicts a generally observed inverted U-shape.

Determining the potential contribution of the labor force with the use of working life tables for males and fernales through the quantification of the working life expectancy, this study finds that Filipino males had higher working life expectancy compared to Filipino fernales ay all ages within the 20-year period under study. This was due to the predominant participation of mules in the labor force in all ages compared with their fernale counterparts. The index of potential growth in the labor force of Filipino workers also declined. From 1970 to 1990, the median age of entry and retirement among Filipino males and fernales increased. However their median age of death declined. Moreover, the average number of working years lived by a Filipino worker under a given schedule of age-specific activity rates declined while among Filipino fermal workers, it meressed.

From this study, the researcher recommends that refinements in methodology in constructing working life tables for males and females will depend necessarily on available input data. Since values on censuses and surveys are useful inputs in deriving estimates on the Selected Abstracts of Master's Theses for M.A. in Demography

working life tables, it is therefore important that census and labor force survey procedure and its enumeration be given focus for improvement so that truncation of data can be avoided.

## Parcon, Cristabel Rose F. 2005. The Social Network of the Filipino Older People. Master's Thesis. University of the Philippines. Diliman, Quezon City

THE OBJRCTIVES of this study are to understand the dynamics of the social network of the Filipino older persons in terms of its structure and content, and to determine the influence of the socio-economic and demographic characteristics of the eldery on their network types. This study unlikes the 1996 Philippine Elderly Survey of the University of the Philippines Population Institute (JPPI).

Due to data limitation, the social network of the delety is limited to their spouse, children, parents, siblings, and grandchildren. The network structure is examined by size, composition, and geographic dispersion of network members, while the network content is analyzed by the frequency of interaction between the cklerly and their network members and their support intensity. The study focuses on the frequency of interaction and support of exchanges but measuring the quality of these interactions and exchanges is beyond the scope of this study. For this purpose, the study creates two indices of social network, both considering the support intensity and composition of the network and 2 family embeddeness, characterized by the geographic dispersion and interaction heaves the clefty and the network members.

Cross-tubulations are done to determine the differences in the network (statures and network types by ladoground characteristics of the delarely, Malinomali Jadjøric argerssion is employed to establish the determinants of the social network of the older people, and then the olds were converted into proportions using the MCA Table. Results show that the young-old, male high school chacated and healthy delety have better and more favorable network types compared to their respective counterparts. The place of residence of the elderh does not affect their support relations and finally embeddenes types.

## Landicho, Nancy. 2006. Recent Pregnancies of Filipino Mothers: the Link between Maternal Health Status and Health Care Utilization. Master's Thesis. University of the Philippines. Diliman, Quezon City

THE OBJECTIVE of this study is to examine quantitatively the link between maternal health care utilization and maternal health status of Filipino women using the 1993 Philippine Safe Motherhood Survey. It aims to examine such link on the last pregnancies of mothers occurring in the last three years before they were interviewed. The health status during the pregnancy, childhorth, and postparturum are derived by separating women who experienced obsteric complications with those who did not. In each reproductive stage, if the mother experienced an obsteric complication, she is classified under the category with complications. Health care utilization during pregnance, childhirth, and postpartum period are identified as prenatal, delivery, and postpartum care services respectively. Using the recommendations set by the World Health Organization and the Department of Health, the study further categorizes those women who followed the recommended health care services and those who did not according to each of the health care.

The study focuses on exploring the prevalent pattern displayed by Filipion mothers in utilizing prenatal, delivery, and postnatal health care services — was it the experience of being unwell or experiencing obstetic complications which compiled the women to seek health care services or was it their utilization of health care services that prevented them from experiencing such obstetic complication?

Bivanize analyses are done to identify the socio-demographic and attitudinal variables which had a significant effect on the health care use and beach starus of varionen. Multivariata starus and health care utilization taken separately, as well as to establish the lark between the two by considering one the dependent and the other the independent variable. The study users two models: 1) the full model, taking all the hypothesized predictors, and 2) the parsimonious model, taking only the emerging significant predictors in the full model, and using the forward conditional method in the SPSS. The study uses the parsimonious model as the basis for interpretating the effects of the emerging significant predictors on maternal health status and health care utilization.

The results confirm the positive and significant influence of the mother's level of education and their residential location on all the maternal health care utilization variables. The study finds that for the health stans, pregnancy wantedness has a direct and inverse effect, respectively, on the possibility of not having any obstetic complications during pregnancy and childbirth. Urban women are more likely to experience obstetic complications than their rural counterpart. Finally, the maternal health care-seeking behavior of the women in this study indicates a pattern of being curity ruler than preventive.

## **Guidelines for Authors**

The **Philippine Population Review** accepts articles related to population, reproductive health, and other developmental issues. Articles could be in any of the following formats:

- Research articles are empirical analyses of research studies, program evaluations as well as academic exercises on population, reproductive health, and development issues;
- Research notes explore methodological and theoretical issues in population, reproductive health, and development research;
- Commentaries are analytical comments on specific issue, policy or program related to population, reproductive health, and development; and
- Review of researches, books and bibliographic essays on population, reproductive health, and development matters.

#### Manuscript preparation and submission

For prospective authors, please submit one copy of the manuscript and an electronic file in MS Word format.

- Attach a separate sheet indicating the manuscript's title and the name(s) of the author(s), their institutional affiliations, and complete contact addresses.
- 2. Articles should be double spaced and with all pages numbered.
- Place all tables and charts on separate sheets at the end of the text. All charts should be provided with data points for easy replication.

## Copyright

The Philippine Population Association holds the copyright on all materials published in the PPR. Re-publication rights to authors however can be granted on request.

## Mailing address

THE EDITOR PHILIPPINE POPULATION REVIEW Philippine Population Association c/o UP Population Institute, Palma Hall University of the Philippines, Diliman, Quezon City 1101 Philippines

## Contact Information

Telephone No. (632) 920-5402 Fax No. (632) 920-5402 E-mail: <u>ppaphils@yahoo.com</u>